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IMPORTANT NOTE

The board of directors (the “Board”), supervisory committee, and
the directors, supervisors and senior management officers of Jiaoda
Kunji High-Tech Company Limited (the “Company”) confirmed that
there are no material omissions and misrepresentations or serious
misleading statements in this interim report and accept join and
several responsibility for the truthfulness, accuracy and
completeness of the contents of the report.

Ms. Li Dongru, independent non-executive director of the Company,
could not attend the meeting due to official duties and she appointed
director, Mr. Zhang Hanrong to vote on her behalf at the meeting.

The financial statements of the interim report are unaudited but
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company.

Unless otherwise stated, financial data contained in this report are
extracted from the accounts prepared by the Company in
accordance with PRC Accounting Standards.

Mr. Gao Minghui, Chairman of the Company, Mr. Pi Jianguo, Chief
Financial Officer, and Ms. Zhao Qiongfen, Accounting Supervisor,
have declared that they assure for the truthfulness and completeness
of the financial statements contained in this interim report.

OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY
COMPANY INFORMATION

Name of the Company (Chinese):
TREEBERMNBR QA
OLHEERARKKROBRAAF)

Abbreviated Name of the Company (Chinese):
2 B # PR

Name of the Company (English):
JIAODA KUNJI HIGH-TECH
COMPANY LIMITED
(SHENJI GROUP KUNMING
MACHINE TOOL COMPANY LIMITED)

Abbreviated Name of the Company (English):
JKHT (KMTCL)

Place of A Shares Listing:
Shanghai Stock Exchange

Short name of the Company’s A Shares:
Kunming Machine Tool

Stock Code of A Shares:
600806

Place of H Shares Listing:
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Short name of the Company’s H Shares:
Jiaoda High-Tech

Stock Code of H Shares:
0300
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Company Registered Address:
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province, the PRC

Company Business Address:
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province, the PRC

Postal Code:
650203

Company’s internet website:
http://www.jkht.com or
http://www.kmtcl.com

Company’s email address:
dsh@jkht.com or dsh@kmtcl.com

Company’s Legal Representative:
Mr. Lei Jinlu (Mr. Gao Minghui)

Secretary to the Board:
Ms. Yu Yan

Telephone:
86-871-6166612

Facsimile:
86-871-6166288

E-mail:
yuyan1207@jkht.com or
yuyan1207@kmtcl.com

Address:
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province, the PRC

Securities Representative of the Board:
Mr. Luo Tao

Telephone:
86-871-6166623

Facsimile:
86-871-6166288

E-mail:
luotao@jkht.com or luotao@kmtcl.com

Address:
23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province, the PRC
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Company’s designated newspaper for publishing:
China Securities Journal, Shanghai Securities Daily, Securities Times,
Hong Kong Wen Wei Po and THE STANDARD

Company’s designated internet websites for publishing interim report
in the PRC and Hong Kong:

http://www.sse.com.cn,
http://www.jkht.com and
http://www.hkex.com.hk

The internet website of the Company:
www.jkht.com or www.kmtcl.com

Company designated address for interim report:
Room 216, 23 Ciba Road, Kunming City, Yunnan Province, the PRC
Other Relevant Information

Date of Incorporation:
19th October, 1993

Place of Registration:
Yunnan Commercial and Industrial Administrative Bureau

Date of Registration of First Change of the Company Name:
29th March, 2002

Place of Registration of First Change of the Company Name:
Yunnan Commercial and Industrial Administrative Bureau

Business Registration Number:
b I E 42 F 5 00068255

Tax Registration Number:
530111622602196

Appointed Auditors in the PRC:
Zonzun Accounting Office Limited

Address:

Beijing

Appointed Auditors outside the PRC:
KPMG Hong Kong

Address:
Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Major Accounting Information and Financial Indicators
(prepared in accordance with the PRC Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises (ASBEs))

By For BEARE
Unit: RMB’000
EHEMKL
THEMKEK ITFEEMEK LFEERKBR %)

As at As at

30th June, 31st December,
HH Items 2007 2006 Difference (%)
mEE Total assets 1,462,876.20 1,216,481.72 20.25%
Fra&EEz (S E#Z)  Total shareholders’ equity 707,470.01 613,126.14 15.39%
BRFEE () Net assets per share (dollar) 2.50 2.16 15.39%
wKEH IERAHY EHEMLL
(1—6R) (1—-6R) L F R RBRE (%)

For the six months
ended 30th June,

For the six months
ended 30th June,

"E Items 2007 2006 Difference (%)
= P Operating profit 99,811.00 28,038.77 255.97%
Flm e Total profit 116,421.65 28,561.91 307.61%
pEim D Net profit for the period 94,343.87 21,530.81 338.18%
MBRFLEFEEBREOFFE Net profit after deducting
non-recurring items 79,081.97 18,618.92 324.74%
EXEGRKE=E (o) Basic earnings per share (dollar) 0.33 0.08 338.18%
wEskiks () Diluted earning per share (dollar) 0.33 0.08 338.18%
F A W E (%) Return on net assets (%) 13.34 3.87 #N0.47EEH
Increased 9.47
percentage points
KEEBE LW Net cash flow from
RenEFE operating activities 105,575.17 25,649.08 311.61%
BREEFRHEEN Net cash flow per share from
RenEFHE operating activities 0.37 0.09 311.61%

10 KPP LEFRHAEHNERETTEERHE-

2: 2007F2H26H RAEiE T EARNE L EIERAK
5 Z10/R 18 1.5606 8 - % 1% 1% 4 K X B
245,007,400 /1% 1% 111 7//283,243,255 i¢ ° 1y 5] 1% &
BHIRETE FRER Nz FRFEE TR
EEBELME L REFE-

Note:

The data of the same period of last year have been adjusted in accordance
with the existing accounting standards

On February 26, 2007, the Company implemented the proposal of share
increase (“Share Increase 1”) by converting capital reserve into new shares
on the basic of 1.5606 shares for every ten existing shares. After Share
Increase, the total share capital of the Company increased from 245,007,400
shares to 283,243,255 shares. Earnings per share, net assets per share and
net cash flow per share from operating activities in the above table are
calculated on the basic of total share capital after Share Increase.
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The effect of Share Increase on the earnings per share, net assets
per share of last year and the same period of last year (prepared in
accordance with the PRC ASBEs)

BKE-ARK
Unit: RMB

20065 12A 31H 2006%1-6A
BffgEW RfEHE® KROEBE 2 EROED®

31st December, 2006
Before Share After Share

January to June, 2006
Before Share After Share

WEHFE Profit of the reporting period Increase Increase Increase Increase
EXERKE (T) Basic earnings per share (dollar) 0.32 0.28 0.09 0.08
ERFEE () Net assets per share (dollar) 2.50 2.16 2.32 1.96

EhEEER AN (RHETESATA
MUK R AR SORME R H N FA
B R R

The Return on net assets and earnings per share prepared in accordance
with No.9 of Rules for the Compilation and Submission of Information
Disclosure by Public Offering Companies issued by China Securities

Regulatory Commission are as follows:

BRERSE(%) Sk (T)
2EEE MEFYy ERSREE BESERES
Return of net assets (%) Earnings per share (dollar)
Basic Diluted
Profit of Weighted earnings earnings
BEHAR the reporting period Full diluted average per share per share
BBRARL AR Net profit belongs to common
% R 6 7% ) shareholders of the Company 13.34 14.29 0.33 0.33
NhFEEEEBERE Net profit after deducting of
BRERROEEER non-recurring items belongs
F% R & 7 FE to common shareholders
of the Company 11.18 11.98 0.28 0.28
ERCH IR R AR T B M & Non-recurring items for the period
Bfz:Fr BEARK
Unit: RMB’000
g ]
FBEEMHRI2EAR Non-recurring items Amount
NBEERERER Loss on disposal non-current assets (7,949.4)

FFAEHiEs

& I B
BHEAREBTIMERM
ERERGE —RETER
E§¥§E’Jﬂlﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ R S

Government grants (except for the grants
which have close relationship with the Company’s
business and have the standard amount and
quantities in accordance with the national standard.)

Loss on disposal equity of subsidiaries

Impact on profits tax

BETRAAERIER
Fr 1% ?& 2y
A &F Total

15,722,278.14
(5633,666.51)

81,242.38

15,261,904.61
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HLPE A W &l ue b - 2. Major Accounting Information and Financial Indicators
(prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Accounting
Standards)

Bl AREFT

Unit: RMB’000
XEEMPKRL
EEEMX ITEEMRR LEEHKBRE%)
As at As at
30th June, 31st December,

TEEHEH Iltems 2007 2006 Difference (%)
MENE B Current assets 925,253 689,745 34.14%
mEBE Current liabilities 589,210 462,437 27.41%
mEE Total assets 1,450,721 1,198,403 21.05%

L Total shareholders’ equity
(TELHBREER) (excluding minority interest) 703,247 608,243 15.62%
BRFEE () Net assets per share (dollar) 2.48 2.15 15.62%
EHEMKL
XEEY LERAHP(1-6A) LEEHKREBR (%)

For the six months ended 30th June
TEFHEH Items 2007 2006 Difference (%)
b IpE Net profit for the period 95,004 19,857 378.44%
Sk () Earnings per share (dollar) 0.351 0.081 333.33%
F A E W ZE (%) Return on net assets (%) 13.51 3.26 #N10.25EH H %
Increased 10.25
percentage points
KEEBE LW Cash inflow from

RenEFE operating activities 145,544 16,377 788.71%




82007 hERERE

3. A 5k o ) 5 5 3. Difference between PRC ASBEs and Hong Kong Accounting
Standards:
By Fr BEARE
Unit: RMB’000
#iE BRER
FHI® Lxa Mo iR
Net Profit Shareholders’ equity
For the six months As at As at
ended 30th June 1st January, 30th June,
HHE Items 2007 2006 2007 2007
EhBEeE g R As per the financial statements
prepared under PRC ASBEs 94,343.9 21,530.8 613,126.1 707,470.0
BEBSSHEAMNFE  Adjusted in accordance with the
Hong Kong Accounting Standards
hn s R R W A Add: differed gain (31.2) (81.2) 1,098.8 1,067.6
P15 profit tax 501.3 - - 501.3
NEHENEEZR differences among internal
sales depreciation 190.0 (95.0) (190.0) -
B ] amortization of good will - 791.4 3,077.1 3,077.1
F AR H K accrued rebate for profit tax
I B R A of a subsidiary
RAEREMEE unrecognized increments of
AT ARIEE assets invested in Subsidiaries - - (8,869.0) (8,869.0)
WERBEER provision for diminution of
short-term investment - (2,339.0) - -
EEBEFAER As per financial statements prepared
under HK Accounting Standards 95,004.0 19,857.0 608,243.0 703,247.0

= JBeA B W R B R UL

(—) JBe Aoy 52 Bh % B %

1.
OF THE COMPANY

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL AND SHAREHOLDERS

(1) CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL

g
Unit: Share
REDA FREDAE (+-) FRED%
Ryxft LR
BE LA (%) RTHE HERR F1.1:3 it it BE (%)
Before the change Changes during the period (+, - ) After the change
Conversion
Considerations from
Proportion for Share capital Proportion
Amount (%)  New Share Reform reserves Others Sub-total Amount (%)
- BERERAKRSH . Shares subject to selling restrictions
1. BxRER 1. state-owned shares 31,345,554 12.79 - - - (31,345,554) - - -
2. BBEEAREK 2. state-owned legal person shares 71,052,146 29.00 - (15,980,185) 15,980,185 31,345,554 - 102,397,700 36.15
3. EpRERR 3. Other domestic shares
EdEREE Including: domestic
BEARR non-state-owned legal person 17,609,700 7.19 - (2748170) 2,748,170 - - 17,609,700 6.22
BRERAER shares domestic nature person
4. HEER 4. foreign owned shares
N ARR including: shares owned
by foreign legal person - - - - - - - - -
BHERNER Shares owned by foreign
nature person - - - - - - - - -
- EREREHRARD IIl. - Shares not subject to selling restrictions
1. ARBEER 1. RMB denominated ordinary shares 60,000,000 24.49 - 18,728,355 9,363,600 - 28,091,955 88,091,955 31.10
2. BRETHHER 2. domestic listed foreign shares - - - - - - - - -
3. EHNETMHSNER 3. Overseas listed foreign shares 65,000,000 26.53 - - 10,143,900 - 10,143,900 75,143,900 26.53
4. Ef 4. Others
= kiey lll.  Total number of shares 245,007,400 100.00 - - 38,235,855 - 38,235,855 283,243,255 100.00
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2005F9 R 15H EGKIK (£B) BREMT
ARHAAZRBABEE (£8) BRA%F
ET(REERZDR) BERK (S8 BR
EF AU EEE A NNBEALTIBAR
EX(EE) A RF AN AKERB R
AR AFT71,052,146 kB A E AR (52
AR AT29%  BRIZFEEERAARE
18,3008 ;L2006 F6 A 7TH R BSEE &
(ERZRERBHEROBR AR AKE
RE B EAE R BE E #[2006]62855 4
ERETZEREEE-

2006F4A4HEEEARBIF(EMAAR
BRI KEEEE RN B R A B RES
EEERBENILE) (EHKE[2006]335) &
EHREEEZ (AR AERBFRMER
ARHOEEREEBEEEMENIE) (B
& ERE[2006]14125% ) B SUiL A R B R K F
BREREFEARBEEEMZAN
3134.56 BRI G BRAR12.79% * &
EBEEHARAEEELEBREARR K
BHEEABREEIAR YRAZARKEE =
NS

200741 A 250 & 7% 56 7 & #£[2007]1335%
(ERRERKERBHHRMD AR A A&
EERIRENE) AT ARKRESEXR
FEHR-NAINEARLTESM2007F2A 26
AEREMAEERES10ME1E1.5606
% - 48 582 1% AY K 38,235,8550% - H AL 4
585 4% % 75 28,091,9550% - HAX 48 51 43 1% A%
710,143,9000% - 2007438 5H - R &1 FETR
IR R AFT A AR 15 $£511872.8355&
BRAR MR AR IR R AT 10 AR R Y
B2.70  FAK LT H A2007F3F7H -H
oL EE S 11108.83988 i Ef A
B RAE T 1489.1787B R - B E AR T
274.8170B - L B E LT HHIT TR
B AEIERBRERFZIENIERBREN
BIES EmimiEe

The approval of the change of share capital

On September 15, 2005, Xi'an Jiaotong University Industrial (Group)
Incorporation and Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. entered
into an agreement in regarding transfer of shares. Shenyang Machine
Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. agreed to buy 71,052,146 shares of Jiaoda
Kunji High-Tech Co., Ltd. from Xi’an Jiaotong University Industrial
(Group) Incorporation, representing 29% of the total shares. The
transfer price of the shares was RMB183,000,000. On June 7, 2006,
the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
under the State Council issued the “Written Reply Regarding Jiaoda
Kunji High-Tech Co., Ltd. Transfer State-owned Shares” (file no.
& EE #E[2006] 6285%) to approve the above share transfer.

On April 4, 2006, Yunnan provincial government issued the “Written
Reply Regarding Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Co., Ltd. Transfer of Shares
by Yunnan Provincial Government” (file no. = 4 [2006] 335%) and
the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
under the State Council issued the “Written Reply Regarding Jiaoda
Kunji High-Tech Co., Ltd. Transfer of State-owned Shares” (file no.
& E fE[2006] 14125%) to approve the shareholder of Jiaoda Kunji
High-Tech Co., Ltd., Yunnan provincial government to transfer its
31,345,600 state-owned shares, representing 12.79% of the total
shares, to Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation Co., Ltd.. After
transferring, the nature of the above shares is state-owned legal
person shares. And Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation Co., Ltd.
became the second largest shareholder of the Company.

On January 25, 2007, the Ministry of Commerce, the PRC issued
the “Written Reply Regarding Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Co., Ltd.
Transfer of Shares and Increase Shares” (file no. 7 & #£[2007] 133
%) to approve the Share Reform Proposal of the Company. The
Company increased shares to all shareholders whose name appear
on the Company'’s register of members on the February 26, 2007
by transferring capital reserves on a basis of 1.5606 shares for
every existing 10 shares (“Share Increase 1”). The total increased
share capital was 38,235,855 shares, of which, 28,091,955 shares
were A Shares, and 10,143,900 shares were H Shares. On March 5,
2007, the holders of non-circulating Shares of the Company used
their 18,728,355 shares as consideration shares to pay to the holders
of circulating A Shares on a basis of 2.7 shares for every 10 shares.
The new A shares were listed on March 7, 2007. Of 18,728,355
shares, Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Company Limited disbursed
11,088,398 shares; Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation Company
Limited disbursed 4,891,787 shares, and Jinghua Company
disbursed 2,748,170 shares to the holders of Circulating A Shares.
After implementation of the consideration arrangement, non-
circulating shares held by the holders of non-circulating Shares of
the Company became tradable and listed.
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On April 2007, two shareholders of the Company, Shenyang Machine
Tool (Group) co., Ltd. and Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation
Co., Ltd. jointly proposed the Share Increase Proposal (the “Share
Increase 2”) (New Shares will be issued to all shareholders of the
Company by transferring capital reserves on a basis of five New
Shares for every 10 Shares based on 283,243,255 total share
capital). The Share Increase was approved at the 21st meeting of
the board of directors held on April 18, 2007 and the resolution
was submitted to 2006 annual general meeting and class meetings
held on June 29, 2007 respectively. The Share Increase 2 should
be approved by the Ministry of Commerce before it is implemented.
As at the date of this report, the Share Increase is not implemented.

Registered of holders

China Securities Depositories & Clearing Corporation Limited
(Shanghai Branch) issued Transfer Registration Confirmation of
State-owned Legal Person Shares ((BI B ZAREE B P &L HER
£)) (the “Confirmation”) on December 1, 2006 and January 19,
2007 respectively to confirmed that Shenyang Machine Tool (Group)
Company Limited completed the share transfer registration of
transferring 71,052,146 state-owned legal person shares of the
Company held by Xi’an Jiaotong University Industrial (Group)
Incorporation and Yunnan State Owned Assets Operation Company
Limited completed the share transfer registration of transferring
state-owned legal shares of the Company held by Yunnan Provincial
Government. Later, the Company implemented and completed Share
Reform and Share Increase 1. The total share capital of the Company
has changed to 283,243,255 shares and the registered capital has
changed to RMB283, 243,255. Of 283,243,255 total shares,
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. holds 71,052,146 shares,
representing 25.08% of the total share capital of the Company, and
Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation Co., Ltd. holds 31,345,554
shares, representing 11.07% of the total share capital of the
Company, and Kunming Jinghua Co., Ltd. holds 17,609,700 shares,
representing 6.22% of the total share capital of the Company.

Public shareholders of A shares hold 88,091,955 shares, representing
31.10% of the total share capital of the Company and public
shareholders of H shares hold 75,143,900 shares, representing
26.53% of total share capital of the Company.
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) BB (2) SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
JBe 3 % A Ky B A Bt 1.  Top Ten Shareholders of the Company
By R
Unit: Share
REMKBRRAEB26941F (Hp: AR ¥ 26842F i HER B R99F )
As at 30th June, 2007, the Company has 26,941 shareholders
(including 26,842 A Shares shareholders and 99 H Shares shareholders)
HtEBRRERER
Top Ten Shareholders of the Company
:3::3°4: ] REERE
BREH BREEE (%) BRER KEHAEE GHROBE HRIABRHRHBE
Number of Number of
shares held selling
Type of  Proportion at the end Increase/ restricted Number of shares
Name of shareholders shareholders (%) of the period Decrease shares pledged or frozen
EERREE (REA)BRDA Hit 25.92 73,427,711 - - A
HKSCC Nominees Limited Others Unknown
EERAK (RE)ERAEERA EHEA 25.08 71,052,146 - 71,052,146 8 £15,000,0008%
Shenyang Machine Tool State-owned Frozen:
(Group) Co., Ltd. legal person 15,000,000 shares
EHEAEEEREEREAD EABEA 11.07 31,345,554 - 31,345,554 R
Yunnan State-owned State-owned Unknown
Assets Operation Co., Ltd. legal person
ERBELNA BNERBEA 6.22 17,609,700 - 17,609,700 A
Kunming Jinghua Co. Domestic Unknown
non-state-owned
legal person
FERRRT-IRKERE Hith 1.39 3,931,840 - - il
T /rté’iﬁ%ixﬁgé Others Unknown
China Construction
Bank-Securities Investment Fund
FEIBRT-SHEEERK Hith 0.91 2,590,652 - - byl
BRANBEHFRERS Others Unknown
ICBC Securltles Investment Fund
FEERRT-IRREREKE Hit 0.76 2,152,188 - - XA
i‘fiﬁ%&éﬁi Others Unknown
China Construction Bank-Stable
Growth Securities Investment Fund
BREFAFTARRELEFRERES Hith 0.60 1,700,000 - - R
Others Unknown
EHENEEERLA Hity 0.23 647,475 - - XA
Yunnan Power Group Limited Others Unknown
Cai Qingshan BHERA 0.20 570,030 - - KA
Overseas Unknown

nature person
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W 45 0 BB 1 JBE SR F7 B 4% UL Top ten shareholders with selling unrestricted shares

BRRER

Name of shareholders

RAEEREGHRMNBE B ER
Number of selling

unrestricted shares Type of shares

EEPREZ (REA)BR2AR  HKSCC Nominees Limited 73,427,711 BN ETANE B
H Shares
THRIGEBEFHREER
BHIEES 3,931,840 AR L BR
A Shares
SHhEBEKRKREST
BHEEES 2,590,652 YN E g
A Shares
THRIGEBRERRRER
BHIEES 2,152,188 ARELBR
A Shares
BERESFRIFARRER
BHEEES 1,700,000 YN E g
A Shares
THENEBEAERAT Yunnan Power Group Limited 647,475 AR I @R
A Shares
Cai Qingshan Cai Qingshan 570,030 RN ETINE R
H Shares
FR IE Chen Zheng 455,000 YN F e
A Shares
ERZHEBEHERRE
BHIEES 387,510 AR L BR
A Shares
R Sun Zhigiang 376,134 YN E g
A Shares

bl % 3R 8 Bt B R B — B
TR H AR A

Details of the connected relationship among the above
shareholders’ of the Company an consistent action:

A+ % 8 AR A SR A A IR AR R - B A AR AR
RZBE N FEBBEER- A FARM A RE
BERRZzEREFEBBBEERERIBIN(LET
ARERFBEREDERBEETERE) R
EH—HITEA BI108 R T RITEBPR
Rz E R R R ) A B RO 8 AR
REMEARBBEERREEARBRRZME
R T R R R R -

B b3 55 2 £ 2R SN 1200756 A 30
H REPE(REHTEISEEETHR
Pl E60fE R AARMBEITEFO DA EME
AR sEEERIE 258 (2005F ER]) )
EHMERRZFRET RENFTERS 2
BE MRBEFEIF(AFEEEN)F16
MWERE AARLBEBEMALHEEAS
RABEBEITRAI0% A 2 -

The Company was not notified of any connected relationship and
consistent action regulated by “Information Disclosure Management
Procedure to Changes of Shareholding of Listed Company” among
the top ten shareholders of circulating shares, legal person shares,
and state-owned legal person shares of the Company. None of the
top ten shareholders of the Company have relationship with each
other and the Company was not rectified by its shareholders that
there is any relationship between the shareholders of non-circulating
shares, the shareholders of the state-owned shares and the public
shareholders.

Other than the substantial shareholders disclosed above as at June,
30, 2007, there were no other shareholders whose shareholdings
exceeded the amount required to be disclosed under Article 60 of
“Administration of the Issuing and Trading of Shares Provisional
Regulations” of the PRC and Issue no. 2 of “The Content and Format
of Disclosure of Information of the Listed Companies”(amended in
2005) and the register of substantial shareholders maintained under
the requirement of reporting; and under Issue no. 16 (1) of the
Securities (Disclosure of Interest) Ordinance under the Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited, the Company was not notified of
any interests representing 10% or more of the issued share capital
of the Company.
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RI10B R HBEATRMESRIU L (&
5%) BRI EA4F BALUEB R (£E)
EREMT AR R MDERAREEAR:
EEEARBFT ATEROER ARG XA
B BRBEAR FTEBRMDERAEAR:
EmMERMOHAIERBRG  BEBEIK (£
) B R EE R AR 15,000,0008% 1
REESN FME SRR TR R B EE S
ER ORESTENBR - BEPRER (R
BA)ERAAIMFRNDAZARERFPFER-E
F Keywise Capital Management(HK)
Limited#$ B A2 75,440,1998% B 17 + (H HA%
B 7 L E97.24% ©

i AL EI200746 F22 H #4621 & - A B 5F
FBREERNA LFS DA EELE
5 AR A BLBT 15 B) #1778 41 & 5t 1 BT
BEEEEERABENEREFENITR
HEMEB LR EFE K (£E) ERE
FRE]—F -HEGEK (EH) EREF
RN EIFA B A2 E]150048 A% R & s B A K
B (HEESELEE R AREFRER
BEIER IR AR TR IR A
200746 519 A £200846 A18H I >

B EXPEEEIN ERELBES AR
AT (EFFEEHERTHAE) RAQT
O RBERNEE RS AREMEE
REBCEFRHEKRD) EXVEFE2R3SH
Mz RERARBMEHRE HBREEEGE
# M EVE & D]) F 3361 E - AIIAFIEE
ZELMzERAIOKE -

Among top ten shareholders, there are four holding 5% or more of
the Company’ shares. They are Shenyang Machine Tool (Group)
Co., Ltd., which holds the state-owned legal person shares; Yunnan
Provincial Government holds state-owned legal person shares;
Kunming Jinghua Company holds legal person shares. All of the
shares held by these shareholders are selling restricted circulating
shares and are not pledged, frozen, mortgaged, nor designated
except for the 15,000,000 frozen shares of Shenyang Machine Tool
(Group) co., Ltd. The overseas listed shares (H Shares) of the
Company are held by HKSCC Nominees Ltd., of which, Keywise
Capital Management (HK) Limited holds 5,440,199 shares of the
Company, which represents 7.24% of H Shares of the Company.

Note: The Company has made an announcement on June 22, 2007 regarding
the Company received a “Notice of judicial freezing and judicial transfer
of shares by China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation
Shanghai Branch (the “Shanghai Branch”)”, which notified that
15,000,000 restricted circulating A shares and their yield (including
bonus shares, capitalization shares, and cash dividend distributed by
the Shanghai Branch) held by Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Company
Limited have been subject to judicial freezing from June 19, 2007 to
June 18, 2008 in accordance with the Notice of Assistance in Execution
issued by Liaoyang Municipal Intermediate People’s Court of Liaoling
Province in relation to the execution of the case of Chang Bai Calculator
Group Company against Shenyang Group applied by China Cinda Asset
Management Corporation, Shenyang Office.

Apart from the shareholders disclosed above, directors are not
notified that any person (other than a director or chief executive)
had the interests or short positions in the shares of the Company
which required notifying to the Company under part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong Kong (“SFO”), or which
required to be recorded in the register to be kept under section 336
of the SFO.
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3. W4 A R B A I Y B B R 3.
5 B fF

AFREGHEEATLTRAER

Trading of selling

AEHRARR

Time of Listing

restricted shares
MmiBA L
THRHBE

Number of
additional shares
to be traded

Shareholding and selling restriction of top ten shareholders with
selling restricted shares:

B R
Unit: Share

Selling restriction

BFENERE

Kt HFRERGRERE BHBROHBE

Number of selling

restricted shares

Name of shareholders held at the end

No. with selling restricted shares of the period

1 BHEEK (SE) BREMTERT 71,052,146
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd.

2 EHABEEEEREAREL LA 31,345,554

Yunnan State-owned Assets
Operation Co., Ltd.
3 ERBEELNT 17,609,700

Kunming Jinghua Co.

2010F12A31H
31 December, 2010

2010F12A31H
31 December, 2010

20085 3A8H

8 March, 2008

HEAEREE
Commit to hold

as stated

in the agreement

I E ST
Commit to hold

as stated

in the agreement
16 B AR5% ) ik (7
AEG+H12AERA
Representing 5%
of the total share
capital, will be
traded after

G+12 months

4. W BEVEH Bk — B A S B A B 4.
5 15 JB 300 B g 1 DL

in the Company

BREREN—REANHEE

Name of the strategic investors and general legal persons

Description of agreed period of shareholding in respect of
strategic investors and general legal persons placing new shares

HESRIR
Agreed period

BEHK (RSB EREERA
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd.
THERBEEKEEREMELA

Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation Co., Ltd.

2010 12A31H
31 December, 2010
2010128 31H
31 December, 2010
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5. ¥ JBEJBE O B B N B A L 5.

ARERARFIERBRNERIZEHAREE
B8N E R EERIE A Z H R E R R

Controlling shareholders and actual holders

There was no change in the controlling shareholders and actual
holders during the reporting period. The flowchart below shows the

RAE M ITIER:

relationship between the actual holders and the Company:

AETEAEELEERESS
Shenyang State-owned Assets Supervisory
and Administration Commission

100%

ISR (SE) EREERF)
Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd

25.08%

RABRBMBEBMNBERAT
OB R BBRROARAT)
Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Co., Ltd.
(Sheniji Group Kunming Machine Tool Co., Ltd.)

i BBETARBNEFEEEEERZRGHEZ
HigHr)&G #A (FHF) BRE LR F100% K #E
FE#I49% - E #EEJANA Shenyang Holdings Corp.
RIEGHK (FB]) FREF L F130% R ER X%
A 19%RIEABEEZEAN U RIRIEEZERFH
5 E0 P #E 8

e EREERAMEATEAR Iv.

(#)§$‘%$ﬂ%f&%‘ﬂAﬁﬁ&% (1M

Note: Shenyang Shenyang State-owned Assets Supervisory and Administration

Commission intent to transfer of its 49% out of 100% shareholding of
Shenyang Machine Tool Group Co., Ltd (“Transaction”) (“Shenyang Group”)
and JANA Shenyang Holdings Corp., was confirmed as the transferee of
30% shareholding of Shenyang Group. The transferee of the rest 19%
shareholding of Shenyang Group is not confirmed yet. The Transaction needs
to be approved by the relevant government.

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT OFFICERS

CHANGES OF SHAREHOLDING HELD BY DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT OFFICERS

1R
Unit: Share
FHEB FHRE
3] L %] FNREY RizBE Bz E AR SDFE
Number of Number of
Number of shares shares Number of
shares held at increased decreased shares held
the beginning during during at the end of
Name Position of the year the period the period the period Reasons for change
LB & KARES 1,000 468 0 1,468 BALESEERMH K

Mr. Shen Guorong  Director

EROBRSEERS

due to Share Increase
and the consideration
of Share Reform

Bk B 46 5 A R B A AR (0 ¥ hn 468k 2
S S B AEAAT B ] » AR 2 BV A BT S AR
T BEARAER EEASRERALR
RERBH+N\EUA T FARBARR R
Al B A A B8 2 B AR LA -

Except for Mr. Shen Guorong, the director of the Company, who
increased his holding of 468 shares of the Company, at no time
during the period had the Company been arranged that any director,
supervisor or senior management officer (including their spouses
and children under 18 years of age) had any interest in, or any
rights to subscribe for equity of the Company and/or associated
corporations.
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() 39 W o 0 i) S S B S W (2) CHANGES IN DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND

WA B SENIOR MANAGEMENT OFFICERS
4 B 3 . EHEREH EHRILEEH
Name Position Sex Age Date of appointment Date of cessation
RER ARFBEER FNTES 8 40 2007438234 20084104 31H
Mr. Song Xingju Vice chairman of the Company, M March 23, 2007 October 31, 2008
non-executive director
K2 AAFMITES 3 35 20074 3A23H 2008F10A31H
Mr. Pi Jianguo Executive director M March 23, 2007 October 31, 2008
Ia| AREEHMTES 8 42 2007438234 20084104 31H
Mr. Wang Xing Non-executive director M March 23, 2007 October 31, 2008
METES ARARFHTES S 60 200743 A 23H 20085104 31H
Mr. Shen Guorong Non-executive director M March 23, 2007 October 31, 2008
REARABES 200211 A1H 20074 3A23H
Former supervisor November 1, 2002 March 23, 2007
2878 RARBILFNITES 3 43 200743 A 23H 20084 10H31H
Mr. Liu Minghui Independent non-executive director M March 23, 2007 October 31, 2008
RE ARABLENTES s 54 200743 A 23H 20085104 31H
Mr. Chen Ying Independent non-executive director M March 23, 2007 October 31, 2008
TR RARBUFNITES 58 52 200756 A 29A 2008F10A31H
Ms. Li Dongru Independent non-executive director F June 29, 2007 October 31, 2008
THRE ARAESEIR 8 59 2007438234 20084104 31H
Mr. Li Hongshu Chairman of the supervisory committee M March 23, 2007 October 31, 2008
5 2 #A AARESE £ 50 200743 A 23H 20084 10H31H
Mr. Zhang Weiming Supervisor M March 23, 2007 October 31, 2008
AR ARRESE 3 49 20074 3A23AH 20074 8A16H
Mr. Chi Delin Supervisor M March 23, 2007 August 16, 2007
TR RRAEE 3 45 200743 A 23H 20084 10A31H
Mr. Li Zhenxiong Supervisor M March 23, 2007 October 31, 2008
B FRITEE L2 52 2005468 16H 20074 3F23H
Mr. Lei Jinlu Non-executive director M June 16, 2005 March 23, 2007
== REAAFRBESER WTES 5 45 200211 A1H 2007F3F23H
Mr. Cheng Yunchuan Former vice chairman of the Company, M November 1, 2002 March 23, 2007
executive director
RAK REDBHITES 2 58 2002611 A1H 2007434 23H
Mr. Wu Ketian Former executive director M November 1, 2002 March 23, 2007
BTy RERRFHITES 5 60 200211 A1H 20074 3F23H
Mr. Guo Shangwu Former non-executive director M November 1, 2002 March 23, 2007
THE RARRBILFATES 5 67 200211 A1H 2007 3F23H
Mr. Yu Chengting Former independent non-executive director M November 1, 2002 March 23, 2007
2nf8 RARFRBILIRTES LS 56 200211 A1H 20074 3F23H
Mr. Tong Yunhuan Former independent non-executive director M November 1, 2002 March 23, 2007
2 REARAEEE LR 8 39 200211 A1H 20074 3F23H
Mr. Liu Gang Former chairman of the supervisory committee M November 1, 2002 March 23, 2007
FEE RERRESE 5 52 200211 A1H 2007F3F23H
Mr. Sun xingduo Former supervisor M November 1, 2002 March 23, 2007
HEE RARAIES 58 50 2002611 A1H 2007434 23H
Ms. Guo Junyu Former supervisor F November 1, 2002 March 23, 2007
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(3)

(1)

COMPLIED WITH THE APPENDIX 10, “MODEL CODE
FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF
LISTED ISSUERS”

During the reporting period, the Company complied with the
appendix 10, “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers” of Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited as regulation for securities transactions of
directors.

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MAMAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the reporting period, the Company has obtained a turnover
of RMB550,980,000, and a net profit of RMB94,343,000,
representing an increases of RMB194,081,000 and RMB72,813,000
respectively, as compared with the same period of last year’s
turnover of RMB356,889,000 and net profit of RMB21,530,000. Of
which, business of machine tool products obtained a turnover of
RMB443,637,000, and a net profit of RMB87,910,000, representing
an increases of 74.19% and 314.52% respectively as compared
with the same period of last year. Business of non-machine tool
products obtained a turnover of RMB110,218,000 and a net profit
of RMB12,982,000, representing an increase of RMB6,838,000 and
RMB8,457,000 respectively as compared with the same period of
last year.

Review the operation of the first half year 2007, the financial
indicators in respect of the proportion of producing CNC machines,
value-added products, productivity, operation revenue and the
current-assets turnover rate have largely increased as compared
with the same period of last year. Composite economic benefit
index is at the top of the list of the national machine tool industry.
The Company has achieved its 2007 operation target. Meanwhile,
the Company’s profitability, the quality of assets and the efficiency
of the operation improve rapidly. With abundant funds, low asset-
liability ratio, continuing changed new products, the Company has
fulfilled the conditions of development rapidly.These achievements
are the results from united in good faith, and hard working of the
whole staff of the Company. However, at the same time as we
reviewing the past, we have to integrate the Company’s current
situation, analyze our strengths and weakness, summarize our
experience and lessen so that we can achieve continuing
development.

According to the operation of the first half year 2007, the Company
still has the following problems:

1. Market: with the feedback information from the market, we
can see the market has strong demand in horizontal and floor-
type boring and milling machines. However, the company’s
supply of horizontal boring and milling machines falls short of
supply and the production scheduling of floor-type boring and
milling machines has planned to February 2008. The Company
will explore the potential productivity more.
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Production: The mainly restriction of the production are
technology and techniques, and short of key processing
equipment. Thus, we have to emphasize the accumulation of
experience of manufacturing some type of machines, and
tackle the problems of lack of key specialized equipments
through improve techniques. The Company has improve its
steps to purchase key production equipments. According to
the market demand for boring and milling machine in 2007
and the having signed sales contract of large numerical control
products of the Company, the Company has adjusted its
production plan.

Under the situation of the production scale fast expansion,
the Company needs to consider the relation between product
quantity and product quality, and maintain the Company’s
product reputation in the market.

Technology: The Company’s Technology Centre is building up
a united and technical mature youth team to upgrade the old
products and develop new products for the Company and
contribute to the production and sales service. In the second
half year 2007, besides doing planning well, the Technology
Centre needs to concern how to apply for the national-level
technology center and improve the product development level.

Technological renovation: the Company’s technological
renovation is surrounding how to improve the productivity
and the product’s quality. Overall, the technological renovation
is doing well except for some projects need to control the
progress in detail. The management method of some projects
needs to be improved.

After sale: The installation and testing of machines and after
sales service are not doing very well. The quantities of export
products are needed to increase and the working circumstance
needs to be improved. The transportation company should
think over how to make overall plans and take all factors into
consideration, balance internal and external work to ensure
the transportation safety.

Finance: The key emphasis in work of the second half year
2007 of financial department is mainly in fund management,
make a more scientific, reasonable financial management
system, internal control process and cost calculation system.

General: In the second half year 2007 and 2008, the staff of
the Company will communicate to each other when making
production scheduling and sales plan to push forward the
core concept of operation surrounding the market demand.
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(=) 0 A v) 3 B R W B %% (2) CHANGE OF FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS DURING THE

Az 1K % B i Bt W) REPORTING PERIOD AS COMPARED WITH THE SAME
PERIOD OF LAST YEAR

By ARKT T
Unit: RMB’000

By
X8 (LERM) |k BRIEE %

As at As at
30th June, 30th June, Increase/ Difference
HE Items 2007 2006 Decrease (%)
wEE Total assets 1,462,876.20 1,216,481.72 246,394.48 20.25
& 2T Operation profit 99,811.00 28,038.77 71,772.23 255.97
A8 Net profit 94,343.87 21,530.81 72,813.06 338.18

RekBeH Cash and cash equivalents

B Y F 18 N%E 85,554.82 (20,970.97) 106,525.79 -
i&% R = Shareholders’ equity 707,470.01 613,126.14 94,343.87 15.39

M

BEABEENERALAFELAELE
BRRT EERBERA BEELN
246,394F o, B ¥E B E A
234,905F Jt * [E & & E 1% /2,036 T
JTEE TR IN6,876T JTATEG

BENBERZA/THHERAKN
& 48 £ P

FEAMEARERETERA: 2 RHE
HREER HELABEL BUFEEF
RIPE R U E1,5728 SRR IEE T
S LB IE50% ) R IE

RE MRS EEYFIEMBAE N =
ERARMEHNHERALEER F
W ImE N

PR IR & R A B A B A
Bo

Total assets increased due to the production and operation
well this year and the assets-scale enlarged. Total assets
increased RMB246,394,000 including current assets increased
RMB234,905,000, fixed assets increased RMB2,036,000 and
construction in progress increased RMB16,876,000.

Operation profit increased due to sales revenue increased
largely.

The reasons for net profit increased are the sales-scale
expansion during the reporting period, sales structural
optimization so that gross profit margin increased and the
Company received 50% value-added tax return of
RMB15, 720,000 for CNC machines.

Cash and cash equivalent increased due to sales increased
during the reporting period, and net cash inflow increased.

Shareholders’ equity increased due to net profit increased
during the reporting period.
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i ARMTFT

Unit: RMB’000

Ho&
X (EERH) B|iR&E 18R EE

As at As at
30th June, 30th June, Increase/ Difference
HH Items 2007 2006 Decrease (%)
BEBES Cash and cash equivalents 252,349.08 166,794.26 85,554.82 51.29%
R E & Bills receivable 122,003.65 52,131.39 69,872.26 134.03%
JE W BR 3R Accounts receivable 186,525.38 134,782.95 51,742.43 38.39%
TE AT R K Prepayments 71,059.20 43,397.93 27,661.27 63.74%
HERER Short-term loans 20,000.00 40,000.00 (20,000.00) (50.00)%
78 W BR 3R Advances from customers 356,827.05 218,325.95 138,501.09 63.44%
TEETAE Estimated liabilities 6,354.31 3,554.56 2,799.75 78.77%
REER Long-term loans 50,000.00 20,000.00 30,000.00 150.00%
EELON Operating income 550,980.05 356,898.59 194,081.46 54.38%
BEK AR Operating cost 376,661.87 265,284.85 111,377.02 41.98%
EEEHR Operating expenses 26,079.60 18,469.70 7,609.89 41.20%
BERMEBKX Losses on impairment of assets 112.63 3,879.78 (3,767.15) (97.10)%
EEIMNIA Non-operating income 17,855.58 910.79 16,944.79 1860.45%
A, EEELIERS5120% RERAHE Cash and cash equivalents increased 51.29% due to sales

HAHEWRARBERRRITESFE

3 AN1000& 7T AT 8L

FEWEIRIEK134.03% - RERFER
HHEEWRAEEMEE RERITAL
R

JEULBE FE £38.39% © REARANRE
HAEERAKREER:

J’*EHEE RIER63.74%  REAREEH

BERRANEDESROTUARER
*““ﬁfﬂmi‘ﬁ [l &5 5MiE & & B 98 ~F
S pIIEE

B FUR A 50% - [RE—RANHIE R
Lﬁﬁﬁmm%ﬁq

T8 U AR g K 63. 44% E E2iTEA
B 1% % & B 78 Uk 3K

JETAREERT78.77% - 2REAXRETE
FEE=BER280& T

REERIER150% @ = E ARG
£ B f& 550008 7T

BRWA BERA BEEREER
B 7 7K 8 1 R 8 5 1A K 0B 98 B
B

BEREERIRDITANTIERAR
LHIFH R B BRI AR R 388 E T

revenue increased largely during the reporting period and bank
loans increased RMB10, 000,000.

Bills receivable increased 134.03% due to sales revenue
increased and the Company received many bank acceptance
bills.

Accounts receivable increased 38.39% due to sales increased
during the reporting period.

Prepayment increased 63.74% due to prepayment for
electronic system for producing CNC machines, orders from
Ser increased largely and contracts prepayment increased.

Short-term loans decreased 50% due to repayment of short-
term loans RMB20, 000,000 during the reporting period.

Advances from customers increased 63.44% due to orders
increased so that advances from customers increased.

Estimated liabilities increased 78.77% due to the prediction
of warrant fee of RMB2,800,000 will be paid during the
reporting period.

Long-term loans increased 150% due to the company received
long-term loans of RMB50,000,000 during the reporting period.

Operating income, operating cost, and operating expenses
increased due to sales revenue increased largely.

Losses on impairment of assets decreased 97.10% due to
the same period of last year the Company had provision for
bad debts diminution of RMB3,380,000 for Winko.
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K. Non-operating income increased due to 50% value-added tax
return for CNC machines. The value-added tax return

A R g 5 A A L i JEE IR

20074 EXFRALRAEMNER31.64% &
FERBR25.67% @ EA597HE S &
BEMEEFHEERERHREKERE
ETr6.62MA B A Hi- AR AT

(1) EBAEEEIRELESEERE
T

(2 HEHABEL ERBURLEIRKAER

=

B ERE hN13728 Fr Bk - increased RMB13,720,000 as compared with the same period
of last year.
(Z) B RBA KB EN A B 10% | (3) MAJOR PRODUCTS WHICH SALES REVENUE
i = B REPERENTING 10% OR MORE OPERATING INCOME OR
OPERATING PROFIT
By AREFT
Unit: RMB’000
EXBA EXRF E3 U
LEERK Lt ERR LLEERK
-2 198 -3 3% EFE%) 185 (%) 18R (%) 18 (%)
Difference Difference Difference
Business Segment Operating Operating Gross in operating in operating in gross
PUEHIER or Products income cost profit margin income cost profit margin
BRERHE Sales and processing 443,637 300,404 32.29% 74.19 58.67 £ j06.62{H
EMIER machine tool products BAH
Increased 6.62
percentage
points
S E S Sales, installation and 96,427 67,832 29.65% 9.48 -0.56  #mM7.10f
HE RRRK technical services of BAY
BT R highly efficient compressors Increased 7.10
percentage
points
20074 L ¥ F R A E IR & HE W AS50,980F During the first half year of 2007, the Company has obtained a
JC 8220064 A HR 1% & 194,081 F L H A : turnover of RMB550,980,000, representing an increase of
IR 3G 188,950 T 7T+ 118 74.19% : BERIE RMB194,081,000 as compared with same period of last year. Of
£8,347F 0 #£189.48% : I ELBKE which, machine tool products increased RMB188,950,000,
2007F E¥FEMKREBEHBBEEKRA representing an increase of 74.19%; Ser increased RMB8,347,000,
#180.52% + EF517.50% * SrHhEERAEE representing an increase of 9.48%. From the point of the view of
#798.02%, Lt & 5 51820065 £ F79.16% H0 sales structure, during the first half year of 2007, the sales of
TFE7.14% © machine tool products are representing 80.52% of the total sales,
and the sales of Ser are representing 17.50% of the total sales, as
compared with the year 2006, representing an increase of 9.16%
and a decrease of 7.14% respectively. The Sales of the above two
parties are together representing 98.02% of the total sales.
(V9) 32 BB B Al 5 AL OL - 198 R0 (4) ANALYSIS ON THE CHANGES OF THE MARKET AND THE

COSTS OF THE MAJOR BUSINESS

During the first half year of 2007, the gross profit margin of the
Company’s operation is 31.64%, as compared with last year’s gross
profit margin 25.67%, representing an increase of 5.97 percentage
points. The reasons for the increase of the gross profit margin of
the Company are due to the gross profit margin of machine tool
products increased 6.62 percentage points. Analysis are as the
following:

1. The large increase of the production causes the decrease of
fixed costs;
2. Improved sales structure and increased producing CNC

machine tool products.
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(L) 4 B 32 27 b o 2 I G O S8 Bt g (5) SALES TURNOVER BY BUSINESS SEGMENT OR MAJOR
PRODUCTS:
B ARE T
Unit: RMB’000
20065 ERE  2007F L F 11 123 L
EBBA EBBA SWE@HLA(%) [ #B 18 iR (%)
Increase or
decrease as
Proportion compared
of sales with
Turnover of Turnover of of machine the same
the first half the first half tools to total period of
RITEBRSESR Business Segment or Products year of 2006  year of 2007 sales (%) last year (%)
1% Business segment
MAREREE General equipment manufacturing 94,299 176,190 39.71 86.84
EREREREE Specialized equipment manufacturing 86,460 141,641 31.93 63.82
RBEEREREE  Transportation equipment manufacturing - 31,855 7.18 -
Hi s Others manufacturing 73,927 93,951 21.18 27.09
Em Products
BA S 8% 8% IR Horizontal boring and milling machines 107,025 171,485 38.65 60.23
& i 8 88 R Floor-type boring and milling machines 102,139 181,843 40.99 78.03
) = 5 8 8 R Table type boring and milling machines 18,376 35,046 7.9 90.72
BN Horizontal machine centers 19,776 15,539 3.5 (21.42)
JBE A2 4% IR Jig boring machines 6,439 10,432 2.35 62.01
Hih Others 931 29,292 6.61 30.46
B Total 254,686 443,637 100 74.19
i BOFSEXRBERREEEXE FFR Note: as compared with turnover of the same period of last year,
BB R R transportation equipment manufacturing has faster increased.
(N) A 3 85 e 3 I 43 i v &0 455 145 9L (6) ANALYSIS ON TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL AREAS
20065 L4 F 2007FE L4 F 11 33 kEtERM
EBBA EBWKA BEFLB (%) 18 (%)
Increase or
decrease as
Proportion compared
of sales with
Turnover of Turnover of of machine the same
the first half the first half tools to total period of
E Area year of 2006 year of 2007 sales (%) last year (%)
HEH [ Hua Dong Area 90,711 145,411 32.78 60.30
EAL i [R Hua Bei Area 41,996 66,963 15.09 59.45
fifeg: g South-west Area 36,854 61,705 13.91 67.43
(gl North-west Area - 58,508 13.19 -
Hfth i [ Other Areas 85,125 111,050 25.03 30.46
BEt Total 254,686 443,637 100 74.19
i B FFERBLEE FAIbHEEATER - Note: as compared with the same period of last year, sales in North-west

area increased.
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(&) 2007F L¥FH ¥ A RS EE757,758F 0 (7) DURING THE FIRST HALF YEAR OF 2007, THE AMOUNT OF NEWLY
TERBE N R485E - SIGNED CONTRACTS IS RMB757, 758,000 AND 485 MACHINES

HAVE BEEN PRODUCED.

(N\) IS REHEEAT L ARMEERENL (8) SALES REVENUE FROM TOP FIVE CUSTOMERS (MACHINE TOOL
Bl (HIRE5) HESBEAEF:57,2083F 7T PRODUCTS): SALES AMOUNT: RMB57, 203,000, REPRESENTING
HHEREELL E12.89% ° 12.89% OF THE TOTAL SALES.

(Ju) HEPEB A A B2 B A A &SN (9) REVIEW OF OPERATIONS FOR SUBSIDIARIES AND
BEH S CONTROLLING COMPANIES

B ARBTFIT
Unit: RMB’000

LFRER E$:4:3 1 TEESUBE HMEF REAR A
Major products Registered
Name of the companies Nature of business and services capital Total assets Net profit
ALERREBURKERRE BLEX R ERRE T RER 50,000 377,019 15,727
BEREMARA
Xi'an Ser Turbo Machinery Manufacturing Turbo machines

Manufacturing Company
Limited (“Xi'an Ser”)

RAEREALKEERAA g% RERKAHERR 27,960 - (938)
Shaanxi Hengtong Intelligent Manufacturing Laser prototyping machines

Machine Co., Ltd.
(“Shaanxi Hengtong”)

AERXARRBHERERLA % BHiLER 35,000 43,648 (2,114)
Xi'an Jiaotong University Siyuan Manufacturing Intelligent electrical appliances

Intelligent Electric Apparatus
Co., Ltd. (“Siyuan”)

ERRARKEIRSERAR HER BREvEERGERNES 20,230 18,423 357
Winko Machines Co., Ltd. (“Winko”) Manufacturing Computerized embroidery machines
RABHBRRER AT WEX RE R EEMHEE 5008 81,477 1,968
BEBRRKRIEmREM (B 7)

TOS Kunming Machine Tool Manufacturing Development, design, sales of 5 million

Manufacturing Co., Ltd. self-produced machines and (Euro)

(“TOS Kunming”) accessories
ERERNA EBWx TREE 500 2,824 (50)
Kuniji Transportation Co., Ltd. Transportation General cargo transportation
ARHEFRENETRHEERAA g BB R 5 A 60,000 70,734 (702)
Xi'an Ruite Laser Prototyping Manufacturing Laser prototyping series equipments

Manufacturing & Engineering
Research Co., Ltd. (“Xi’an Ruite”)

it Note:

1: AN ER2007F3 238 B ERAIEEE 1. On 23rd March, 2007, a resolution was passed at the 20th meeting of
BECTANESHEFZBEB SERBFEHK the 5th term board of directors which approved the Company use
FA1EE R B IR AN AIRELRZTIL its shareholding of Shaanxi Hengtong as consideration of
BEE1400& 7T - 2R AL i 1 R RE T RMB14,000,000.00 to acquire equity interest in the Xi’an Ruite.
BHAERAA]

2: ARB R EOL I RFRETEHRE 2. The Company holds 16.67% shareholders’ equity of Xi’an Ruite.

R F]16.67% A R 1 °
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BEMARTETEERERZMERAF
ErLEmRAMETO(ERERERT
A1) (TCPRID 1) B sFRIMGE - AR RIA T
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METABEFETEFZINRLEFRDIE
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BERA 2AMKE(PEARKNME QA
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THOER BREH(RRER) E1T TER:
BEMARRE-—FSREEARETR K
RrBEEsEEEREaa(tmAnEA
BEEEWE) RRERER T(AREM
BEEBEENE) /R FARES
RAEZEHER TRAFRAREERE) -

REHAN PRBEHFEEEELZET (@
RERME LT ARDABERBEEHEHEEE
FBAD) (LLTEEIEA])  2aREBEA
MERMGE—BE - HRRDABBELEHAZR
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B EEEENERGE)KEEEERE
B R2007FE7H 248 Ao

(=) A8 23 B 7 56 B B4 1% B

Lo #0009 S O3 I 7 AT
1% 9

2007 F4R 18 EAfEEESF =
—REBEFHEIIRX2007F 6529
HAMR2006FERRFSEFHIA
BT ARI006F EFBORAER 7
KA REBRA4RE283,243,255%
BEZ FI0RREXARE0ETLES
4R REIR S AR ¥ 16,994,595.3
o

SIGNIFICIENT EVENTS
CORPROATE GOVERNANCE

The Company complies throughout the period with Appendix 14
“Code on Corporate Governance Practices” of the listing rule issued
by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. And during the
reporting period, the Company followed the Appendix 10 “Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”
(the “Model Code”) of listing rules issued by the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited as regulation for securities transactions of
directors. After enquiring all the directors and supervisors of the
Company, the Board confirms that all directors and superiors of
the Company comply with the Mode Code.

In the reporting period, the Company made amendments to articles
of association of the Company pursuant to Company Law of the
PRC, Securities Law of the PRC, Guide to Articles of Association of
Listed Companies issued by China Securities Regulatory
Commission (“CSRC”) and relevant laws and regulations. The
Company further standardizes the disclosure information behavior,
and pursuant to Administration of Disclosure Information for Listed
Companies issued by CSRC, amended the Administration of
Disclosure Information for Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Co., Ltd. during
the reporting period. In order to tighten the Company’s control to
the subsidiaries, the Company amended the Administration of
Subsidiaries completely.

During the reporting period, CSRC issued “Notice on Matters
Pertaining to Special Activities In Strengthening Corporate
Governance of Listed Companies” (the “Notice”). Pursuant to the
requirement and unified arrangement of the Notice, the Company
conducted a full-scale self-inspection. “Self-inspection Report and
Rectification Proposal for Strengthening Corporate Governance”
(“Self-inspection Report”) has been considered and approved by
the board meeting and a related announcement was published on
July 24, 2007.

ALLOCATION PLAN OF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST DECEMBER, 2006 (“ALLOCATION PLAN OF PROFIT”)
AND IMPLEMENTATION

1. The Implementation of the Allocation Plan of Profit during the
Reporting Period

On April 18, 2007, the 21st board meeting considered and
approved the resolution of the Allocation Plan of Profit (“the
Resolution”) and on June 29, 2007, the 2006 AGM of the
Company approved the Resolution, which the Company would
distribute cash dividend of RMBO.6 dollar for every 10 shares,
totally distributing RMB16,994,595.30 to all shareholders
based on the aggregate of 283,243,255 shares of the
Company.
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2007 E7H4B R EEER BRHIGE
BT T B K[2007]6645% (B R
HEREN SR MEIBRNBERA
AEORBIN LT RBIDERBRE
WEBREBBBENBE (A TERE:
BA)  BASERA B
B B RIS BT 1993 F #t B & B 31T
REMNIR LT ARG CIHEHKESR
BERADERITH - A B F AR IE
HRAUNAFEERC ISR KEERR
KAEENEH=Z282 ZRRBUEE
EYRMEBERERE- AR A Lilox
EMRBZ— AR TEEHREIE
BB HERGFEEABRNAE MmME M
MENFARAESHFEINAQARE I
2006F 12 A31 B FE M o B FER
MA R ERA RN NIRFERSAF -
HRBERBEEABAABRYZBEND
BERER ARDRBLEERERS
A BH-HIERHRENER 2
AIRBESAR A REKRE M-

On July 4, 2007, the Company was notified that a notification
(the “Notification”) was issued by the State Administration of
Taxation (file no. B %{ 4[2007] 6645%) demanding the local
taxation authorities to correct the execution of the preferential
tax policy immediately which is still being applied to the nine
listed companies whose shares were issued in Hong Kong
under the approval of the State Council in 1993. The difference
in income tax resulted from the application of the expired
preferential tax policy in the previous years should be disposed
in accordance with the relevant rules of the Tax Collection
Management ({fE &%) ) . The Company is one of the above
mentioned nine companies and it cannot eliminate the
probability of any adjustment to the existing applicable income
tax rate which may affect the distributable profits for the year
ended 31 December 2006. Due to the State Administration of
Taxation has not set out any clear opinions to implement the
Notification, the Company has applied for the postponement
of the payment of cash dividend. As at the date of this report,
the Company has not implemented the payment of cash
dividend.

EEEIRT2007F FFETETHE 2. The board of directors has resolved that no dividend will be
Sl TETRAESEERA declared and no statutory surplus reserve will be converted
to share capital in the second half year of 2007.
(=) TR0k 3 29 (3) MAJOR LITIGATION
mERFAMEFER There was no major litigation during the reporting period.
(DY) ¢ 32 5 4 o (4) PURCHASE AND DISPOSAL OF ASSETS OR MERGER AND
ACQUISITION DURING THE PERIOD
1 W& E S D 1. Acquisition of assets
i3 There was no acquisition of assets during the reporting period.
2. HMEEERKR 2. Disposal of assets
i3 There was no disposal of assets during the reporting period.
3. HEBEMRWEN 3. Restructure of assets
i There was no restructure of assets during the reporting period.
4 WA BEE B 4 Merger of assets
i3 There was no merger of assets during the reporting period.
() 8% 390 A 2wl oK I B 52 5 3 oK (5) SIGNIFICANT CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
i There were no significant connected transactions during the

reporting period.
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(6) DESIGNATED CONTRACTS

There were no designated contracts during the reporting period.

(7) SUBCONTRACTING CONTRACTS

There were no subcontracting contracts during the reporting period.

(8) OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMNT

There was no operating lease arrangement during the reporting
period.

(9) GUARANTEE GIVEN IN THE REPORTING PERIOD

There was no guarantee given during the reporting period.

(10) ENTRUSTED INVESTMENT

1.

There was no new entrusted investment during the reporting
period.

On February 23, 2004, the Company entered into an agreement
with China Fortune Securities (“China Fortune”) for the
trusteeship of the management of investment in state bonds
(“the Trusteeship Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company
entrusted China Fortune to conduct investment on state bonds
with RMB50,000,000.00 (the “Fund ") for one year. However,
China Fortune failed to comply with the Trusteeship Agreement
to invest in state bonds but using the Fund to invest in stocks
and incurred huge losses. In August 2006, China Fortune was
performed the liquidation work in accordance with the decision
made by China Securities Regulation Commission. As at 31st
December, 2006, the Company has recognized the provision
for diminution in value of investment of RMB38,100,000.00
for the Fund. At the beginning of August, 2007, the Company
applied to unfreeze the Company’s capital account in China
Fortune Beijing Operating Department. On August 13, 2007,
the Company took back RMB32,030,000.00 of the Fund (The
Company has received the Fund proceeds of
RMB4,250,000.00 from China Fortune on March 1, 2004. Thus,
the Company totally took back RMB36,280,000.00 of the
Fund.)

(11) OTHER MAJOR CONTRACTS

There were no other major contracts during the reporting period.
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(12) COMMITMENTS

In the Acquisition Report to All Shareholders made by the
Board of Directors of the Company which published on 10th
March, 2006, Shenyang Group had undertaken that after the
acquisition, it would hold the shares of the Company for at
least five years. It would expend the Company business and
would not involve in the business or products which
detrimental the shareholders interest and the long-term
development of the Company.

In the Share Reform Proposal of the Company published on
10th November, 2006, Shenyang Group and Yunnan State-
owned Assets Operation Company Limited had promised that:

a. the shares of the Company held by the above two
shareholders would not be listed for trading from the
listing date of circulating share to 31st December, 2010.

b. after completion of the Share Reform in one year, the
above two shareholders would propose and consent to
the proposal of transfer of capital reserves to new shares
in the General Meeting for at least 5 shares would be
allocated to shareholders for every 10 existing shares.

C. they would propose and content to the proposal of
distribution of profit, not less than 50% of profits would
be distributed in form of cash if the performance of the
Company in 2006 or 2007 could meet the requirement
of profit distribution.

d. Shenyang Group had undertaken that it would expend
the Company business by offering support in terms of
technical production, corporate management and
resources expertise. It would combine its competitive
advantage expertise and restructure the related
resources based on the Company development principal
and formula within two years after the share transfer
and share reform. It would strive to improve the
Company competence in the business operation and
production development, to push the Company towards
a continuing healthy development environment.

During the reporting period, both parties had adhered to the Share
Reform Proposal.
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Commitments of previous sharcholders of non-circulating shares:

BEER REER REBTEA fis &£

Name of shareholder Commitment Performance Remark

BHEEK (RE)ER FERHBEESEMRAE, ARZ2010F12A31H 1L AEBRTBRRAT
FARHEERE TRARSMHEZHEE.

BEEELE

BEREAERA

Shenyang Machine Tool
(Group) Company
Limited (“Shenyang
Group”) and Yunnan
State-owned Assets
Operation Company
Limited (“Yunnan
Company”)

BERRK (RE)ER
BEELAHEERE
BREELS
BEREAERA

Shenyang Group and
Yunnan Company

BHERRK (B AR

ERARHERE
BREERS
EREFEATA

Shenyang Group and

The shares of the Company held by the two shareholders
would not be listed for trading from the listing date of
circulating share to 31st December, 2010.

ERYERE—FR BERRAS LREVASEN
BAQES EBRH mﬁ%:E#%W$ﬁm
AN E S

After completion of the Share Reform in one year,
the two shareholders would propose and consent
to the proposal of transfer of capital reserves
to new shares in the General Meeting
for at least 5 shares would be allocated to shareholders
for every 10 existing shares.

AN FI2006F 52007 F Fifm B MR E S EAH GG
WEhiﬁAiF%I BB EWW%M
BeHANFHE Mﬁ%

They would propose and content to the proposal of

Performed the
commitment well

ERETERLRH

Performed the
commitment well

ERBTERRH

Performed the

EHE 7 RE®iB200746A 290

BRM2006FERRFE
Bk AREHMARRE
REBERIR.

The proposal regarding the

commitment was passed
at the 2006 AGM and

class meetings held on
June 29, 2007. The
Company would implement
the proposal after receiving
the approval from
relevant government.

672908 A R K20065F & Ik £

Re#tk ERBHRMIEL
BRRABERDR

The proposal regarding

Yunnan Company distribution of profit, not less than 50% of profits would commitment well
be distributed in form of cash if the performance of
the Company in 2006 or 2007 could meet

the requirement of profit distribution.

the commitment was passed
at the 2006 AGM and class
meetings held on June 29,
2007. The Company would
implement the proposal
after receiving the approval
from relevant government.

E%%ﬁﬁlﬁ“*ﬁﬁﬁt (BEMERE2EXE
AABER VAGERESENRESERE TN

Wizm,umaﬁﬁﬁgﬁ'&ﬁﬁﬂ#tm AR
BRNRANAABESERERANT S BEARAER
ﬁﬁﬂﬁ~¥%%§ﬂ§%%@%§%¥;'%ﬁiﬁﬂ
REFTRARERRER.

Shenyang Group had undertaken that it would expend
the Company business by offering support in terms of
technical production, corporate management and resources
expertise. It would combine its competitive advantage
expertise and restructure the related resources based
on the Company development principal and formula within
two years after the share transfer and share reform.
It would strive to improve the Company competence
in the business operation and production development,
to push the Company towards a continuing healthy
development environment.

ERETERRY

Performed the
commitment well

Shenyang Group
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(14)

15)

1. On April 18, 2007, the resolution (“Resolution”) of the
appointment of Zonzun Accounting Office Limited (7 & &t
B &7 T AR A 7)) as the Company’s auditor in mainland
China for the year 2007 was passed at the 21st board meeting.
The Resolution was passed at the 2006 AGM and the
remuneration is RMB400,000.

2. At the 2006 AGM held on June 29, 2007, the resolution of
re-appointment of Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
Company’s auditors in Hong Kong for the year ending 31
December, 2007 was vetoed by the shareholders.

3. The 26th board meeting was held on July 19, 2007 to consider
and approve the motion proposed by three independent non-
executive directors to appoint KPMG as the Company’s
auditors in Hong Kong for the year ending 31 December,
2007 for the remuneration of RMB1,300,000.

PENALTIES TO THE COMPANY, ITS DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT OFFICERS,
SHAREHOLDERS AND ACTUAL HOLDERS, AND THE
ISSUE OF RECTIFICATION

Nil

OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS, EFFECTS OF THESE
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND RESOLUTIONS

On July 4, 2007, the Company was notified that a notification (the
“Notification”) was issued by the State Administration of Taxation
(file no. B %% :4[2007]6645%) demanding the local taxation authorities
to correct the execution of the preferential tax policy immediately
which is still being applied to the nine listed companies whose
shares were issued in Hong Kong under the approval of the State
Council in 1993. The difference in income tax resulted from the
application of the expired preferential tax policy in the previous
years should be disposed in accordance with the relevant rules of
the Tax Collection Management ({{E& %) ). The Company is one
of the above mentioned nine companies. Due to the State
Administration of Taxation has not set out any clear opinions to
implement the Notification, the Company cannot confirm the impact
of this event on the financial results. During the reporting period,
the Company has not adjusted the preferential tax policy and the
profit tax rate is still the same as last fiscal year.
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(16) COMPANY’S DESIGNATED NEWSPAPER AND INTERNET
WEBSITES FOR PUBLISHING

E 3] HEETEBRRE HEBa ™ HEHEBHARERERERE
Event Published Press Date of publishing Relevant website
ERBRRERTE NS (PEFESHR (LEFEHFR) 2007F6722H http://www.sse.com.cn#l

Resolutions of Board Meeting

t

ERRKES

8
B
of

Resolutions of Board Meeting

ERAMKRESTENSE

Resolutions of Board Meeting

ERARKERBR

2006 Annual Results

EABKER

Annual Report

(BrE®R) FEB(ER) -

{THE STANDARD)

“China Securities Daily”,
“Shanghai Securities Daily”,
“Securities Times”,

“Hong Kong Wen Wei Po”
and “THE STANDARD”

(FEZEZH) (LBFHFH)
(BrE®R) FEEBE(XER)

{THE STANDARD)

“China Securities Daily”,
“Shanghai Securities Daily”,
“Securities Times”,

“Hong Kong Wen Wei Po”
and “THE STANDARD”

(PEZEF®) (LBEF®)
(BHE®R) FEB(XER) -

{THE STANDARD)

“China Securities Daily”,
“Shanghai Securities Daily”,
“Securities Times”,

“Hong Kong Wen Wei Po”
and “THE STANDARD”

(hEZEH®) (LEEHFHR)
(BrE®R) FEB(ER) -

{THE STANDARD)

“China Securities Daily”,
“Shanghai Securities Daily”,
“Securities Times”,

“Hong Kong Wen Wei Po”
and “THE STANDARD”

(PFEZESZH) (LBFEHFH)
(BrE®R) BE(XER)

{THE STANDARD)

“China Securities Daily”,
“Shanghai Securities Daily”,
“Securities Times”,

“Hong Kong Wen Wei Po”
and “THE STANDARD”

June 22, 2007

2007 6A14H

June 14, 2007

200756 H12H

June 12, 2007

200744 H19H

April 19, 2007

20074 A19H

April 19, 2007

http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A 4341 - www.jkht.com3k
www.kmtcl.com
http://www.sse.com.cnl
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A A HE : www.jkht.comk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cnfl
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A A HE : www.jkht.comk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cn#l
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A HE : www.jkht.comk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cn#l
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A HE : www.jkht.comk
www.kmtcl.com
http://www.sse.com.cnfll
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A A HE : www.jkht.comak
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cnill
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A UL - www.jkht.comak
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cnfl
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A A HE : www.jkht.comk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cnfl
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A A HE : www.jkht.comk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cnfll
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A HE : www.jkht.comk
www.kmtcl.com
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R

Event

HEHETEBREE
Published Press

H#&B
Date of publishing

TS ERAREREREE

Relevant website

ERBEHAE

Announcement on part of
shareholding of Shenyang
Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd.
was listed for transferring

ERBREERAWHRASE

Announcement on profit estimate

RAMBREERS

Clarification Announcement

RAMBARBEEHEE NS

Change of A Shares’ Short Name

ZARHR B T R

\%/ %

Connected Transaction

(PERZEHZ®) (LBEF®R) -
(BHRE®R) FECUER)

{THE STANDARD)

“China Securities Daily”,
“Shanghai Securities Daily”,
“Securities Times”,

“Hong Kong Wen Wei Po”
and “THE STANDARD”

(PEZESF®R) (LBEFR) -
(BERR) BBCER)

{THE STANDARD)

“China Securities Daily”,
“Shanghai Securities Daily”,
“Securities Times”,

“Hong Kong Wen Wei Po”
and “THE STANDARD”

(FEZEZ®) (LBFEF®R) -
(BHE®R) BB (ER)

{THE STANDARD)

“China Securities Daily”,
“Shanghai Securities Daily”,
“Securities Times”,

“Hong Kong Wen Wei Po”
and “THE STANDARD”

(PERZEHZ®) (LBFEF®R) -
(BHRE®R) FECUER)

{THE STANDARD)

“China Securities Daily”,
“Shanghai Securities Daily”,
“Securities Times”,

“Hong Kong Wen Wei Po”
and “THE STANDARD”

(PEZEF®R) (LBEFR) -
) BB CER)

(F& 7By
(THE STANDARD)

“China Securities Daily”,
“Shanghai Securities Daily”,
“Securities Times”,

“Hong Kong Wen Wei Po”
and “THE STANDARD”

20074 H16H

April 16, 2007

20074 H12H

April 12, 2007

20074 A 5H

April 5, 2007

20074 R 4R

April 4, 2007

200743 H30H

March 30, 2007

http://www.sse.com.cnfll
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A A 4E  www.jkht.comsk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cn#l
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A48 4E  www.jkht.comsk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cn#l
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A A8 4E  www.jkht.comsk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cn#l
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A48 4E  www.jkht.comEk,
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cn#ll
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A 7484 - www.jkht.com
sk www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cnfll
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A A HE : www.jkht.com
=z www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cnfll
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A48 HE  www.jkht.comEk,
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cn#l
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A A8 4E  www.jkht.comsk,
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cn#l
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A48 4E  www.jkht.comsk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cnfll
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A48 4E  www.jkht.comsk,
www.kmtcl.com
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BN

Event

HENHETEBRRE
Published Press

il AR
Date of publishing

RO ERAALREREE

Relevant website

RAMBEEFERELS

Resolutions of Board Meeting

RAMBREEEREQE

Resolutions of Supervisory
Committee

RAMKBEB R 5N E

Connected Transaction

T REHR2007FF — X
BRERRAGRZAE

Results of 2007 First EGM

LT REHR2007FEF — &

BRERAGEZEEAE

Legal Opinions on 2007 First EGM

(PFEZESZH) (LBFHFH)
(BrE®R) FEE(XER)

{THE STANDARD)

“China Securities Daily”,
“Shanghai Securities Daily”,
“Securities Times”,

“Hong Kong Wen Wei Po”
and “THE STANDARD”

(PEZEF®) (LBREF®)
(BHE®R) FEB(ER) -

{THE STANDARD)

“China Securities Daily”,
“Shanghai Securities Daily”,
“Securities Times”,

“Hong Kong Wen Wei Po”
and “THE STANDARD”

(hEEH®) (LEEHFHR)
FR|) FHECUER)

(&
{THE STANDARD)

“China Securities Daily”,
“Shanghai Securities Daily”,
“Securities Times”,

“Hong Kong Wen Wei Po”
and “THE STANDARD”

(FEZEZH) (LBFFH)
(BrE®R) BE(XER)

{THE STANDARD)

“China Securities Daily”,
“Shanghai Securities Daily”,
“Securities Times”,

“Hong Kong Wen Wei Po”
and “THE STANDARD”

(PERZESZ®) (LBREFH)
(Brlm) BB(XER)

{THE STANDARD)

“China Securities Daily”,
“Shanghai Securities Daily”,
“Securities Times”,

“Hong Kong Wen Wei Po”
and “THE STANDARD”

20074 3A27H

March 27, 2007

20073 A 27H

March 27, 2007

20074 3H27H

March 27, 2007

20074 3A26H

March 26, 2007

200743 A 26H

March 26, 2007

http://www.sse.com.cnl
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A A HE : www.jkht.comk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cn
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A HE : www.jkht.comk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cn#l
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A HE : www.jkht.comk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cnfll
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A 4341 - www.jkht.comsk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cnill
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A 4341 - www.jkht.com3k
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cn
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A A HE : www.jkht.comk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cn#
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A A HE : www.jkht.comk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cnfll
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A HE s www.jkht.comk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cnfll
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A HE : www.jkht.comk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cnfll
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A A HE : www.jkht.comak
www.kmtcl.com
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L 3]

Event

HEHETEBREE
Published Press

HEBE 8
Date of publishing

TS ERAREREREE

Relevant website

SEMBERENBERENRERISE

Announcement on Implementation

of Share Reform

SRMEEFTEHMNENER LA

20074 & — KB B
BEXEHQEL

Resolutions of Board Meeting

for adjourning 2007 first EGM

SEMBEAREEBER AN R

9 /N

Announcement on implementation

of Share Increase

SESRE TN

Overseas Regulatory Announcement

SRMBEEFTEASE

Resolutions of Board Meeting

(PERZEHZ®) (LBEF®R) -
(BHRE®R) FECUER)

{THE STANDARD)

“China Securities Daily”,
“Shanghai Securities Daily”,
“Securities Times”,

“Hong Kong Wen Wei Po”
and “THE STANDARD”

(PEZEF®R) (LBEFR) -
(BERR) BBCUER)

{THE STANDARD)

“China Securities Daily”,
“Shanghai Securities Daily”,
“Securities Times”,

“Hong Kong Wen Wei Po”
and “THE STANDARD”

(FEZEZ®) (LBFEHF®R) -
(BHRE®R) BB (ER)

{THE STANDARD)

“China Securities Daily”,
“Shanghai Securities Daily”,
“Securities Times”,

“Hong Kong Wen Wei Po”
and “THE STANDARD”

(PEESF®R) (LEEZFHR)
(BHRE®R) BFECUER)

{THE STANDARD)

“China Securities Daily”,
“Shanghai Securities Daily”,
“Securities Times”,

“Hong Kong Wen Wei Po”
and “THE STANDARD”

(PEZEF®) (LBEFR) -
(BERR) BBCER)

{THE STANDARD)

“China Securities Daily”,
“Shanghai Securities Daily”,
“Securities Times”,

“Hong Kong Wen Wei Po”
and “THE STANDARD”

2007 3H2H

March 2, 2007

2007 2H9H

February 9, 2007

2007 2H5H

February 5, 2007

2007F2H1H

February 1, 2007

20071 H12H

January 12, 2007

http://www.sse.com.cnfll
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A 4E  www.jkht.comsk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cn#l
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A48 4E  www.jkht.comsk,
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cn#l
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A48 4E  www.jkht.comsk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cnll
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A48 4E  www.jkht.comsk,
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cn#l
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A48 HE : www.jkht.comsk,
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cn#l
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A A 4E  www.jkht.comsk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cnfll
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A A8 4E  www.jkht.comsk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cn#l
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A48 4E  www.jkht.comsk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cn#l
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A48 4E  www.jkht.comsk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cnfll
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A48 HE : www.jkht.comE,
www.kmtcl.com
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R

Event

HEHETEBRRE
Published Press

S ERARERERIEEE

Relevant website

H#BE 8
Date of publishing

SR BB B F2007F £ — )
BERREAENEMN

Notice of 2007 First EGM

SRB MM REL ENFER
BRHNERERS

Indicative announcement on the
Progress of Share Reform

SRMEREFERELE

Resolutions of Board Meeting

(PEBELHHR) (LBEFE)
(FEHB ) - FiE CUER)
{THE STANDARD)

“China Securities Daily”,
“Shanghai Securities Daily”,
“Securities Times”,

“Hong Kong Wen Wei Po”
and “THE STANDARD”

(PEZEF®) (LBREF®)
(BHE®R) BEB(ER) -

{THE STANDARD)

“China Securities Daily”,
“Shanghai Securities Daily”,
“Securities Times”,

“Hong Kong Wen Wei Po”
and “THE STANDARD”

(FEZEZH) (LBFHFH)
(BrE®R) BE(XER)

{THE STANDARD)

“China Securities Daily”,
“Shanghai Securities Daily”,
“Securities Times”,

“Hong Kong Wen Wei Po”
and “THE STANDARD”

http://www.sse.com.cnfll
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A HE : www.jkht.comk
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cn#l
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A AU www.jkht.comak
www.kmtcl.com

200741 A12H

January 12, 2007

http://www.sse.com.cn#l
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A AU www.jkht.comak
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cnfl
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A 4341 - www.jkht.comsk

www.kmtcl.com

200741 H10H

January 10, 2007

http://www.sse.com.cnfl
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A 4341 - www.jkht.com3k
www.kmtcl.com

http://www.sse.com.cnfll
http://www.hkex.com.hk :
A A A HE : www.jkht.comk
www.kmtcl.com

200741 A5H

January 5, 2007
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L MHRE - R VII. FINANCIAL REPORTS-UNAUDITED
e v B 6wt o H) 4 A. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH PRC ASBEs
(—) MH#mE (1) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
wEAMR BALANCE SHEET
mElBEA R RKERBIERNERA A Prepared by: Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Co., Ltd.
200746 A30H CHEEMARET
As at 30th June, 2007 Unit: RMB
20075 6A 300 2006128 318
18 BAFH A8 BALF A8
30th June, 2007 31st December, 2006
gE ASSETS Line The Company The Group The Company The Group
KHEE: Current Assets: 1
E¥Ee Cash and cash equivalents 2 217,602,619.61 252,349,083.26 113,884,419.17 166,794,262.63
RHUEREE Trading financial assets 3 - - - -
EhER Bills receivable 4 83,167,812.48 122,003,648.32 30,149,988.21 52,131,390.23
il Dividend receivable 5 2,000,000.00 - 2,000,000.00 -
FEYFI & Interest receivable 6 - - - -
& U BE X Accounts receivable 7 126,468,302.14 186,525,381.39 88,050,935.92 134,782,948.68
H 4 e I FR Other receivables 8 21,784,998.25 17,338,650.75 20,990,947.69 14,790,963.34
BRER Prepayments 9 13,311,823.62 71,059,202.24 9,227,357.17 43,397,932.37
BE Inventories 10 135,377,011.11 258,311,615.96 171,945,236.11 260,784,768.61
—FREHHIERHEE Non-current assets within one year 1 - - - -
HiREEE Other current assets 12 - - - -
mBEESH TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 13 599,712,567.21 907,587,581.92 436,248,884.27 672,682,265.86
FnBEE: NON-CURRENT ASSETS: 14
AN ESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 15 11,902,402.80 11,902,402.80 11,902,402.80 11,902,402.80
EHRERE Long-term equity investment 16 107,018,253.53  36,160,339.67  120,199,638.18  35,341,128.79
BEEE: FIXED ASSETS: 17
BEBEERE Fixed assets at cost 18 480,532,299.99 578,283,499.45 470,563,276.03 571,146,119.54
B REHE Less: accumulated depreciation 19 187,364,539.36 216,720,307.08 182,696,146.79 211,099,118.62
ATEEFE FIXED ASSETS,
NET BOOK VALUE 20 293,167,760.63 361,563,192.37 287,867,129.24 360,047,000.92
B BTEEMMEXERE  Less: provision for impairment loss 21 2,457,156.91 7,825,303.57 2,681,481.88 8,345,323.87
ETEERR FIXED ASSETS,
NET REALISABLE VALUE 22 290,710,603.72 353,737,888.80 285,185,647.36 351,701,677.05
IRWE Project materials 23 - - - -
TEIR Construction in progress 24 44,156,549.52 75,428,128.85 26,859,057.05 58,552,347.28
EEEEEE Disposal of fixed assets 25 - - - -
BVEE INTANGIBLE ASSETS 26 22,254,637.36 43,391,387.72 23,243,334.54 51,515,620.64
REGEER Long-term deferred expenditures 27 - 181,348.20 - 198,479.70
HtERBEE Other non-current assets 28 - - - -
EEFMEHEE Deferred tax assets 29 35,242,868.72 34,487,122.14 36,026,762.07 34,587,799.44
FRBEESH TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 30 511,285,315.65 555,288,618.18 503,416,842.00 543,799,455.70
aEE TOTAL ASSETS 31 1,110,997,882.86 1,462,876,200.10 939,665,726.27 1,216,481,721.56
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wRE AR ) BALANCE SHEET (Continued)
2007464 30H PHEEMARKT
As at 30th June, 2007 Unit: RMB
2007568 300 20065128 3180
Y BLFH Ay 15N afE
LIABILITIES AND 30th June, 2007 31st December, 2006
ARARBRES SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY Line The Company The Group The Company The Group
wEHAR: CURRENT LIABILITIES: 32
SR Short-term loans 33 - 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00  40,000,000.00
EREE Bills payable 34 - 194,400.00 - -
T BR 3R Accounts payable 35 76,243,508.44 127,757,093.98 71,824,401.84 113,675,973.10
BUER R Advances from customers 36 189,720,311.88 356,827,048.46 115,126,650.06 218,325,953.57
JET B T 5 Accrued salary 37 30,068,664.07 33,706,886.23 31,053,989.48 33,951,419.60
& 5 7% Dividends payable 38 - 1,176,869.81 - 1,176,869.81
B S Taxes payable 39 2447098135  25486,843.57  19,334,44552  23,595,496.03
HE AR Other payables 40 10,626,489.47 31,810,721.06 22,958,629.92 49,124,814.98
Bt BE Estimated liabilities 4 6,354,312.25 6,354,312.25 3,554,560.13 3,554,560.13
—EMHHHERBEE  Non-current liabilities within one year 42 342,168.90 342,168.90 684,337.80 684,337.80
EtneaE Other current liabilities 43 - 9,640.18 - -
nHAGESH TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 44 337,826,436.36 603,665,984.44 284,537,014.24 484,089,425.01
Ed DR NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES: 45
RBER Long-term loans 46 50,000,000.00 50,000,000.00 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
Bz Deferred gain 47 3,979,579.96 3,979,579.96 4,116,806.85 4,116,806.85
REEMHK Long-term payable 48 2,920,446.50 10,120,446.50 2,855,966.60 10,055,966.60
HEERY Specific payables 49 3,262,085.50  11,362,085.50 3,211,68050  11,311,680.50
EEmMEHEE Deferred tax liabilities 50 10,366,499.07 2,622,208.91 10,211,074.97 2,466,784.81
EtERSEE Other non-current liabilities 51 - - - -
FRBREBSH TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 52 70,528,611.03 78,084,320.87 40,395,528.92 47,951,238.76
ARG TOTAL LIABILITIES 53 408,355,047.39 681,750,305.31 324,932,543.66 532,040,663.77
BRER: SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY: 54
LN Share capital 55 283,243,255.00 283,243,255.00 245,007,400.00 245,007,400.00
EARE Capital reserve 56 274,245,863.29 274,245,863.29 312,481,718.29 312,481,718.29
YN Surplus reserve 57 20,298,114.29 20,298,114.29 20,298,114.29 20,298,114.29
ROEAH Unappropriated profits 58 124,855,602.90 129,682,781.65 36,945,950.04 35,338,908.22
BERBAGMEE Total owner’s equity attributable to
#EaH the holders of the parent company 59 702,642,835.47 707,470,014.22 614,733,182.61 613,126,140.80
PEERER Minority interests 60 - 73,655,880.57 - 71,314,916.98
REEREESH TOTAL EQUITY 61 702,642,835.47 781,125,894.79 614,733,182.61 684,441,057.79
ARRBERERAH TOTAL LLIABILITIES AND EQUITY 62 1,110,997,882.86 1,462,876,200.10 939,665,726.27 1,216,481,721.56
BRUBEA: = BA 12 Company Representative: ~ Mr. Gao Minghui,
BUEFEGHIENEBREA: Jr-g==1 Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Pi Jianguo,
gIRBEAEEA: B Prepared by: Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
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IR ES

REIEL: S AREBEBOBRQA

STATEMENT OF INCOME

Prepared by: Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Co., Ltd.

2007 6A SHEMARET
For The The Six Months Ended 30th June, 2007 UNIT: RMB
20074E6R 20064 6R
18 BAF a8 BAF afE
For the six months ended 30th June
2007 2006
HE ITEMS Line The Company The Group The Company The Group
— HERA Principal operating income 1 443,636,570.29 550,980,050.97 254,686,342.47 356,898,593.44
B BERA Less: Principal operation cost 2 300,404,202.37  376,661,865.92  189,327,028.58  265,284,845.55
EERSRMM Principal operation tax
and addition 3 - 425,475.13 - 453,898.71
= 5 & Selling expenses 4 21,539,731.09 26,079,598.48 13,435,841.48 18,469,704.34
EBER Administrative expenses 5 35,435,919.35 45,084,787.61 27,671,636.52 39,003,257.11
BHBER Financial expenses 6 1,496,681.21 2,235,235.14 2,000,568.87 3,310,448.87
AENERX Losses on impairment of
assets 7 - 112,625.48 - 3,879,777.88
m: AREEZEHNE Add: income from the changes
(BRI RET from the fair value 8 - - - -
m: BEKE Add: investment income 9 (844,974.74) (569,467.96) 1,975,884.74 1,542,110.90
Hep:HH = EEN Including: investment income
AEMENRENS from associates and
joint venture companies 10 818,615.35 818,615.35 (353,043.85) (353,043.85)
. BENE Principal operating profits 11 83,915,061.53 99,810,995.24 24,227,151.77 28,038,771.89
m: EEIMEA Add: Non-operating income 12 17,810,670.22 17,855,581.22 450,009.89 910,790.23
W EEMTH Less: Non-operating expenses 13 1,215,095.85 1,244,924.32 356,739.99 387,647.98
Hb :kRBEE Including:Loss on disposal
REBEX of non-current assets 14 1,200,803.55 1,200,803.55 327,485.70 333,983.71
= FHEE Profit before income tax 15 100,510,635.90 116,421,652.14 24,320,421.67 28,561,914.14
B FEH Less: Income tax 16 12,600,983.04 13,906,900.32 3,112,855.22 2,308,277.00
m- FFE Net profit for the period 17 87,909,652.86 102,514,751.83 21,207,566.45 26,253,637.14
GEREARMBEN Net profit attribute to the equity
3 holders’ of parent company 18 87,909,652.86 94,343,873.43 21,207,566.45 21,530,808.08
SERERBER Minority interests 19 - 8,170,878.40 - 4,722,829.06
I BhYa Earnings per share 20
() EXxE RS (1)  Basic EPS 21 0.33 0.08
() HEERkE (2)  Diluted EPS 22 0.00 0.03 0.00 0.08
BRABA: = B 8 Company Representative: ~ Mr. Gao Minghui,
BUFESHIENEREA: -g=4E1 Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Pi Jianguo,
EEHRBEEEA: HHIB S Prepared by: Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
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BREewak CASH FLOW STATEMENT
BB R KEEBHERHBR AR PREPARED BY: JIAODA KUNJI HIGH-TECH CO., LTD
2007458 CEELARKT
Year 2007 (January-June) Unit: RMB
&#
18 BAT aHs
B%®HAE ITEMS Line The Company The Group
— KeIfRELANEERE 1. Cash flows from operating activities 1

HERM RESHRNRS

Cash received from sales of goods

or rendering of services 2 381,337,901.81 551,242,561.54
WEMEERE Return of taxes and surcharges received 3 16,227,273.85 16,310,836.54
BEMEmRELEHEENRE Other cash received relating to
operating activities 4 249,757.92 4,098,259.86
5 0.00 0.00
BemANE Sub-total of cash inflows 6 397,814,933.58 571,651,657.94
EERQ BEXSBIANAS Cash paid for goods and services 7 141,333,263.72 304,896,251.56
IRGEBRINERABRIZANRE Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 8 61,004,627.94 71,071,712.45
YHEERE Taxes and surcharges paid 9 48,531,663.98 55,837,112.42
IRMEMEELEHEENRE Other cash paid relating to
the operating activities 10 26,000,591.72 34,271,409.20
11 0.00 0.00
Aembhat Sub-total of cash outflows 14 276,870,147.36 466,076,485.63
REETHELENRASNEFE Net cash flows from operating activities 15 120,944,786.22 105,575,172.31
= RETHELENFEERE 2. Cash flow from investing activities 16 0.00
Wm & & TSRS Cash received from sale of investments 17 0.00 (1,367,894.02)
NEREREMEIHAES Cash received from return on investment 18 0.00 0.00
RERTEE BREEM Net cash received from disposal of
HEHtRBEEMERARLFE fixed assets, intangible assets and
other long-term assets 19 1,028,640.00 2,789,761.90
BEMHEMEREEHEENRE Other cash received relating to
investing activities 20 1,230,216.27 1,000,952.08
21 0.00 0.00
BEMANG Sub-total of cash inflows 22 2,258,856.27 2,422,819.96
HERTEE BREEM Cash paid to acquire fixed assets,

EfRBEEMIANAS intangible assets, and long-term assets 23 28,695,456.63 32,105,077.73
REMTANRE Cash paid for investment 24 0.00 0.00
XNWEMEREEHEENRE Other cash paid relating to

investing activities 25 0.00 0.00

26 0.00 0.00

BEm /et Sub-total of cash outflows 27 28,695,456.63 32,105,077.73
REGZHELNRENEFE Net cash flow from investing activities 28 (26,436,600.36) (29,682,257.77)
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BeERER ) CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)
2007F & SHEM:ARET
Year 2007 (January-June) Unit: RMB
&8
TR BAH aHE
B&ER ITEMS Line The Company The Group
= BEATHDEANEERE 3. Cash flow from financing activities 29 0.00 0.00
WU R E R EIRRE Cash received from capital contribution 30 0.00 0.00
DRERMKIHES Cash from borrowings 31 50,000,000.00 52,000,000.00
LBZ@JE’JEIWJA? EHEBAMERS Other cash received relating to
financing activities 32 0.00 (980,491.34)
33 0.00 0.00
BERmANGT Sub-total of cash inflows 34 50,000,000.00 51,019,508.66
ERBEBMXTNRS Loan interest paid 35 40,000,000.00 40,000,000.00
2 EHQ ) EAE AR S Cash payment for distribution of dividends,
i e profits and payments of interest expenses 36 718,876.46 1,266,651.85
IRNEMEEREHEENRE Other cash paid relating to
financing activities 37 0.00 19,841.76
38 0.00 0.00
B d/hat Sub-total of cash outflows 42 40,718,876.46 41,286,493.61
CERYELANBRERETFHE Net cash flow from financing activities 43 9,281,123.54 9,733,015.05
M EXFHHRENTEE 4. Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes on cash 44 (71,108.96) (71,108.96)
7 ReLBReSEYFENSE 5. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 45 103,718,200.44 85,554,820.63
BANBEA: = B 8 Company Representative:  Mr. Gao Minghui,
BUFEGIIENEREA: FEE Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Pi Jianguo,
T EEBEA: HHIE Prepared by: Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
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Bleme®

CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

2007 [F LEEMARET
Year 2007 (January-June) Unit: RMB
]
1k BATH aHE
wEEH Supplementary Information Line The Company The Group
1. BEFNBEASALEEHRELRE 1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows
from operating activities 51 0.00
FFE Net Profit 52 87,909,652.86 94,343,873.43
me DR RAE Y Add: Gain of minority interest 53 0.00 8,170,878.40
HREOEENELEE Provision for diminution in value of assets 54 (1,192,031.02) (1,192,031.02)
EEEERE Depreciation of fixed assets 55 10,735,479.28 14,087,656.54
BREESH Amortization of intangible assets 56 1,087,524.62 1,535,815.01
ROGHEREH Amortization of long-term deferred expenses 57 0.00 601,272.33
HFREBRNRD R gm) Decrease in deferred expenses (less: increase) 58 0.00 0.00
BREANLM R RD) Increase in accrual expenses (less: decrease) 59 0.00 0.00
REETEE BREEM Loss on disposal of fixed assets,
EMRBEENER O ks) intangible assets and other long-term
assets (less: income) 60 1,145,415.77 1,145,415.77
EEEERERE Loss on deserted fixed assets 61 0.00 0.00
B % & A Financial expenses 64 1,496,681.21 2,235,235.14
REBK O &) Investment loss (less: income) 65 844,974.74 569,467.96
EEHAERE (R :1E18) Credit on deferred tax (less: borrowing) 66 933,716.27 250,500.21
FERRD Chl: g m) Decrease in inventory (less: increase) 67 36,568,225.00 6,979,856.59
e ERIEE MR O 38 m) Decrease in operating receivable
(less: increase) 68 (91,650,937.30) (166,926,344.19)
M EATER MM Ofl i) Increase in operating payables
(less: decrease) 69 73,066,084.80 143,773,576.14
Hith Others 70 0.00 0.00
71 0.00 0.00
REEHEENRESREFE Net cash flows from operating activities 72 120,944,786.22 105,575,172.31
73 0.00 0.00
2. THRESUZIHEEMEELEE 2. Financing and investing activities not
involving in cash 74 0.00 0.00
ERERER Debts capitalized 75 0.00 0.00
—FRIAMATEARFES Convertible bond due within one year 76 0.00 0.00
MEMAEEEE Fixed assets under financial lease 77 0.00 0.00
78 0.00 0.00
79 0.00 0.00
3. ReRkBALZEMFEMER 3. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 80 0.00 0.00
ReHRRE Cash and bank balances at
the end of the period 81 217,602,619.61 252,349,083.26
R ew BIGRE Less: Cash and bank balances at
the beginning of the period 82 113,884,419.17 166,794,262.63
MBREEENMMBRRRE Add: Cash equivalents at the end
of the period 83 0.00 0.00
ReSENHETSRE Less:Cash equivalents at the beginning
of the period 84 0.00 0.00
85 0.00 0.00
86 0.00 0.00
87 0.00 0.00
88 0.00 0.00
92 0.00 0.00
93 0.00 0.00
94 0.00 0.00
Re LR EEMFEMNE Net cash flow from financing activities 95 103,718,200.44 85,554,820.63
BB Ei* N = e Company Representative: Mr. Gao Minghui,
g%%%zgﬁ%m%;/\- %% Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Pi Jianguo,

Prepared by: Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
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5 D8 PT A RE A 5 B % CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Prepared by: Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Co., Ltd.

2007%1-6 A Efi: BE AR
January-June, 2007 Unit: RMB
*HeH
Eh#s (REF) FEY woEER BROR FOENE HEEERAH
Less: Total
Share Capital treasury Surplus  Undistributed  shareholders’
HH ITEMS capital reserve share reserve profit equity
— LEERBE 1. Closing balance of last year 245,007,400.00 314,797,956.97 - 20,298,114.29  30,648,361.04 610,751,832.30
m: EBHEREE Add:  Adjustment from accounting policy changes - (2,316,238.68) - - 3,790,713.86  1,474,475.18
AIEEEELE Correction of errors in prior period - - - - 899,833.32 899,833.32
= KEFEDBRE 2. Opening balance at the beginning of
the current year 245,007,400.00 312,481,718.29 - 20,298,114.29  35,338,908.22 613,126,140.80
= KAEHREYEE 3. Changes during the period (“-" for decrease)
(AN~ 5E5) - - - - - -
(=) #ME (1) Net profit - - - - 94,343873.43  94,343,873.43
(Z) BB AFRALERS () Profit and loss directly recorded
FEREL in owner’s equity - - - - - -
1. WHHEELREERL () Netchanges in fair value of
BEEZHTE available-for-sale financial assets - - - - - -
2. B@ETHEEELM (i) Influence of changes in other owner's
HifAdER equity of invested under equity method
2Hnye - - - - - -
3. EABMEEEZRER (i) Income tax implication on items related to
BENMEHYE shareholder’s equity accounted for - - - - - -
4. Eft (iv)  Others - - - - - -
it (=) (2) bt Sub-total of (1) and (2) - - - - 94,343,873.43 94,343,873.43

(Z) AR ARMBLELR  (3)  Addition and reduction of
Shareholders’ capital - - - - - -

1. FMEERAER () Addition of shareholders’ capital - - - - - _
2. BIAXMAzAHAEZ (i) The amount of dividend paid to

BRNSE the shareholders’ equity - - - - - -
3. Hft (iii) ~ Others - - - - - -
(m) FBAE (4)  Profit distribution - - - - - -
1. RERHLE () Appropriation to surplus reserve - - - - - -

2. HHEE(FERR)H (i) Appropriation to owners (shareholders)
/'\EB

3. Ef (i)~ Others - - - - - _

(R) IEEEZNDESE  (5)  Shareholders’ equity internally
carried forward - - - - - -

1. BRDEEBEER () Share capital increase by
(FHR=x) transferring capital reserve 38,235,855.00  (38,235,855.00) - - - -
2. BHBABEEER (i) Share capital increase by
(FHR=x) transferring surplus reserve - - - - - -
3. BRBLAEBHER (i) Losses covered by surplus reserve - - - - - -
4. Eft (iv)  Others - - - - - -
mABERAE 4. Closing balance for the current period 283,243,255.00 274,245,863.29 - 20,298,114.29 129,682,781.65 707,470,014.24
REIEL: R RBERBRERKROBR QA Company Representative: ~ Mr. Gao Minghui,
Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Pi Jianguo,
BAAFA: =R E Prepared by: Ms. Zhao Qiongfen
BAUXTESTIENATA: g 45
giREEREA: B
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(2) GENERAL

Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Company Limited (formerly known as
Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited) (“the Company”) was
established in the People’s Republic of China as a Sino-foreign
joint stock limited company as part of the reorganization of a State-
owned enterprise known as Kunming Machine Tool Plant (“KMTP”).
Pursuant to the reorganization, the operations, assets and liabilities
of KMTP were divided between the Company and Kunming Kunji
Group Company (“Kunji Group Company”). The Company was
established on 19th October, 1993. The Company’s A shares and H
shares have been listed on the Shanghai Securities Exchange in
Shanghai and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in Hong
Kong respectively. The Company is engaged principally in the
design, development, production and sale of machine tool, precision
measuring equipment and precision transducers.

On 25th December, 2000, Xian Jiaotong University Industrial (Group)
Incorporation (“Jiaotong Group”) entered into an agreement with
Yunnan Provincial People’s Government (“Yunnan Government”), the
Company’s former controlling shareholder whereby Yunnan
Government would transfer a 29% interest of 71,052,146 State-
owned shares in the Company to Jiaotong Group. The Ministry of
Finance signed approval of State-owned shares transfer of Jiaoda
Kunji High-tech Company Limited (Cai Qi [2001] No. 283), and
approved the share transfer. Upon completion of share transfer
procedure on 5th June, 2001, Jiaotong Group became substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Pursuant to extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
31st December, 2001. After the assets restructuring, the Company
changed from a traditional machinery manufacturing company which
focused on production of machine tools to a high-tech and
diversified Production Company.

After getting the approval from State Industry and Commerce
Administration Bureau, with effective from 29th March, 2002, the
Company uses the name “Jiaoda Kunji High Tech Company Limited”.
The amount of registered capital is RMB245,007,400.
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On 15th September, 2005, Xian Jiaotong University Industrial (Group)
Incorporation and Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Company Limited
entered into an agreement regarding transfer of shares. Shenyang
Machine Tool (Group) Company Limited agreed to buy 71,052,146
shares of Jiaoda High-tech Company Limited from Xi’an Jiaotong
University Industrial (Group) Incorporation, representing 29% of the
total 245,007,400 shares. The transaction was approved by State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Committee under the
State Council and China Securities Regulation Committee. At 1st
December, 2006, the register of transfer was finished and Shenyang
Group became the largest shareholder of the Company.

On 4th April, 2006, Yunnan Government and State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Committee, Yunnan Committee
issued written reply to agree Yunnan Government transfer its
31,315,600 shares of the Company (representing 12.79% total issued
shares) to Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation Company Limited
at nil based on the date of 31st December, 2005. By 31st December,
2006, the share transfer was approved by the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Committee. The transfer was finished
on 19th January, 2007.

On January 25, 2007, the Ministry of Commerce, the PRC issued
the “Written Reply Regarding Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Co., Ltd.
Transfer of Shares and Increase Shares” (file no. & & #£[2007] 133
%) to approve the Share Reform Proposal of the Company. The
Company increased shares to all shareholders whose name appear
on the Company’s register of members on the February 26, 2007
by transferring capital reserves on a basis of 1.5606 shares for
every existing 10 shares. The total increased share capital was
38,235,855 shares, of which, 28,091,955 shares were A Shares,
and 10,143,900 shares were H Shares. On March 5, 2007, the
holders of non-circulating Shares of the Company used their 18,
728,355 shares as consideration shares to pay to the holders of
circulating A Shares on a basis of 2.7 shares for every 10 shares.
The new A shares were listed on March 7, 2007. Of 18,728,355
shares, Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Company Limited disbursed
11,088,398 shares; Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation Company
Limited disbursed 4,891,787 shares, and Jinghua Company
disbursed 2,748,170 shares to the holders of Circulating A Shares.
After implementation of the consideration arrangement, non-
circulating shares held by the holders of non-circulating Shares of
the Company became tradable and listed.
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(3)

On April 2007, two shareholders of the Company, Shenyang Machine
Tool (Group) co., Ltd. and Yunnan State-owned Assets Operation
Co., Ltd. jointly proposed the Share Increase Proposal (the “Share
Increase”) (New Shares will be issued to all shareholders of the
Company by transferring capital reserve on a basis of five New
Shares for every 10 Shares based on 283,243,255 total share
capital). The Share Increase was approved at the 21st meeting of
the board of directors held on April 18, 2007 and the resolution
was submitted to 2006 annual general meeting and class meetings
held on June 29, 2007 respectively. The Share Increase should be
approved by the Ministry of Commerce before it is implemented.
As at the date of this report, the Share Increase is not implemented.

The place of registration of the Company is 23 Ciba Road, Kunming
City, Yunnan Province. The business registration number is Qi Gu
Dian Zong Zi No. 000682.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND METHODS OF PREPARING CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with the “Notice on Printing and Distributing
‘Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 1-Inventories’
etc. 38 Specific Accounting Standards” (Cai Kuai [2006] No.3) issued
by Ministry of Finance (“MOF”) dated February 15, 2006,
commencing from 1 January 2007, the Company has adopted the
“Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises” (“ASBEs”) and its
application guides (the “New Accounting Standards”). The
accounting polices shall be modified and adjusted according to the
New Accounting Standards. The modified and adjusted accounting
policies will become basic and guideline of accounting assurance
for year 2007 and going on years. Modified accounting policies,
accounting estimates and methods for preparing financial statements
are as follows:

1.  Accounting Standards

In accordance with the “Notice on Printing and Distributing
‘Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 1-
Inventories’ etc. 38 Specific Accounting Standards” (Cai Kuai
[2006] No.3) issued by Ministry of Finance (“MOF”) dated
February, 2006, commencing from 1 January 2007, the
Company has adopted the ASBEs and its application guides
(the “New Accounting Standards”).
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The basis of preparing financial statements

In year 2006 and previous years, the Group implemented
previous Accounting Regulations for Business Enterprise.
Since 1 January, 2007, the Group has implemented the new
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (hereafter as
“ASBEs”) and relevant supplement regulations. In the financial
statements of this report, based on the financial statements
of year 2006 of the Company and based on the principle of
materiality, relevant accounts of assets, liabilities, and owner’s
equity are re-classified, recognized, and measured to recognize
the opening balance in the balance sheet in accordance with
the ASBEs, income statement at 30 June 2006 was adjusted
retrospectively in accordance with the requirement of
presentation of financial statements of ASBEs to confirm the
comparative period income statement of last year.

Accounting Fiscal Year

The accounting year of the Company commences on 1st
January and ends on 31st December each year.

Reporting Currency
The reporting currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB”).
Principle of book-keeping and measurement bases

The Company adopts the accrual basis as the basis of
accounting to recognize, measure and report.

The book-keeping of the Company’s account is conducted
on an accrual accounting basis generally at historical cost.
When replacement cost, net realizable value, present value
and fair value can be acquired and can be measured reliably,
they shall be adopted.

Recognition Criteria for Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents included in the cash-flow statement are
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are within
three months of maturity and subject to limited risk on changes
in value.
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Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated by spot
exchange rate on the transaction date upon initial recognition.
In balance sheet date, items in foreign currencies are
translated into RMB at the spot exchange rate on the day.
Exchange differences arising from differences between the
spot exchange rate on the day and that upon initial recognition
or that on the balance sheet date are recognized as expenses
in profit and loss for the current period. Non-monetary items
in foreign currencies carried at historical cost are still measured
at amount of recording currency translated at the spot
exchange rate on the day during which the transaction takes
place. Non-monetary items in foreign currencies carried at
fair value are translated at spot exchange rate on the date of
which the fair value is determined. Differences between the
amount of recording curreny after translation and that before
translation are accounted as changes in fair value (inclusive
of changes on exchange rate) and included in profit and loss
of the current period. Differences between foreign currency
borrowings related with the acquisition and production of
assets eligible for capitalization are recognized in accordance
with the principle of borrowing cost.

Financial Instruments Measurement
(i) Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities

At initial recognition, all financial assets are classified
into four categories:

a. financial assets which recognized at at fair value
and of which the variations are recognized through
profit or loss include trading financial assets and
financial assets which are designated by the Group
upon recognition at fair value and of which the
variations are recognized through profit or loss.

b. held-to-maturity assets
C. loans and accounts receivable
d. available-for-sale financial assets

At initial recognition, all financial liabilities are classified
into two categories:

a. financial liabilities which recognised at fair value
and of which the variations are recognised through
profit or loss include trading financial liabilities
and financial liabilities which are designated by
the Group upon recognition at fair value and their
changes recognized through profit or loss.

b. other financial liabilities
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(i)

Recognition and measurement

All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized
in the balance sheet, when and only when, the Group,
as appropriate, becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

At initial recognition, all financial assets are measured
at fair value. After initial recognition, the four financial
assets are measured in difference ways.

a. financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized at fair value at initial recognition,
and related transaction costs are considered as
profit or loss. During holding financial assets,
interest or cash bonus are considered as
investment revenue. Accounts in balance sheet
are measured in fair value. Gain or loss from
change of fair value is measured as profit or loss.
When disposal of financial assets, the balance
between fair value and initial recognition are
considered as investment revenue, and adjust
profit or loss with change of fair value.

b. available-for-sale financial assets, are measured
at fair value plus transaction cost that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the
finance asset. The accounts in balance sheet are
measure at fair value. Gain or loss from change of
fair value shall be classified as capital reserves.
The difference between carrying value and book
value shall be classified as investment revenue,
and the amount of capital reverse previously which
is gain or loss from change of fair value transfer
into investment revenue.

C. Receivables from good sales or service are
recognized in agreement or quota price. When
receiving or disposing the receivable, the
difference between carrying value and book value
shall be classified as profit or loss.
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(iii)

(iv)

d. the investments which will be held to their maturity
are measured at fair value of the investment plus
transaction cost as initial recognition. The
investments shall be measured on the basis of
the post-amortization costs by adopting the actual
interest rate method in subsequent measurement;
The balance between the carrying amount and the
fair value shall be computed into the investment
revenue when investment is disposed.

For the financial liabilities measured at their fair values
and of which the variation is recorded into the profits
and losses for the current period, they shall be measured
at their fair values, and the transaction cost may be
recorded into the profits and losses for the current
period; in subsequent measurement, they shall be
measured at fair value.

For the other financial liabilities, at initial recognition,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction cost; in
subsequent measurement, they shall be measured on
the basis of the post-amortization costs by adopting
the actual interest rate method.

Fair value measurement of financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is based
on their quoted market price in an active market at the
valuation date. If a quoted market price is not available,
the fair value of the financial assets is established using
valuation techniques. The fair value of initial or original
financial assets, or bearing financial liabilities, is
determined by market transaction price.

Financial assets impairment test and measurement

An enterprise shall carry out an inspection, on the
balance sheet day, on the carrying amount of the
financial assets other than those measured at their fair
values and of which the variation is recorded into the
profits and losses of the current period. Where there is
any objective evidence proving that such financial asset
has been impaired, an impairment provision shall be
made. An impairment test shall be made on the financial
assets with significant single amounts. With regard to
the financial assets with insignificant single amounts,
an independent impairment test may be carried out, or
they may be included in a combination of financial assets
with similar credit risk features so as to carry out an
impairment-related test.
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(v)

For loans and receivables, held-to-maturities
investments, difference between current value of the
predicted future cash flow and book value should make
provision on impairment loss. If there is any objective
evidence proving that the value of the said financial
asset has been restored, the recognized impairment loss
should be reversed and be recorded into the profits and
losses of the current period.

Where a available-for-sale financial asset is impaired,
even if the recognition of the financial asset has not
been terminated, the accumulative losses arising from
the decrease of the fair value of the owner’s equity which
was directly included shall be transferred out and
recorded into the profits and losses of the current period.
As for the available-for-sale debt instruments whose
impairment-related losses have been recognized, if,
within the accounting period thereafter, the fair value
has risen and are objectively related to the subsequent
events that occur after the originally impairment-related
losses were recognized, the originally recognized
impairment-related losses shall be reversed and be
recorded into the profits and losses of the current period.
The impairment-related losses incurred to a available-
for-sale equity instrument investment shall not be
reversed through profits and losses.

Financial assets transfer and recognition

If the group transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the group
shall derecognize the financial asset.

If the group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset, the group shall
continue to recognize the financial asset.

The Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
if the group has not retained control, it shall
derecognized the financial asset; if the entity has
retained control, it shall continue to recognize the
financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
in the financial asset, and corresponsive financial
liabilities.
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On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between:

(a) the carrying amount and

(b)  the sum of (i) the consideration received (including
any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognized directly in equity shall be
recognized in profit or loss.

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset
and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in
its entirety, the previous carrying amount of the larger
financial asset shall be allocated between the part that
continues to be recognized and the part that is
derecognized, based on the relative fair values of those
parts on the date of the transfer.

The difference between:

(@) the carrying amount allocated to the part
derecognized and

(b)  the sum of (i) the consideration received for the
part and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss allocated
to it that had been recognized directly in equity;
shall be recognized in profit or loss.

Provision for bad debt on receivables

(i)

(iii)

receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted on an
active market, including bills receivable, accounts
receivable, prepayments, other receivables, and long-
term receivables.

Measurement: An impairment test shall be made on the
receivable account with significant single amounts.
Where there is any objective evidence proving that such
financial asset has been impaired, an impairment
provision shall be made. The carrying amount of
receivable shall be written down to the current value of
the predicted future cash flow, and the amount as written
down shall be recognized as loss of the impairment of
the receivable. For the single non significant receivables
and tested non impairment receivables, the provision of
bad debts is measured on the provision method based
on aging analysis.

Recognition criteria for bad debt: a. the irrecoverable
amount of a debtor who has gone bankrupt or has died
and has insufficient asset or estate to repay; b. the
irrecoverable amount, demonstrated by sufficient
evidence, of a debtor who does not comply with his/her
repayment obligation over three years.
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10.

Accounting basis of bad debt losses: allowance method

Allowance and applicable rate:

An impairment test shall be made on the receivable
account with significant single amounts. Where there is
any objective evidence proving that such financial asset
has been impaired, an impairment provision shall be
made.The carrying amount of receivable shall be written
down to the current value of the predicted future cash
flow, and the amount as written down shall be
recognized as loss of the impairment of the receivable.
For the single non significant receivables and tested
non impairment receivables, the provision of bad debts
is measured on the provision method based on amount
in the balance sheet and account’s aging analysis.

Accounts aged applicable rate
Within 1 year 5%
1-2 years 50%
Over 2 years 100%

Cancel after vertification
The irrecoverable amount stated above is cancelled as

bad debt after hierarchical approval ratified by the board
of directors.

Accounting for Inventories

U]

(iii)

Inventory category: Inventories include merchandise
inventory, self-made semi-finished goods, raw materials,
consumables and packaging materials.

Valuation method of inventories: Purchase of raw
materials, packaging materials and consumables are
stated at cost incurred. Inventory issued and inventory
shipped are recorded based on the weighted average
cost method. Low value consumables are fully charged
to cost when they are issued.

Measure: Inventories are measured initially at cost. At
the balance sheet date, inventories are stated at the
lower of cost and net realizable value. The follow ways
to measure the net realizable value on difference
inventories:

The inventories such as merchandise, finished product,
available for sales materials, the net realizable value
represents the estimated selling price less the estimated
expenses of sales and tax. The inventories such as
processing materials, the net realizable value represents
the estimated selling price of finished product less the
estimated cost of process completion, estimated
expense of sales and tax.
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v)

(vi)

@

Provision for diminution in value of inventories:
provisions for diminution in value of inventories is made
by single items. For inventories of low value and many
items, provisions for diminution in value of inventories
is made by classification of inventories

At the balance sheet date, inventories are stated at the
lower of cost and net realizable value. Whenever the
net realizable value is lower than cost, provision is made
for diminution in value of each inventory.

After provision for diminution in value of inventories is
made, where the factors that result in diminution in value
of inventories no longer exist and therefore the net
realizable value of inventories is higher than its carrying
value, the original provision for diminution in value of
inventories can be reversed, and the amount of reversal
is charged to the profit and loss account in the period.

A perpetual inventory system is adopted for the
calculation of inventory volume.

Accounting for Long-term Investment

Long-term equity investments are recorded at initial
investment cost on acquisition.

a. For combinations of entities under common control
in which a company pays cash, transfers non-
cash assets or bear debts as consideration of
combinations, the initial investment cost of long-
term equity investment is the share with reference
to the book value of the shareholders’ equity of
the party to be combined on the date of
combinations. Capital reserve account is adjusted
by differences between initial investment cost of
long-term equity investment and the book value
of the cash paid, non-cash assets transferred as
well as liabilities assumed. Amounts that cannot
be sufficiently released by capital reserve account
serve the purpose of adjusting retained earnings.
For companies offering consideration of
combinations by issuing equity securities, initial
investment cost of long-term equity investment
refers to the share with reference to the book value
of the shareholders’ equity of the party to be
combined on the date of combinations, this
becomes share capital with reference to the
nominal value of shares in issue. Capital reserve
account is adjusted by differences between initial
investment costs of long-term equity investment
and the aggregate nominal value of shares in issue.
Amounts that cannot be sufficiently released by
capital reserve account serve the purpose of
adjusting retained earnings.
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(i)

b. For combinations of entities without common
control, initial investment cost of long-term equity
investment refers to the assets paid, liabilities
incurred or assumed as well as the fair value of
equity securities in issue by the company in
exchange for control of the acquiree on the date
of acquisition. If the fair value of acquisition cost
is bigger then the fair value of acquiree’s realizable
net assets, the differences will be treated as
goodwill. If the fair value of acquisition cost is
smaller than the fair value of acquiree’s realizable
net assets, the differences will be included in profit
and loss.

C. For non combination of entities, long-term equity
investment settled in cash, initial investment cost
refers to the actual consideration paid. Initial
investment cost refers to long-term equity
investment acquired through the issue of equity
securities in accordance with the fair value of
equity securities in issue. Save for unfair agreed
values under contract or agreement, initial
investment cost are long-term equity investment
of investors with reference to the agreed value
stipulated under investment contract or agreement.
For the long-term equity investment obtained by
the exchange of non-monetary assets, the initial
investment cost shall be determined by fair value
of non-monetary assets plus related tax expense.
For the long-term equity investment obtained by
debt restructuring, the initial investment cost shall
be determined by fair value investment of debt
restructuring. The difference of fair value of
investment and book value of debt restructuring
is stated as profit or loss.

Long-term equity investment in subsequent measurement
and investment income recognition.

The investment on the subsidiaries without join control
or significant influence, without price quota in the active
market, without reliable measure by fair value shall be
accounted by the method of cost. The long-term equity
investment that the Company co-controls or has
significant influences on the unit being invested shall
be accounted by the method of equity. Investment
revenue is determined by net profit adjustment of
invested unit based on fair value of each asset which
can be classified in invested unit.
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(iii)

Provision for the impairment on long-term equity investment.

Goodwill caused by business combination involving
entities under non common control should be tested for
impairment at the end of the period. Loss of goodwill
shall be recognized as profit or loss for the current
period.

According to cost method, without price quota in active
market, and reliable fair value, the loss between book
value cost of investment and net value from future cash
flow shall be stated as profit or loss. If there is
impairment in the investment, comparison with net value
of initial fair value of investment minus disposal cost
and present value fro future cash flow by investment,
the higher is considered as the amount recoverable.
The impairment reserves are accounted by difference
between the recoverable amount of the individual
investment and the book value. Once the impairment
loss for long-term equity investment is confirmed, they
shall no longer be reversed in the future accounting
period.

12. Fixed assets

U]

(i)

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for using
the production or supply of goods or services, for rental
to others, or for administrative purposes, and have useful
lives more than one accounting year.

Fixed assets measurement: Fixed assets are initially
measured at cost by the ways of purchase, self-
construction, and acquisition through business
combination under common control. Fixed assets are
measured at fair value or carrying cost by non-monetary
asset exchange, debt reconstructure, acquisition through
business combination under non common control. If a
constructed fixed asset has reached the working
condition for its intended use but the final project
accounts have not been completed and approved, the
asset should be transferred to fixed assets at an
estimated value based on project budget and
depreciation is based on the estimated value. After
completion, the estimated value will be adjusted in
accordance with the actual cost. However, the
recognized depreciation will not be adjusted.
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(iii)

(iv)

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line
method to recognize monthly. The estimated useful lives,
estimated residual value rates and annual depreciation
rates of the fixed assets are as follows:

Estimated Annual
Fixed assets Estimated residual depreciation
category useful lives value (%) rate (%)
Buildings 40 5 2.38
Machinery equipments 5-20 5 4.75-19
Electric equipments,
fixture, furniture 5-14 5 6.79-19
Transportation equipment 5-14 5 6.79-19

The depreciation policy for assets held under finance
bases are consistent with that for owned assets. If there
is reasonable certainty that the lease will obtain
ownership at the end of lease, the asset should be
appreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the
life of the asset.

Provision on impairment loss on fixed assets

At the end of the period, when there is an indication
that the fixed asset devalue, estimates its recoverable
amount. If the recoverable amounts lower than the book
value, decrease the book value of the fixed asset to
recoverable amount. The decreased amount is
recognized as assets’ impairment loss included in profit
or loss for the current period and recognizes the
provision on impairment loss on fixed assets at the same
time. Once the impairment loss on fixed assets
recognized, it cannot be reversed in the future period.

13. Accounting for Construction in Progress

U]

(i)

The cost of construction-in-progress is determined
according to expenditures actually incurred.
Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets
at the date of reaching its usable conditions at an
estimated amount

Provision on impairment loss on construction in progress

At the period end, based on the investigation on each
construction in progress, if there exists:

a. Construction-in-progress has been (or will be)
suspended, terminated construction or disposed
ahead of schedule;

b. The economic, technological or legal environment
in which the enterprise operates, or the market
where the assets is situated will have any
significant change in the current period or in the
near future, which will cause disadvantage impact
on the enterprise;
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14.

C. Internal report shows that the economic benefit
generated by the construction-in-progress will be
lower than the expectation, e.g. new cash flow or
net operating profit (or loss) of the construction-
in-progress will much lower (or higher) than the
expectation.

d. The market interest rate or any other market
investment return rate has risen in the current
period, and thus the discount rate of the enterprise
for calculating the expected future cash flow of
the assets will be affected, which will result in
great decline of the recoverable amount of the
assets;

e. Other evidences can prove the existence of the
circumstance of the decline in value on
construction-in-progress.

Should the above circumstance exists, difference of the
recoverable amount and the carrying amount of construction-
in-progress can be made as provision on impairment loss on
construction-in-progress. The impairment loss is calculated
based on the difference between book value and net realizable
value. Once the impairment loss on constructure-in-progress
recognized, it cannot be reversed in the future period.

Intangible Assets

(i) Intangible asset refers to the identifiable non-monetary
assets possessed or controlled by the Company which
have no physical shape, include patents, know how,
trade mark, copyright, chartered right, and land use right.

(i) Measurement: The intangible assets shall be initially
measured according to its cost. The cost of outsourcing
intangible assets shall include the purchase price,
relevant taxes and other necessary expenditures directly
attributable to intangible assets for the expected
purpose. Where the payment of purchase price for
intangible assets is delayed beyond the normal credit
conditions, which is of financing intention, the cost of
intangible assets shall be determined on the basis of
the current value of the purchase price. The difference
between the actual payment and the current value of
the purchase price shall be recorded into profit or loss
for the credit period, unless it shall be capitalized under
the relevant regulations.




2007 Interim Report || 57

@)

(4)

B ERSWARNELE
B RBEENGOEHERT
X EEHERASTARRAES
W EAEm T RENELEE
TETHE-RE A REERN X
HiZERNMENELEE
HEMASw THRBA BIEER
X EL A A TE R H HARR - %Zﬁﬁﬂ
e RICERRER QALK
BETEBR WEH *H%ﬁv
T HERTERABRE
THBARCENELERS
KEERVEEREERRR
A B M 55 1O HAIR -

MREBELEBZ N BEEES
BEHETEVEEREERRE
HEN S HR - B EERERSS
THEENELEE-

M ERHT 5T 5 B IA B W B
B HERE REERFTA
EHEE -RERROHTA
BARKEGS BRAEBELE
E-BENOIGRIFARS:

@ B LEEE TRRE
T & BE LA H 6 49 A =k
t|j E8FAITH:

@ BERKZEEEL®
REHEEE-

® ZEBEEERNLELAR
*IZ‘:(E/E*‘ e

@ ABARAMEM BBEER
MEAMEIRE UK
EZ?H%%FE’]%?% Riz)

RENERAHEZETLE
Eo

® HEBRZEVAERY
BB BT AR 4
e

(iii)

(iv)

Amortization: With regard to intangible assets with
limited service life, its amortization amount shall be
amortized within its service life systematically and
reasonably. Intangible assets with uncertain service life
may not be amortized. The intangible assets from
contractive rights or other legal rights, the service life is
not over the limit period of the contract live right or
other legal rights. If there is undefinitive contract or
legal regulation, it is able to forecast the period to
confirm service life when the intangible asset can bring
economic benefits to the enterprise.If it is not able to
forecast the period to confirm service life when the
intangible asset can bring economic benefits to the
enterprise, the intangible asset will be treat as intangible
assets with uncertain service life.

The research expenditures for its internal research and
development projects of an enterprise shall be recorded
into the profit or loss for the current period. The
development expenditures for its internal research and
development projects of an enterprise may be confirmed
as intangible assets when they satisfy the following
conditions simultaneously:

a. It is feasible technically to finish intangible assets
for use or sale;

b. It is intended to finish and use or sell the intangible
assets;
C. The usefulness of methods for intangible assets

to generate economic benefits shall be proved;

d. It is able to finish the development of the intangible
assets, and able to use or sell the intangible
assets, with the support of sufficient technologies,
financial resources and other resources; and

e. The development expenditures of the intangible
assets can be reliably measured.
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15.

16.

(v)  Review the service life of intangible assets: an enterprise
shall, at least at the end of each year, check the service
life and the amortization method of intangible assets
with limited service life. When the service life and the
amortization method of intangible assets are different
from those before, the years and method of the
amortization shall be changed. An enterprise shall check
the service life of intangible assets with uncertain service
life during each accounting period. Where there are
evidences to prove the intangible assets have limited
service life, it shall be estimated of its service life, and
be treated according to this Standard.

Amortization of long-term deferred expenditure

Long-term deferred expenditure are expenditures and other
expenses have occurred which will be benefited over 1 year
(excluding within 1 year), e.g. expenses for leased fixed assets
innovation. Expenses incurred during the incorporation of the
Company are recorded in the long-term deferred expenditure
at first and will be included in the profit and loss account in
the first month after commencement of its operation. Other
long-term deferred expenditure will be amortized evenly over
the estimated benefit period.

Accounting for borrowing cost

(i) Where the borrowing costs incurred to an enterprise
can be directly attributable to the acquisition and
construction or production of assets eligible for
capitalization, it shall be capitalized and recorded into
the costs of relevant assets. Other borrowing costs shall
be recognized as expenses on the basis of the actual
amount incurred, and shall be recorded into the current
profits and losses. The term “assets eligible for
capitalization” shall refer to the fixed assets, investment
real estate, inventories and other assets, of which the
acquisition and construction or production may take
quite a long time to get ready for its intended use or for
sale.
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(iii)

(iv)

The borrowing costs shall not be capitalized unless they
simultaneously meet the following requirements:

a. Expenditures for the asset are being incurred;
b. Borrowing costs has already incurred; and
C. Acquisition and construction that are necessary

to enable the asset reach its expected usable
condition have commenced.

Where the acquisition and construction or production
of a qualified asset is interrupted abnormally and the
interruption period lasts for more than 3 months, the
capitalization of the borrowing costs shall be suspended.
The borrowing costs incurred during such period shall
be recognized as expenses, and shall be recorded into
the profits and losses of the current period, till the
acquisition and construction or production of the asset
restarts. If the interruption is a necessary step for making
the qualified asset under acquisition and construction
or production ready for the intended use or sale, the
capitalization of the borrowing costs shall continue.

Recognition of capitalization of borrowing cost and
interest:

The borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition and
construction or production of assets eligible for
capitalization refer to actual interest expenses during
borrowing period, minus interest revenue of borrowing
fund deposited on bank or investment revenue from
short term investment by borrowing fund. For the general
borrowings, the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
are determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
capital expenditure that accumulated capital
expenditures exceed the specific borrowings.
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17.

Contingent liability:

U]

(ii)

(iii)

The obligation pertinent to Contingencies shall be
recognized as an estimated debt when the following
conditions are satisfied simultaneously:

a. That obligation is a current obligation of the
enterprise;
b. It is likely to cause any economic benefit to flow

out of the enterprise as a result of performance of
the obligation; and

C. The amount of the obligation can be measured in
a reliable way.

The estimated debts shall be initially measured in
accordance with the best estimate of the necessary
expenses for the performance of the current obligation.
If there is a sequent range for the necessary expenses
and if all the outcomes within this range are equally
likely to occur, the best estimate shall be determined in
accordance with the middle estimate within the range.
In other cases, the best estimate shall be conducted in
accordance with the following situations, respectively:

a. If the Contingencies concern a single item, it shall
be determined in the light of the most likely
outcome.

b. If the Contingencies concern two or more items,

the best estimate should be calculated and
determined in accordance with all possible
outcomes and the relevant probabilities.

When all or some of the expenses necessary for the
liguidation of an estimated debts of an enterprise is
expected to be compensated by a third party, the
compensation should be separately recognized as an
asset only when it is virtually certain that the
reimbursement will be obtained. The amount recognized
for the reimbursement should not exceed the book value
of the estimated debts.

Provision from 1.2% of sales revenue of machine tools
business is computed as expenses of after sales service
through profits and losses. Actual expenses are kept
withing the provision. The reliability of provision ratio
shall be reviewed on balance sheet date.
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18. Employee benefits

U]

(i)

(iii)

Employee Benefits refers to monetary salary and benefits
not in monetary render by the Company to employees
during and after service term of the employees.

Recognition and Measurement:

During the accounting period of an employee’ providing
services to an enterprise, the enterprise shall recognize
the compensation payable as liabilities. Except for the
compensations for the cancellation of the labor
relationship with the employee, the enterprise shall, in
accordance with beneficiaries of the services offered by
the employee, treat the following circumstances
respectively:

a. The compensation for the employee for producing
products or providing services shall be recorded
as the product costs and service costs;

b. The compensation for the employee for any on-
going construction project or for any intangible
asset shall be recorded as the costs of fixed asset
or intangible assets; or

c. Monthly salary payments and social insurance
charges paid by the Company to early-retirees,
laid-off employees, and unemployment people
commencing from the date of their early-retirement
up until their respective official retirement are
recognized as accrued salaries. Payments within
one year, salary expenses shall be recorded in
profit or loss for the current period. Payments over
one year, the future accrued salary should be
discounted in profit or loss for the current period.
The discount rate is determined by referring to
high quality corporate bonds market interest rate.
Unrecognized financial fee should be amortised
on the actual interest rate.

d. Other salaries besides the above circumstance
should be recognized in profit and loss for the
current period.

The medical insurance, endowment insurance,
unemployment insurance, work injury insurance,
maternity insurance and other social insurances, as well
as the housing accumulation fund, paid by the enterprise
to the employee should be calculated in the relevant
cost or expenses on the basis of a certain proportion in
the total amount of wages and benefits rendered by the
employee.
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19.

Share-based payments

U]

The share-based payments shall consist of equity-settled
share-based payments and cash-settled share-based
payments. The equity-settled share-based payment in
return for employee services shall be measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted to the
employees.

As to an equity-settled share-based payment in return
for services of employees, if the right may be exercised
immediately after the grant, the fair value of the equity
instruments shall, on the date of the grant, be included
in the relevant cost or expense and the capital reserves
shall be increased accordingly. The “grant date” refers
to the date on which the share-based payment
agreement is approved. As to a equity-settled share-
based payment in return for employee services, if the
right cannot be exercised until the vesting period comes
to an end or until the prescribed performance conditions
are met, then on each balance sheet date within the
vesting period, the services obtained in the current
period shall, based on the best estimate of the number
of vested equity instruments, be included in the relevant
costs or expenses and the capital reserves at the fair
value of the equities instruments on the date of the
grant.

A cash-settled share-based payment shall be measured
in accordance with the fair value of liability calculated
and confirmed based on the shares or other equity
instruments undertaken by an enterprise. As to a cash-
settled share-based payment instruments, if the right
may be exercised immediately after the grant, the fair
value of the liability undertaken by the enterprise shall,
on the date of the grant, be included in the relevant
costs or expenses, and the liabilities shall be increased
accordingly. As to a cash-settled share-based payment,
if the right may not be exercised until the vesting period
comes to an end or until the specified performance
conditions are met, on each balance sheet date within
the vesting period, the services obtained in the current
period shall, based on the best estimate of the
information about the exercisable right, be included in
the relevant costs or expenses and the corresponding
liabilities at the fair value of the liability undertaken by
the enterprise.
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20.

(i)  Fair value recognition of equity-settled instrument: As
for the equity-settled instrument such as for which there
is an active market, the quoted prices in the active
market shall be used to determine the fair values thereof.
If there is no quoted price, the fair value shall be
determined by reference of quoted price of similar
transaction. Where there is no active market for a equity
settled instrument, the enterprise concerned shall adopt
value appraisal techniques to determine its fair value.

(iii)  Basis for recognition best estimate of the number of
vested equity instruments:

If, on the balance sheet date, the subsequent information
indicates that fair value of the current liability undertaken
by the enterprise are different from the previous
estimates, an adjustment shall be made, and on the
vesting date the estimate shall be adjusted to equal the
actually exercisable right.

Government grants

Government grants shall be recognized when an enterprise
can meet the conditions for the government grants and can
obtain the government grants. If a government grant is in the
form of a transfer of a monetary asset, the item shall be
measured at the amount received or receivable. If a
government grant is in the form of a transfer of a non-monetary
asset, the item shall be ensured at fair value. If fair value is
not reliably determinable, the item shall be measured at a
nominal amount one dollar and recognized immediately in
profit or loss for the current period. A government grant related
to income shall be accounted for as follows:

a. if the grant is a compensation for related expenses or
losses to be incurred by the enterprise in subsequent
periods, the grant shall be recognized as deferred
income, and recognized in profit or loss over the periods
in which the related costs are recognized.

b. if the grant is a compensation for related expenses or
losses already incurred by the enterprise, the grant shall
be recognized immediately in profit or loss for the current
period.
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21.

22.

Recognition of revenue

U]

(ii)

(iii)

Sale of goods: when the major risk and rewards in the
ownership of the goods have been transferred to the
purchaser, the Company no longer exercises continuing
management and actual control over the goods in
connection with ownership, economic benefits in
connection with transactions can flow in the enterprise
and the relevant revenue and costs are reliably
measurable, the Company will confirm that revenue from
the sale of the goods has been realized.

If the collection of the price as stipulated in the contract
or agreement is delayed and if it has the financing
nature, the revenue incurred by selling goods shall be
ascertained in accordance with the fair value of the
receivable price as stipulated in the contract or
agreement. The difference between the price stipulated
in the contract or agreement and its fair value shall be
amortized within the period of the contract or agreement
employing the real interest method and shall be included
in the current profits and losses.

Provision of labor services: for labor services which are
commenced and completed in the same year, revenue
is recognised upon completion of the labor services. If
the commencement and completion of a labor service
falls in different fiscal years, relevant revenue from the
labor service will be recognised on the date of the
balance sheet on the basis of the percentage of the
completed labor service, provided that the results of
the labor service provision transaction is reliably
estimated.

Assignment of asset use rights: the Company will
confirm that revenue is realized according to the period
and method stipulated under relevant contract or
agreement, provided that economic benefits in
connection with a transaction can flow in and the
revenue amount is reliably estimated.

Accounting of Income Tax

The Company applies the balance sheet liability method for
accounting of income tax. The tax bases of acquired assets
or liabilities are determined upon their acquisition by the
Company. Where there is difference between the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities and the tax bases, the deferred
income tax assets or the deferred income tax liabilities arising
therefrom are recognised.
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Scope of consolidation and methods of preparing
consolidated financial statements

Consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with ABSEs no.33-Consolidated
Financial Statement and relevant supplementary regulations
issued by the Minitry of Finance of the PRC. The scope of
consolidation for consolidated financial statements is
recognized on the basis of control. The consolidated financial
statements are prepared on financial statements of parent
company and subsidiaries, to adjust long equity investment
of subsidiaries according equity method, then offset significant
balance and transactions between the Company and its
subsidiaries and among subsidiaries.

Profit and profit distribution

The obtained net profit of the Company shall be appropriated
by the following order:

(i) offsetting against losses for previous years

(i) appropriation 10% of net profit to statory surplus
reserve, if the statory surplus reserve is more than 50%
of the registered capital, it may not be appropriated.

(iii) appropriation to discretionary surplus reserve

(iv) payment of dividends to common shares
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(4) SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES, AND
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS

1. AvdpEEWNHENAEET AN 1.  Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures
iy % Dt
B Fr W' ARE
Unit: RMB’000
LFER Bt BERE gMRF  RELA BELE BREE HSLERE
Relationship
Name of subsidiaries Place of Registered Investment Economic Time of with the
and joint venture Registration  Scope of Business Capital Proportion  Nature Investment Company
BRERMBR Lk BERRERBIR Eﬁﬁﬁﬂ% 50,000 4500% ABREHE 2001.12 FAA
RER WE%BZE R sIER
BRAF ERramRnE.
(BRER) BERRHRSTIE
HEIR BSHT
RE BREED
RS BgEE
HE-
Xi’an Ser Turbo Machinery  Xi'an City Design, develop and 50,000 45.00%  Limited 2001.12 Subsidiary
Company Limited sales of turbo machinery liabilities
(Xi'an Ser)
REERE LGS ik BERB TREM ETER 27,960 65.34% AREE 2001.12 FAA
BERRA (RAEER) EHTREHE BHER
TR0 B 8 R8s
R HAREMEE HE.
Shaanxi Hengtong Intelligent Xi’an City Develop and sales of machines, 27,960 65.34%  Limited 2001.12 Subsidiary
Company Limited develop and sales of machine liabilities
(“Shaanxi Hengtong”) manufacturing mould, machinery,
equipment, electronic products,
software and hardware
TRER ”é B ARm ER BN ETIRREMN 35,000 78.03% EBREM 2002.12 FRA
EFE T( THER) RE EE HE RITRS-
Xi'an Jiaotong Un|ver3|ty Xi’an City Develop manufacture and sale 35,000 78.03%  Limited 2002.12 Subsidiary
Siyuan Intelligent Electric of electronic products, liabilities
Apparatus Company electronic machine and products
Limited (“Siyuan”) of electronic power, provide
technology services
EARAEBKADKS E#m ERBEBNRE ER- 20,230 96.74% BREMF 2002.11 FRA
BERAR (BEHEHR) %@Lxﬁ%@%?uu TREM-
ERUMNHETE REAH
Winko Machines Company ~ Kunming City  Develop, apply and integrate 20,230 96.74%  Limited 2002.11 Subsidiary
Limited (“Winko”) hardware and software; retalil, liabilities

whole sale, purchase on behalf

of others and consign electroni

products, machinery and
electronic machine

IC
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BT BE ARK
Unit: RMB’000
NCEL :33 ] #EEE EMEF RELH EENE REBH HFLFRE
Relationship
Name of subsidiaries Place of Registered Investment Economic Time of with the
and joint venture Registration  Scope of Business Capital Proportion  Nature Investment Company
BB SR RHAT ME Rt EENHERERRK 5008 BT 50.00% ABREE 2005.4 REd%
BRAT (RAEH) ZIERREN RESHNBER
ETEBRMER BRHMRBR
RirER HMEREE
HEARMI
Tos Kunming Machine Kunming City  Develop, design, manufacture and 5 million 50.00%  Limited 2005.4 Joint venture
Tool Company Limited sales of machine tool products, Euros liabilities
(“TOS Kunming”) and high-tech products and
repairs of machine
RPEBRRNER =9/ EEHEBOBRE BORAR 10,000 95.00% ERE(E 2004.01 BZER
BRAR (RYER) BERBRERY ZFRal
Changsha Ser Turbo Changsha City Design, develop, sales of 10,000 95.00%  Limited 2004.01 Subsidiary of
Machinery Equipment turbo machinery liabilities Xi’an Ser
Company Limited
(“Changsha Ser”)
MNERRERELR i RERBRELR BEK SER 1,200 51.00% ABREE 2004.04 AR ER
BRAR (MMER) FEBKERE ERER ZFRal
BEEN AR REREGNRET
RE HERRMERE B TE:
BEM BEHN T2IA
SEMH EEEROER
At BARKERN S ERR
Hangzhuo Ser Turbo Hangzhou City Design, develop and sales of 1,200 51.00%  Limited 2004.04 Subsidiary of
Machinery Equipment turbo machinery, technology liabilities Xi’an Ser
Company Limited development, retail, whole
(“Changsha Ser”) sale of construction
materials, and import and
export business
RRRRERAR 2N EREE 500 100% BREE 2006.10 FARA
BERT (BKES)
Kunji Transportation Kunming City ~ General cargo transportation 500 100%  Limited 2006.10 Subsidiary
Company Limited liabilities
ARhARERETR ARH REREZTIR 60,000 16.67% BRATF 2006% VN
HREERAF
(AR
Xi’an Ruite Laser Xi'an City Manufacture fast prototyping 60,000 16.67%  Limited 2006 Associated
Prototyping series equipments liabilities Company

Manufacturing &
Engineering Research
Co., Ltd. (“Xi"an Ruite”)
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2 BEHN ARAMBERAHRED
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REHNRAELHPAFFRA
BRLERTLHE A0
EITMREE TRAER1-3A
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RABRFBALERIS%RE
BEAZEREZTEREF AR
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HE-

2005 4R 7H AR RHEET
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RR & i - 52 & 5008 BT » A
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AE e -

KA B FR2007E3/823H B 7
FREEEEE _+RAEHE
HBBEBARQRFERAER
BREAKEFRAGBRESRE
SHEEEE14008 70 2R
MERERETRRAEAER A
ali

(iii)

(iv)

Changes in consolidated statements during the reporting
period

During the period, Shaanxi Hengtong has been sold to
Xi’an Ruite. The financial statements consolidated
Shaanxi Hengtong’s income statement and cash flow
statement of January to March, 2007.

Even though the Company holds 45% of the total share
capital of Xi’an Ser, most of the directors of Xi’an Ser
are sent by the Company. Therefore, the Company
consolidated statements of Xi’an Ser and its subsidiaries
Changsha Ser and Hangzhou Ser.

On April 7, 2005, the joint venture TOS Kunming was
established by the Company and Czech Tos Company
Limited with registered capital 5 million Euros. Even
though the Company holds 50% of the registered capital
of TOS Kunming, it does not have the controlling power.
Thus, the statements of TOS Kunming have not been
consolidated in the Company’ statements.

The Company invested RMB500,000 to establish Kuniji
Transportation Company Limited, which is a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company. The statements of
Kunji Transpiration have been consolidated in the
statements of the Company from the date of its
establishment.

On 23rd March, 2007, a resolution was passed at the
20th meeting of the 5th term board of directors which
approved the Company used its shareholding of Shaanxi
Hengtong as consideration of RMB14,000,000.00 to
acquire equity interest in the Xi’an Ruite.
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(1) 4 OF &1 w3 3R Wk (5) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. BEWES 1.  Cash and Cash Equivalents
By ARKTT
Unit: RMB
RIK & Hme
hEEE ANRE2HE SERHE AR L
At 30th June, 2007 At 1st January, 2007
Foreign Foreign
"E ITEMS Currency RMB Currency RMB
B Cash: - 545,552.13 - 601,786.29
AR RMB - 454,930.34 - 390,030.21
B HKD 37,717.64 36,748.3 37,717.64 37,894.91
ETT (UR]] 6,949.26 52,922.07 17,680.15 138,058.99
HEEL IRD 390,000 390 390,000 332.86
BT EUR 54.86 561.42 3,454.86 35,469.32
RITFER: Bank deposit: - 249,804,418.63 - 164,004,046.31
AR RMB - 218,711,822.93 - 136,722,811.17
B HKD 30,159,760.17  29,384,654.33  24,662,913.23  24,778,828.92
E UsbD 191,847.75 1,461,102.59 320,463.87 2,502,406.22
BT EUR 22,082.63 246,838.78 - -
HiE®RES: Other currencies: - 1,999,112.5 - 2,188,430.03
AR RMB - 1,999,112.5 - 2,188,430.03
A&t Total - 252,349,083.26 - 166,794,262.63
2. ME W 5 ¥ 2. Bills receivable

(1) REMCE B

(i) Category:

BiE:ARK

Unit: RMB

HER® ko)

At 30th June, At 1st January,

aE ITEMS 2007 2007
RITHE S ESE Bank acceptance notes 122,003,648.32 50,360,390.23
MERNES Commercial acceptance notes - 1,771,000.00
&t Total 122,003,648.32 52,131,390.23

d BEREEAHEHNER
134.03% * £+ EZ XA EJiHEMA
A EATE -

Note: bills receivable increased 134.03% due to sales revenue
increased largely during the period.
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3. HEWOR
(1) o B B

3.  Accounts receivable

(i)  Account aged analysis

By ARKT
Unit: RMB
RN | How
EE&a IR &
&8 L 81 (%) WIRER &8 (%) RS
At 30th June, 2007 At 1st January, 2007

Account Book value Bad debt Book value Bad debt

R aged analysis Amount Proportion (%) provision Amount Proportion (%) provision

—FHR Within one year 170,311,486.04 70.49  4,360,776.01 120,848,831.28 63.24  4,360,776.01

—&Z 1-2 years 33,282,959.30 13.78  11,691,979.65 28,023,833.06 14.66  11,859,964.65

—E=E 2-3 years 10,344,336.92 4.28 16,450,920.92 19,406,818.76 10.16  17,530,793.76

ZENE Over 3 years 27,659,080.00 11.45 22,568,804.29 22,823,804.29 11.94  22,568,804.29

Bt Total 241,597,862.26 100 55,072,480.87 191,103,287.39 100 56,320,338.71
it Note:

(1) BEUEEH R A A AR F5% (&
5%) BA BB #0307 5O 44
WL T MERER S &
HE-

(2)  HARPEMER KL HA 9 1E In38.39% -
FERAHHEERAKRBIERAR

(2) SR MR A A 2 ) 19 L

(1) The details regarding amount due from shareholders whose
shares exceed 5% (including 5%) of the total shares of the
Company are shown in Note 7 “RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIP
AND TRANSACTION”.

2) Accounts receivable has increased 38.39% as compared with
the beginning of the year due to sales revenue increased.

(i)  Changes of bad debt provision during the period

B ARKET
Unit: RMB
EHREDH
Hwird HHE &t HXexH
Increase/Decrease
At 1st January, At 30th June,
A Items 2007 Transfer out Total 2007
JEUBR Z IR 2R Bad debt provision of
accounts receivable 56,320,338.71 1,247,857.84 1,247,857.84 55,072,480.87
it Note:

(1) BEEFZREREHHONREZR
ARE[MEBER] FRAARE &
BEHRAEKIBREER]I RFNE
ERBERBAAFRREBEN IR
ZEREBRAOTIEBER]HN
1,247,857.847T °

() AMEHMEYBRSPEREAFE%
(55%) A ERRER MDA RE
{37 B R R

(1) Bad debt provision changes due to the Company disposed the
shareholding of Shaanxi Hengtong. During the period, the
balance sheet of Shaanxi Hengtong did not consolidate to the
Company’s statement, thus, the bad debt provision decreased
RMB1,247,857.84 of Shaanxi Hengtong.

2) Shareholders whose shares exceed 5% (including 5%) of the
total shares of the Company have not owed any amount in the
accounts receivable.
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4, i R Wk 4. Other receivables
(1) H At R i 3 B 1 (i) Account aged analysis
By ARKT
Unit: RMB
B ikl
BEEHE BEEHE
&# L8 (%) IR &8 L8 (%) IR
At 30th June, 2007 At 1st January, 2007
Account Book value Bad debt Book value Bad debt
B aged analysis Amount  Proportion(%) provision Amount  Proportion(%) provision
—FHR Within one year 14,388,199.65 56.17 998,095.68 13,280,180.86 56.87  1,014,499.24
—E- 1-2 years 2,469,854.90 9.64  2,318,989.39  4,965,296.51 21,26 2,440,014.79
“E=F 2-3 years 7,626,253.37 29.77  1,255,723.51 1,403,611.91 6.01 1,403,611.91
ZENE Over 3 years 1,131,098.68 442  3,703,947.27  3,704,097.27 15.86  3,704,097.27
At Total 25,615,406.60 100  8,276,755.85 23,353,186.55 100  8,562,223.21
i3 AMENGEI #2006 F12 A31 Note: As compared with the total amount of RMB14,285,967.61 in
H #8 % #(14,285,967.611# 31st December, 2006, the other receivables increased
504,995.73 + B A ZF A ER] B RMB504,995.73 due to new accounting standards deleting the
VBT [IEW R BHE - B [FE item “grants receivable”, and the balance of grants receivable
Bk I BIE erBEEEA - transfer into the other receivables.
(2) At JRE s O R Y A 5 B (i)  Changes of bad debt provision during the period
b
By AR T
Unit: RMB
XHREDH
e BH HxerE
Increase/
At 1st January, Decrease At 30th June,
HH Items 2007 Transfer out 2007
H fth 8 5K Bad debt provision of
BRIR other receivables 8,562,223.21 285,467.36 8,276,755.85
F(1) H it JEY R IR E B BB B Note: (1) Bad debt provision of other receivable changes
BB BB E A S FR A due to the Company disposed the shareholding of
AR K KNI 1B 8 E R Al Shaanxi Hengtong. During the period, the balance
BEBERMAESIREXGBA EHK sheet of Shaanxi Hengtong did not consolidate to
E 5% 18 48 2 7] #9285,467.36 T ° the Company’s statement, thus, the bad debt
provision decreased RMB285,467.36 of Shaanxi
Hengtong.
() AREHAMBYRESFESFE L (2)  Shareholders whose shares exceed 5% (including
B15% (5% ) L KRR 898 5%) of the total shares of the Company have not
FEM RN owed any amount in the other receivables.
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5. B MR 5. Prepayments
By AR T
Unit: RMB
iE Mme
& L Bl(%) &8 L Bl(%)
At 30th June, 2007 At 1st January, 2007
11 3 Aged analysis Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
—F R Within one year 58,991,536.73 83.02  43,196,018.09 99.53%
—E= 1-2 years 10,643,344.31 14.98 73,000.00 0.17%
—E= 2-3 years 916,588.81 1.29 128,914.28 0.30%
=FHE Over 3 years 507,732.39 0.71 - -
& Total 71,059,202.24 100  43,397,932.37 100
#F(1) T AR A 148 :<63.74% + F & Note: (1) Compared with the beginning of the period, the
BEMTEAEER RFIIEES prepayments increased 63.74% due to Xi’an Ser
(7] 7 {4 7K 4Z J0 AT 2 o increased its prepayment and prepayments of
supporting contracts increased.
(2) AREHFENEAFESTE R AI5%
(B5%) LA RFWENR (7 BIIR R B/ (2)  Shareholders whose shares exceed 5% (including
IR K 5%) of the total shares of the Company have not
owed any amount in the prepayments.
6. y ety 6. Inventories
By AR T
Unit: RMB
HRE biEs]
RERE BEER RERE REBHE BEER RERE
At 30th June, 2007 At 1st January, 2007
Account Net realizable Account Net realizable
RE Items Balance Provision value Balance Provision value
Rt Raw materials 62,017,446.66  5,607,447.92 56,409,998.74 69,924,700.02  6,492,790.63 63,431,909.39
EGFER Finished goods 70,427,333.79  12,104,630.04 58,322,708.75 70,695,987.26 12,104,630.04 58,591,357.22
EEM Work in progress 150,242,448.54  6,277,441.75 143,965,006.79 145,038,943.75  6,277,441.75 138,761,502.00
HHER Good sold 40,080.83 426,174.15 (386,093.32)  426,174.15 426,174.15 -
A% Total 282,727,309.82 24,415,693.86 258,311,615.96 286,085,805.18 25,301,036.57 260,784,768.61
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7. WELH AR E:

Available-for-sale financial assets

B ARKT

Unit: RMB

HMEXLOAEE EMAREE

Fair value at Fair value at

BHH Items 30th June, 2007  1st January, 2007
A ERESTA Available-for-sale equity instruments 11,902,402.80 11,902,402.80
A5 Total 11,902,402.80 11,902,402.80

2004F2A230 H AR HAP EESH R
II(ZAHEREEEAR) AR
Ee ARBS0008B T 2P EESH
ETEEEREER ZRHR1F-H

EEFERREBERE MERK
NABEIRFE®BEIE 2006688 -
BRIEFPHBESRAT FEESHET
THEE -# 1-20065F12531H A A
BT IRNABEZAEMHEEES
13,8108 T °

2007 8AY RRIHBHR T AEH
BREREESF U FEEDTANE SR
F-200748 8130 ' A AUt @ & 5£38
B & $3,2088 7T’ (A R)HR2004F 3 3
1AREREBFF NN ELET K
WmA25EB L AR AFTNEZEET &
43,6288 7T) °

On February 23, 2004, the Company entered into an agreement
with China Fortune Securities (“China Fortune”) for the
trusteeship of the management of investment in state bonds
(“the Trusteeship Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company
entrusted China Fortune to conduct investment on state bonds
with RMB50,000,000.00 (the “Fund ”) for one year. However,
China Fortune failed to comply with the Trusteeship Agreement
to invest in state bonds but using the Fund to invest in stocks
and incurred huge losses. In August 2006, China Fortune was
performed the liquidation work in accordance with the decision
made by China Securities Regulation Commission. As at 31st
December, 2006, the Company has recognized an impairment
loss of RMB38,100,000.00 for the Fund. At the beginning of
August, 2007, the Company applied to unfreeze the Company’s
capital account in China Fortune Beijing Operating
Department. On August 13, 2007, the Company took back
RMB32,030,000.00 of the Fund (The Company has received
the Fund proceeds of RMB4,250,000.00 from China Fortune
on March 1, 2004. Thus, the Company totally took back
RMB36,280,000.00 of the Fund.)
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8. HEBAEBREMNBEAERYE 8. Long-term investment joint venture and associated

company

B ARET

Unit: RMB
FOEER
k313 REHEM LiE S FHEX
HRBREMER it E 431 BRLE(%) RRAELOH (%) BRELT BA#E FHEBRHR
Proportion of
voting rights Net assets Operation
Name of Place of Nature of Investment in invested at 30 June, revenue  Net profit of
invested company registration business proportion(%) company(%) 2007 of the period the period
— RELE
BEREHERERAA ZHER BREREEHE 50.00 50.00 52,629,962.29 24,879,017.49  1,968,559.29
1. Joint Venture
TOS Kunming Kunming City manufacture and 50.00 50.00 52,629,962.29 24,879,017.49 1,968,559.29
sales of machine
tool products
= BELE
AREERERE i:qiil RRKHEBEEHE 16.67 16.67 63,051,736.03 3,098,598.34  (702,437.50)
IRARERDA
2. Associated Company
Xi'an Ruite Xi'an City Manufacture and 16.67 16.67 63,051,736.03  3,098,598.34  (702,437.50)
sales of fast
prototyping
series
equipments
9. 00 B HE B 9. Long-term equity investment
(1) 769l 38 B AR5 I L o B 3R (i) Proportion of investment and voting rights
e RE 1Y
B AR¥T
Unit: RMB
ERBREEM
SR Lol
EHRBREEN EHRREEMR KRB
t5): 34 REHG A—BEIREA
Proportion
of voting rights
Investment in invested
HREEN Name of invested company proportion (%) company(%) Remark
EmME BRI Yunnan Cheng Jiang Copper 40% - -
Products Plant
ERRBHEKER AR TOS Kunming 50% 50% -
P& I B R R B Xi’an Ruite
TRFRERRAF 16.67% 16.67% -




2007 Interim Report || 75

2) WHAEEE (i)  Based on cost method

By ARKT
Unit: RMB
MERERSE biEo) 3] BEEH i3 wEER

Provision for

diminution
in value of
Initial Opening Increase/ Closing long-term
WIRTEM Invested company  investment cost balance decrease balance investment
EmAE B LIRAME Yunnan Cheng
Jiang Copper
Products Plant 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000

(3) HERERA (iii) Based on equity method

BT MiE:ARK
Unit: RMB
NERERT HagE BREH HRBE WEER Refn

Provision for

diminution
Initial in value of
investment Opening Increase/ Closing long-term Cash

HEREEA Invested company cost balance decrease balance investment dividends

EHESEKEBEAT  TOS Kunming 24,739,533.99 25341,128.79  975875.18 26,317,003.97 - -

RZEHREZEETE  XPan Ruite

REERDA 10,000,000.00  10,000,000.00 (156,664.30)  9,843,335.70 - -
it Note:

(1) AREFEZETHNBE EXGFE (1) Full provision for impairment loss on long-term investment of
AEBET) AL A HZTER A2 8B Yunnan Cheng Jiang Copper Products Plant was made because
RBTRHEBREREER: the plant has lost of the ability of sustainable operation.

(2 AREEREENHITHEITEHE (2)  There is no significant difference between the accounting
BANAEEAEZR REZHERK policies used by the invested companies and that used by the
B U 25 A 1B [B] EE KR # Company. There is no significant restriction to realization of

investment and investment income outflow as foreign currency.
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10. WeEE 10. Fixed assets
(1) EEEEN (i) Fixed assets and accumulated depreciation
By AR T
Unit: RMB
B FHENY FHURIH EE
At 1st January, Increase in Decrease in At 30th June,
®"E ltems 2007 the period the period 2007
— R{EAG: 1. Fixed assets at cost 571,146,119.54  20,588,246.96  13,450,867.05 578,283,499.45

Eh BEREZEY

R
B8R
ETRE

CREEAE:

EhBEREZEY

R
BHRE
ETRE

EhBEREZEY

=
B3,

&
&
RE

SREREA

Eh BEREZEY

R
BHRE
ETRE

Eh BEREZED

R
BHRE
ETRE

2.

BEBEFEA 3.

4.

BEBEFBA 5.

Including: building
and constructions
Machinery equipments
Transportation equipments
Electronic equipments
Accumulate depreciation
Including: building and
constructions
Machinery equipments
Transportation equipments
Electronic equipments
Net book value
Including: building and
constructions
Machinery equipments
Transportation equipments
Electronic equipments
Provision for impairment
Including: building and
constructions
Machinery equipments
Transportation equipments
Electronic equipments
Net realizable value
Including: building and
constructions
Machinery equipments
Transportation equipments
Electronic equipments

228,329,119.11
288,773,588.66
24,674,169.91
29,369,241.86
211,099,118.62

40,344,782.12
141,625,500.46
9,479,844.51
19,648,991.53
360,047,000.92

187,984,336.99
147,148,088.20
15,194,325.40
9,720,250.33
8,345,323.87

7,717,278.52
180,223.47
447,821.88
351,701,677.05

187,984,336.99
139,430,809.68
15,014,101.93
9,272,428.45

2,789,428.80
12,365,767.33
2,981,623.82
2,451,427.01
13,984,732.01

4,028,867.54
6,983,174.16
1,194,649.75
1,778,040.56
6,603,514.95

(1,239,438.74)
5,382,593.17
1,786,974.07

673,386.45
0.00

6,603,514.95

(1,239,438.74)
5,382,593.17
1,786,974.07

673,386.45

10,825,825.06
1,624,546.85
1,000,495.14
8,363,543.55

31,752.78
6,632,305.56
1,108,718.67

595,766.54
5,087,323.50

231,118,547.91
290,313,530.93
26,031,246.88
30,820,173.73
216,720,307.08

44,341,896.88
141,976,369.06
9,570,775.59
20,831,265.55
361,563,192.37

(31,752.78) 186,776,651.03

4,193,519.50
520,828.18
404,728.60
520,020.30

519,929.30

91
4,567,303.20

148,337,161.87
16,460,471.29
9,988,908.18
7,825,303.57

0.00
7,197,349.22
180,223.47
447,730.88
353,737,888.80

(31,752.78) 186,776,651.03

3,673,590.20
520,828.18
404,637.60

141,139,812.65
16,280,247.82
9,541,177.30
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e TR 11. Construction in progress
(1) TFEHITHE (1) Construction in progress
B ARKT
Unit: RMB
biES ikl
IRESE HEER RERE IRERE HEER RERE
At 30th June, 2007 At 1st January, 2007
Net realizable Net realizable
HE Item Balance Provision value Balance Provision value
EREIR Construction in
progress 77,560,281.83  2,132,152.98 75,428,128.85 60,684,500.26  2,132,152.98 58,552,347.28
2) HTEHERIEEAZIHEN (i)  Change of construction in progress
By BE-ARK
Unit: RMB
i By
oEo) | FHEM *RAY BAEERE FREF(LEH i |
Amount
At 1st January, Increase Decrease Transfer to of interests At 30th June,
HHER ltem 2007 this period this period  fixed assets capitalization 2007
[NWA]EH& “Nine. Five” Technical
improvement projects 41,422.00 - - - - 41,422
BRAE Siyuan office building 28,640,211.23 5,191.10 - - - 28,645,402.33
HERE New factories 10,654,130.99  11,333,104.56 8,162.8 249,561 1,016,865 22,746,376.75
HipTi2 Others 21,348,736.04  4,424,659.71 - - 353,685 26,127,080.75
At Total 60,684,500.26  15,762,955.37 8,162.80 249,561 1,370,550 77,560,281.83
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12. B HE

12. Intangible assets

By AR T

Unit: RMB

RrtimE

MMEEsE FHEmE FRHRKIE HXREEHRE B K]
Accumulated

provision

At 1st January, Increase Decrease At 30th June, on intangible

"E Item 2007 this period this period 2007 assets

& (1) Goodwill (1) 2,932,088.88 - - 2,932,088.88 676,635.9

P:ﬁ%i(Q) Goodwill (2) 1,963,220.22 - - 1,963,220.22 1,963,220.22

P2 (3) Goodwill (3) 6,024,018.42 - 2,375,878.02 3,648,140.40 -

2R EA Rl The all over vortex

technology 5,814,999.80 - 581,500.02 5,233,499.78 -
RRK A EH KA Technical know-how

of fast moulding 7,777,213.79 - 7,777,213.79 - -
R HE AR Intelligent know-how 4,974,420.02 - 406,998.00 4,567,422.02  2,713,320.0
BREBBEERM Technical know-how

of embroidery 2,323,453.26 - - 2,323,453.26 2,323,453.3
i B Land use rights 25,288,682.42 - 296,701.30 24,991,981.12 -
BITEERE Usage right to staff

quarter 3,457,949.93 - 46,729.02  3,411,220.91 -
TRt Financial software 893,311.88 40,000 21,760.95  911,550.93 -
NAMUEMAEE  Company’s website

development 6,333.50 - 3,799.98 2,533.52 -
NEEREE “Nine. Five” Technical

improvement

software 912,222.41 - 150,664.80 761,557.61 -
NS Office software 385,835.00 - 64,486.54  321,348.46 -
A& Total 62,753,749.53 - 11,725,732.42 51,068,017.11 7,676,629.4

Note:

(1) LA EEE 2001 F12H KA AE (1) Goodwill is made for the difference between the transaction
HEEBEMRRAALTXAEXEE price and the book value when Xi’an Jiaotong University
BERRERERLS BEMEFE Industrial Group acquired two subsidiaries from Intelligent
HER ZELAREBEAZRE 2 Electronic Machine and Automatic Machine, in December 2001
712002 F [Z LA 3% ¥ 18] 3 3 50 & 2 A during the course of the assets restructuring. The company
LA ERRESFIR L TAR made the investment of the assets in the two subsidiaries and
RABHFEE#ESBRAA BHK relevant goodwill stated above and established Xi’an Jiaotong
AEBHEBEESFIRN A ZHEE University Siyuan Intelligent Electric Apparatus Company Limited
BT S T T T and Winko Machines Company Limited in this year. Goodwill (1)
ot 1B R 5 o and goodwill (2) are not amortized in accordance with the new

accounting standards and will be conducted impairment test.

2) BEQ)EAAHOLZERERAE 2) Goodwill (3) is the difference in equity investment results from

SR 15 B IR 2 5] F B 718 38 & B A
BERABIKRERFELENRERE
ERE IR G ERIHAREK K
EHBRIARLBEEEEHE] -
AR B 2 7] B BT 158 & 6
RSB R A A RE [158E 8
THMNAE HABE N BEQG)HRE
S T 15 5E#)2,375,878.02 ©

the investment in Xi’an Ser and Shaanxi Hengtong. According
to the new accounting standards, those differences are
recognized as investment cost, and recorded as intangible
assets-goodwill in the consolidated statement. During the period,
the Company disposed the equity of Shaanxi Hengtong, and
statements of Shaanxi Hengtong will not be consolidated in the
company’s statements any more. Goodwill (3) in the company’s
consolidated statement decreased RMB2,375,878.02 of Shaanxi
Hengtong at the end of the period.
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(8) FHEFRIMIE 2001F128 KL (3)  Technical know-how is that the Company acquired from Xian
B B i B EE AR B ) D 2 XK EE Jiaotong University Industrial (Group) Incorporation in December
L EE B AR F B 72002 F F KL 2001 during the course of the assets restructuring. The Company
AR [EEEEF RN [ made the investment of “Intelligent Technical Know-how” and
HERMIRED AR TALXKX “Embroidery Machine Technical Know-how” and established Xian
BREEESBRA A BHXALE Jiaotong University Siyuan Intelligent Electric Apparatus
# 8 B S H R 2 7] 2003 F K 1 Company Limited and Winko Machines Company Limited. In
AU [RF B EE F T A E 2003, the capital injection of the Company in Shaanxi Hengtong
BEETEBERAFIEE- was based on the carrying value of “Fast Moulding Technical

Know-how”.

(4) THEABHVEBZFEARK (4)  Land use right was contributed by Yunnan Government as
FFABR R EAFF 2 5l R Y capital. The addition for current period was due to the purchase
BREAM L L EFEFRE of land by Changsha Ser. Land use right amounting to
13,586,764.80 L (E A {FR7T1E RMB13,586,764.80 has been pledged for secured loans.
okt

(5) ACHIRRE  ERE B HEES A E T (5)  After checking up at the end of the period, provision for
REHEELHEFIF HEREMABEEER diminution in value of goodwill and technical know-how of
[BHBBFRN BREEDE embroidery were the balance of the two items because
TR B 2EAE - embroidery business was fully stop.

13. BRI BLE E 13. Deferred tax assets
By ARBT
Unit: RMB
M FH®EmM FHRY MEkE
At 1st January, Increase Decrease At 30th June,

R"E ltem 2007 this period this period 2007

BIEEE Various provisions 24,842,757.05 - 201,237.15  24,641,519.90

A & F Internal profit 2,358,539.61 - 301,357.09 2,057,182.52

FRFEREEBEH Amortization on investment

difference of subsidiaries 1,413,328.61 - 501,294.41 912,034.20

FRARREEE Subsidiaries investment

losses - 41,416.07 - 41,416.07
PR Er BN A 15 B Income tax on early

retirement salaries 5,439,990.14 - 228,234.80 5,211,755.35
ERRBAER Income tax on after-sales

service 533,184.02 737,678.43 - 1,270,862.45
ER#H L - 352,351.65 - 352,351.65
B Total 34,587,799.44 779,094.50 1,232,123.45  34,487,122.14
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14, % A AL R i W1 A0

14. Provision for impairment of assets

B ARET

Unit: RMB
MR E
FEMRERE FHHRE [} & HREDHE
Decrease this period
Balance at Balance at
1st January, Provision 30th June,
HH Item 2007 this period Transfer out Total 2007
—  EREE 1. Provision for bad debts  64,882,561.92 - 1,648,424.81 1,648,424.81 63,234,137.11
= RELEEB 2. Provision for impairment
of inventories 25,301,036.57 - 656,294.87 656,294.87  24,644,741.70
= A#tfEeR 3. Provision for impairment
BEREEE of available-for-sale
financial assets 38,097,597.20 - - - 38,097,597.20
M HBRIEBEE 4. Provision for diminution
B in value of investment
held-to-maturity - - - - -
- REBRERE 5. Provision for diminution
REER in value of long-term
investment 2,967,706.05 - 967,706.05 967,706.05 2,000,000
N REURME 6. Provision for impairment
B of investment in
real estates - - - - -
t EEEEREEE 7. Provision for impairment
of fixed assets 8,345,232.87 - 519,929.31 519,929.31 7,825,303.56
N IERMEREER 8. Provision for impairment
of construction
materials - - - - -
N ERIBREEE 9. Provision for impairment
of construction
in progress 2,132,152.98 - - - 2,132,152.98
T EEHANEE 10. Provision for impairment
BEER on production - - - - _
biological assets
Hep A AEEEEY Including: mature production
BERNEEE biological assets - - - - -
+— BREEREER 11. provision for impairment of
oil assets - - - - -
s BREERBEER 12. Provision for impairment
of intangible assets 11,238,128.89 - 3,561,499.50 3,561,499.5 7,676,629.39
= BEBAEERE 13. Provision for impairment
of goodwill - - - - _
T Efh 14. Others - - - - -
&t Total 152,964,416.48 - 7,353,854.54  7,353,854.54 145,610,561.94
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15. BAE 15. Short-term loans
By ARKT
Unit: RMB
HR® ko)
At 30th June, At 1st January,
HA Item 2007 2007
HEARE R Secured loans 20,000,000.00 40,000,000.00
At Total 20,000,000.00 40,000,000.00
16, MEAS R : 16. Accounts payable
AR EHENERFEBRNBEAR Shareholders whose shares exceed 5% (including 5%) of the
5% (85%) A ERFERNDOKRRE total shares of the Company have not owed any amount in
iz 3k B8 B 75 /O 5K IE o accounts payable during the period.
17. TR 17. Advances from customers
RRERBWRERFELKFTE AR Shareholders whose shares exceed 5% (including 5%) of the
5% (&85%) A ERFERRORFE total shares of the Company have not owed any amount in
iz 3k BB B 75 B9 5K IE o advances from customers during the period.
18. M Ao OBk 0567 P 18. Accrued salary
By AR T
Unit: RMB
KPR e FHBmE FHIAE HWRIEDRE
At 1st January, Increase Decrease At 30th June,
R"E Items 2007 this period this period 2007
— I& %% 1. Salary, bonus,
B A0 B subsidy and grants 6,511,810.09 51,927,635.16  53,088,947.99 5,350,497.26
- BIwEFMEB 2. Employees’ benefits 4,351,460.07 3,853,401.28 2,168,182.42 6,036,678.93
= HeRRBRE 3. Social insurance - 10,427,533.65  10,286,549.50 140,984.15
m FEAES 4. Housing fund - 3,360,528.00 3,360,528.00 -
e Eft 5. Others - 661,641.56 49,499.80 612,141.76
N ARAMTEME 6. Early retirees
A B E benefits 23,088,149.44 - 1,521,565.31 21,566,584.13
B Total 33,951,419.60 70,230,739.65 70,475,273.02  33,706,886.23

#it: REIZ2RE R R E R AE TS
I i 7E AR FIT 15 A B % B 47
B & B A F T H FEE.2% °

Note: The Company refers to high quality corporate bonds market
interest rate to determine the discount rate of the salaries for
early retirees. Presently, the discount rate is 5.2% annually.
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19. HERBLE: 19. Taxes payable
B AR
Unit: RMB
X Home i
At 30th June, At 1st January, Payable
HH Item 2007 2007 standard
EXMEE Total taxes payable 25,486,843.57  23,595,496.03 -
Hoh i EF Including: Value-added tax 13,882,469.23 12,500,830.04 -
FriS Income tax 11,706,657.16 9,581,962.84 -
(EPNZIEEE Personal income tax 535,526.82 158,590.57 -
BED House property tax 767,278.81 703,935.99 -
20. i B A Ak 20. Other payables
R EMEMENRPERENREERD Shareholders whose shares exceed 5% (including 5%) of the
A15% (&5%) LA L RIAHERMD R R total shares of the Company have not owed any amount in
Aok A 5 RO RRIE other payables during the period.
21. HEfE 21. Contingent Liability
By AR T
Unit: RMB
X Mo fi &£ iR B9
At 30th June, At 1st January,
HH Item 2007 2007 Remark
EmmERE Products’ quality warrant fee 6,354,312.25 3,554,560.13
At Total 6,354,312.25 3,554,560.13
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22, FeWIfEak: 22. Long-term loans
By ARKTT
Unit: RMB
BR# ko)
At 30th June, At 1st January,
HH Item 2007 2007
EAER Secured loans 50,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
it RAIEMNEIK L FIEN250% - £ Z Note: Long-term loans have increased 250% during the period due to
FRARBRBIMAEXRBRAERFK the fund invested in the technological renovation of the
1 9 Company.
23. R 23. Long-term payables
By ARKTT
Unit: RMB
R R nmeHE RKer
Initial At 30th June,
fERENM Category Period amount 2007
FERRERER Obligation under
finance lease 204 6,843,378 5,474,702.40
WoARBERAMEER Less: future finance charge - 2,579,197 1,869,918.10
B FREHENEMBMEMAE  Less: amount due for
settlement with
one year - - 684,337.80
a1 Sub-total - 4,264,181 2,920,446.50
PR PG A B e A R R Infrastructure constriction
Appropriation from
the office of Finance
of Shaanxi province - - 200,000.00
B 8 b T B8 B 0 B AR 4 BT Appropriation for
EXRETRER intelligent electronic
machine industrialization
exemplary project
technology and
equipment technology - - 7,000,000.00
A&t Total - 4,264,181  10,120,446.50
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24. WA 24. Specific Project Payables
By AR T
Unit: RMB
Ha® FTHEEW X ®
At 1st January, Transfer in/ At 30th June,
HE Items 2007 out this period 2007
THARZEEER Specific project
appropriation from
the Science and
Technology Committee
of Yunnan Province 3,211,680.50 - 3,262,085.50
PRAAENRZTEABLEIHEENK Specific project
appreciation for
industrial automation
from Shaanxi Provincial
Development and
Reform Commission 8,000,000.00 - 8,000,000.00
PREGA MBEERFBEREK Specific project
appreciation from
Shaanxi Intellectual
Property Office 100,000.00 - 100,000.00
= Total 11,311,680.5 - 11,362,085.50
25. JEHE W2 25. Deferred Gain
By AR
Unit: RMB
Ho® MM X B
At 1st January, Amortization At 30th June,
HEA Item 2007 this period 2007
KEHERE Operating lease 1,318,748.95 43,958.30 1,274,790.65
BMEHEREE Finance lease 1,037,303.00 34,576.77 1,002,726.24
g Land use right 1,760,754.90 58,691.83 1,702,063.07
= Total 4,116,806.85 137,226.90 3,979,579.96
O]
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26. JEHL 3B A 26. Deferred tax liabilities
By AR T
Unit: RMB
e FH®EmM FHRD ke
At 1st January, Increase Decrease At 30th June,
H"E Item 2007 this period this period 2007
FRAAEE M Investment income from
subsidiaries 150,546.13 246,069.91 - 396,616.04
BEEGFAEE Tax directly record in
BREARS items related to
FHENMER owner’s equity 2,316,238.68 - 90,645.80 2,225,592.88
&5t Total 2,466,784.81 246,069.91 90,645.80 2,622,208.92
27. AR 27. Share capital
By R
Unit: Share
FREBH FREHER (+0-) FREDE
BE 8l (%) LEREER Hft it BE 8l (%)
Before Share Increase Increase/decrease After Share Increase
Share
increase by
transferring
Share capital Proportion (%) capital reserve Others Sub-total  Share capital Proportion (%)
B in 2 Total shares 245,007,400 - 38,235,855.00 - 38,235,855.00 283,243,255.00 -
28. HEARAR 28. Capital reserve
By ARKTT
Unit: RMB
Ho# FHIEm R D X
At 1st January, Increase Decrease At 30th June,
R"E ltem 2007 this period this period 2007
BERRE (RANHE) Share premium 305,280,480.12 - 38,235,855.00 267,044,625.12
HEEARDE Others 7,201,238.17 - - 7,201,238.17
&5 Total 312,481,718.29 - 38,235,855.00 274,245,863.29
lic?
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29. K4 B A 29. Unappropriated profit
By AR T
Unit: RMB
R
HH Item At 30th June, 2007
F R Net Profit 94,343,873.43
s FE 9 R 5D BRFE Add: unappropriated profit at the beginning of this year 35,338,908.22
Hineg A Other transfer in
B REVEERBRATE Less: Statutory surplus reserve
2 9 B F Unappropriated profit 129,682,781.65
30. BEWA 30. Operation revenue
By AR T
Unit: RMB
THBEH LTHRES
Revenue
Revenue for the for the same
A Item reporting period period of last year
FEEBKA Principal operation revenue 549,083,532.06 355,582,473.95
HihZEBHA Other operation revenue 1,896,518.91 1,316,119.49
&5 Total 550,980,050.97 356,898,593.44
it ARA2007FFFEEFIAEEF Note: Total sales of the 5 largest customers was up to
B85 B A 48 55 559,197,935.11 RMB59,197,935.11 which constitutes 10.74% of the total sales
Tt 2R E WAL B revenue of the Company.
10.74%
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31. HeEWRE 31. Investment income
By ARKIT
Unit: RMB
FHE FHIAE
THeH xHEH SEHRE
Amount of
the same period Amount of Reasons
WIREEA Invested in of last year this period for change
e Investment fund 105,747.07 -
B (& National bonds 2,467,218.5 -
ERHER Xi’an Ser (364,813.86) -
PR 1E Shaanxi Hengtong (334,277.34)  (1,388,083.31) PR pyiE @ P4
HERAL
RS/
Shaanxi
Hengtong
has sold its
shareholding
to Xi’an Ruite
78 Hf 1 R TOS Kunming (353,043.85) 818,615.35
SEIR T Winko 21,280.38 -
A&t Total 1,542,110.90 (569,467.96)
et ARIEETRA/ER A R65.34%H Note: The Company sold its holding 65.34% shareholding of Shaanxi

fRiE R ERREAR REERER
14008 0 IR X EI H 200756478
H-2007F1=E - ERAAEE
968,286.767T ' I A &) R A% b R E
HIEH632,710.99 L S E R IEHF A
RIAE B & FBERP EBRA
1B & Bk 51,388,083.317T°

Hengtong to Xi’an Ruite for the consideration of RMB14,000,000
on April 8, 2007. In the first quarter of 2007, Shaanxi Hengtong
had a loss of RMB968,286.76. The loss of RMB632,710.99 in
accordance with the Company’s investment proportion in
Shaanxi Hengtong, has been undertaken by Xi’an Ruite. Thus,
in the consolidated statement, investment loss of Shaanxi
Hengtong was RMB1,388,083.31.
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32. BEMHKEA 32. Non-operating income
By AR T
Unit: RMB
XHREST LTHRES
Revenue for
Revenue for the same period
HE Item this period of last year
IRBEERE Gain on disposal of non-current assets
1S &5 64,298.78 287,373.54
Hb - BEEE Including: Gain on disposal of fixed assets
B NG 64,298.78 287,373.54
EEERERNS Gain on disposal of intangible assets - -
EERE Refund of value-added tax 15,722,278.14 444,154.69
NEEXER Equity from the donation of personal
[EPNE %= shareholder of Shaanxi Hengtong
Pt #5 P 1 2,020,794.30 -
Hith Others 48,210 179,262
&5 Total 17,855,581.22 910,790.23
33. BEMNHXIH 33. Non-operating expenses
By AR T
Unit:
XHREST LTHRES
Expenses for
Expenses for the same period
HH Item this period of last year
EMENEE Loss on disposal of non-current assets
BREEKXEF 1,204,507.07 333,983.71
Hb - BEEE Including: Loss on disposal of fixed assets
BREERX 1,204,507.07 333,983.71
EmILEEREBK Loss on disposal of intangible assets
BN Contribution expenses - 11,300
SIE:N Penalties 3,160.22 10,868.46
BB & Relief payment 13,926.00 3,342.00
Hi Others 23,331.03 28,153.81
&5 Total 1,244,924.32 387,647.98
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34, FBifdBiTtH 34. Income tax expenses
By AR T
Unit: RMB
EH LTERPH
At 30th June, At 30th June,
HH Item 2007 2006
EHFEH Income tax expenses for this period 12,679,044.91 3,426,832.91
EEFTIS M Deferred income tax 1,227,855.41 (1,118,555.91)
&t Total 13,906,900.32 2,308,277.00
() BB J5 B B Bk 52 B (6) RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS
1. AEFEHFBNBRERENNHI 1.  Joint venture and associated companies
By ARKT
Unit: RMB
FOREH
FoRRGE BEHAMRR
i it E£2:3°1 dmEE Le Bl (%) L6l (%)
HEREMER Place of Nature of Registered Investment  Voting rights
Invested company registration business capital proportion (%) proportion (%)
— AEDRE
B A 8 AT R ZHEHA BREmM 5008 BT 50 50
BRAF HEHE
1. Joint venture
TOS Kunming Kunming City Manufacture 5 million euros 50 50
sales of and
machine
tool products
- BEcE
78 & i R R AL TRIR R A 60,000,000 16.67 16.67
HETRAR BEE
BRRA HE
2. Associated company
Xi’an Ruite Xi’an City ~ Manufacture 60,000,000 16.67 16.67
and

sales of fast
prototyping

moulding
equipments
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By AR T
Unit: RMB
RAX A= FHER
BEESS AfREH P8 1] FHBHE
Total Operation
Net assets at liabilities at revenue at Net
30th June, 30th June, 30th June, profit for
HREEMEE Invested company 2007 2007 2007 the period
— BELE 1. Joint venture
B A B T iR TOS Kunming
ERAQT 81,477,940.98 28,847,978.69 24,879,017.49 1,968,559.29
Z BERE 2. Associated company
AR RR Xi'an Ruite
FE TR
ERAT 70,734,391.68 7,682,655.65 3,098,598.34 (702,437.50)
(&) B2 w) &l % Wk (7) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE
COMPANY
1. HE e 5 9% 1. Bills receivable
By AR T
Unit: RMB
i E HmE
At 30th June, At 1st January,
'E Category 2007 2007
RITHEGESR Bank acceptance notes 83,167,812.48 30,149,988.21

it EREBRARL A R175.85% ¢
FERRHERAKIGERATE

Note: Bills receivable increased 175.85% as compared with the same
period of last year due to sales largely increased during the

period.
2. R W5 M ik 2.  Accounts receivable
B ARKT
Unit: RMB
HRY By
IRE&E IREERE

&8 L 81 (%) IR &8 (%) AR & R

At 30th June, 2007 At 1st January, 2007
Provision on Provision on
R Aged analysis Amount Proportion (%) bad debt Amount Proportion (%) bad debt
—FLR Within 1 year 130,680,008.54 82.96  2,600,087.25 82,007,539.23 68.86  2,600,087.25
—&2Z 1-2 years 4,473,755.89 2.84  4,952,655.17 12,854,514.11 10.79  4,952,655.17
—EZF 2-3 years 1,651,632.38 1.05  6,740,844.05  7,232,469.05 6.07  6,740,844.05
ZFENRE Over 3 years 20,709,071.20 13.15 16,752,579.40 17,002,579.40 14.28 16,752,579.40
=H Total 157,514,468.01 100.00 31,046,165.87 119,097,101.79 100.00 31,046,165.87

it ABREHEREA T EFE R A%
(85%) LA LR AER R R ELNL
BYR K

Note: Shareholders whose shares exceed 5% (including 5%) of the
total shares of the Company have not owed any amount in
accounts receivable during the period.
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3. il HE B3k 3. Other receivables
B ARKT
Unit: RMB
BEY Lol
RERE RERE
&8 L (%) AR &8 Ll (%) HRE R
At 30th June, 2007 At 1st January, 2007
Provision on Provision on
BE Account Aged analysis Amount Proportion (%) bad debt Amount Proportion (%) bad debt
—ENA Within 1 year 9,916,174.14 41.90 507,899.70  10,662,989.77 46.62 507,899.70
—EZ 1-2 years 2,089,031.38 8.83  1,003,450.81 11,839,308.43 51.76  1,003,450.81
—E=F 2-3 years 11,357,432.24 47.99 279,464.40 279,464.40 1.22 279,464.40
ZENE Over 3 years 305,386.95 1.29 92,211.55 92,211.55 0.40 92,211.55
At Total 23,668,024.71 100.00  1,883,026.46 22,873,974.15 100.00  1,883,026.46
it INER A Y E i E UCRR Gk A A Note: Shareholders whose shares exceed 5% (including 5%) of the
BEARA5% (85%) A _FRFE total shares of the Company have not owed any amount in
B& 17 B B% BT 85 (i ¢y A 2 other receivables during the period.
4. FAATMEZ 4.  Prepayments
B ARKTT
Unit: RMB
RS LiER
& E B (%) &8 LB (%)
At 30th June, 2007 At 1st January, 2007
Proportion Proportion
IR Account Aged analysis Amount (%) Amount (%)
—FHA Within 1 year 2,251,854.67 16.92 1,129,000.47 12.24
—EC 1-2 years 9,635,647.75 72.38 7,632,324.31 82.71
—E=fF 2-3 years 916,588.81 6.89 - -
=FpE Over 3 years 507,732.39 3.81 466,032.39 5.05
At Total 13,311,823.62 100.00  9,227,357.17 100.00
g ANIREHENELPEEE N Note: Shareholders whose shares exceed 5% (including 5%) of the
5% (5% ) LA _FFRAEK % total shares of the Company have not owed any amount in
H % B3 85 iy fy o 2 prepayments during the period.
5. WAMBELBREE: 5.  Available-for-sale financial assets
By AR T
Unit: RMB
BRXAORRE FEMoREE
Fair value at Fair value at
HH Item 30th June, 2007  1st January, 2007
At ER# X T A Available-for-sale equity instrument 11,902,402.80 11,902,402.80
&5t Total 11,902,402.80 11,902,402.80
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PHERERE

2004F2A23H HKARIHEPFEHESE
AI(ZABRERETEAR) UEAE
B ARMES000B L ZEtHP ERFH
ETREREEE ZHR1E-H

EREFERBREBERE MER
ARBERFEREIE-2006F8A -
BRETPHEESGRET PEESET
fTHUS IR - 12006512 5310 A A
BEGTIRNABEAEMBEEEA
13,8108 7T 20078 A ¥ A A
BRTARFAREREBZFIEREE
HAHELIKRE 2007688130 A
AW EEFEIEHGE4£3,2038 7w (A
AR2004F3 1A EIR EEH T
B ZE IR B 254258 T A FIA Bk
B Z:EEME 53,6288 7T) ©

On February 23, 2004, the Company entered into an agreement
with China Fortune Securities (“China Fortune”) for the
trusteeship of the management of investment in state bonds
(“the Trusteeship Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company
entrusted China Fortune to conduct investment on state bonds
with RMB50,000,000.00 (the “Fund ”) for one year. However,
China Fortune failed to comply with the Trusteeship Agreement
to invest in state bonds but using the Fund to invest in stocks
and incurred huge losses. In August 2006, China Fortune was
performed the liquidation work in accordance with the decision
made by China Securities Regulation Commission. As at 31st
December, 2006, the Company has recognized provision for
impairment loss of RMB38, 100,000.00 for the Fund. At the
beginning of August, 2007, the Company applied to unfreeze
the Company’s capital account in China Fortune Beijing
Operating Department. On August 13, 2007, the Company
took back RMB32, 030,000.00 of the Fund (The Company
has received the Fund proceeds of RMB4, 250,000.00 from
China Fortune on March 1, 2004. Thus, the Company totally
took back RMB36, 280,000.00 of the Fund.)

6. TN IR HE Bt ¥ Long-term equity investment
(1) A5 WA B L 5 I L 1) B 3 (i)  Investment proportion and voting rights proportion in the
e HE 1Y invested companies
By AR T
Unit: RMB
Hmmex e BEEDn BRRE
At 1st January, Increase/ At 30th June,
HREENM Invested company 2007 decrease 2007
AR ERMMEEREK Xi’an Ser
REBAR DA 49,022,287.88 - 49,022,287.88
18 38 %5 AL 71U # 23 Shaanxi Hengtong
BRA A 14,967,706.05  (14,967,706.05) -
RARNBIRE g Siyuan
ERERAA 21,349,780.39 - 21,349,780.39
ERZAERED Winko
HERER A A - - -
2 B 38 HT H AR TOS Kunming
BRAA 25,341,718.50 984,279.65 26,325,998.15
EFE BTN R Yunnan Cheng Jiang Copper
Products Plant 2,000,000.00 - 2,000,000.00
EREKESR Kunji Transportation
EREMERT 485,851.41 - 485,851.41
A& I B R R B Xi’an Ruite
TITEMRBERLDA 10,000,000.00 (165,664.3) 9,834,335.70
R E Less: provision for impairment loss 2,967,706.05 (967,706.05) 2,000,000.00

Total

120,199,638.18

(13,181,384.65)

107,018,253.53
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& %L P 15 BLUE A 7. Deferred taxes assets
By AR T
Unit: RMB
MM FRIEm TR xR
At 1st January, Increase Decrease At 30th June,
"E Item 2007 this period this period 2007
BIEER Provision for assets
impairment 21,419,544 .14 - 290,538.20 21,129,005.94
FRAAEERK Investment loss from
subsidiaries 7,220,715.16 - 853,856.02 6,366,859.14
FRAAREEZTHEE Amortization of equity
investment difference
of subsidiaries 1,413,328.62 - 501,294.41 912,034.20
MR F B ET 5 Tax on early retirees’ salary  5,439,990.14 - 228,234.80 5,211,755.35
EERBAER Tax on after-sales service 533,184.01 737,678.43 - 1,270,862.44
ERBLL - 352,351.65 - 352,351.65
A& Total 36,026,762.07 1,090,030.08 1,873,923.43  35,242,868.72
3 %E Pr 45 B £ 4% 8. Deferred taxes liabilities
By AR TT
Unit: RMB
MM FRIEm TR xR
At 1st January, Increase Decrease At 30th June,
"E Item 2007 this period this period 2007
FRAREE W Investment income from
subsidiaries 7,894,836.29 246,069.90 - 8,140,906.19
BERITAAEE#ER Taxes directly on
BHERSEENAEH items related to
owner’s equity 2,316,238.68 - 90,645.80 2,225,592.88
A&t Total 10,211,074.97 246,069.90 90,645.80 10,366,499.07
BRBA 9.  Operation revenue
By AR T
Unit: RMB
xHBRER LTHRESE
Revenue for
Revenue for the same period
HE Item this period of last year
FEEBKA Operation revenue 441,820,051.38 253,637,143.91
H B RA Other operation revenue 1,816,518.91 1,049,198.56
& Total 443,636,570.29 254,686,342.47
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10. B B2k 10. Investment income

By AR T

Unit: RMB

THHELH

BEen

L& m XHEHE B R

At 30th June, At 30th June, Reasons

HEEREM Invested company 2006 2007 for change
PR 7E B i Shaanxi Hengtong (1,109,971.26)  (2,020,794.30)
BB S Winko (2,566,529.07) 357,204.21
JEEIR/ Y7 TOS Kunming (353,043.85) 984,279.65
BERME Xi’an Ser 3,346,271.16 -
B & National bonds 2,338,449.55 -
He Investment fund 234,516.02 -
BRE 8 Siyuan 86,192.19 -
AL Xi’an Ruite - (165,664.30)
= Total 1,975,884.74 (844,974.74)

et LAl AT B R 1E 38 2 5]65.34% £

RIEHERRIFE R RIEHEZEN
1400 % 7T - R X & H2007 F4 A8
H 2007 F 13FE - 188 1 7] 5 18
968,286.76 7T & 1 Al [R5 IR H F fE
A HE#1632,710.99 7T 5 18 H Hi 5 A
AJAE - E U & BRI R P B
1548 /9 # & 18 55 41,388,083.31 L °

Note: The Company sold its holding 65.34% shareholding of Shaanxi
Hengtong to Xi’an Ruite for the consideration of RMB14,000,000
on April 8, 2007. In the first quarter of 2007, Shaanxi Hengtong
had a loss of RMB968,286.76. The loss of RMB632,710.99 in
accordance with the Company’s investment proportion in
Shaanxi Hengtong, has been undertaken by Xi’an Ruite. Thus,
in the consolidated statement, investment loss on Shaanxi
Hengtong was RMB1,388,083.31.
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ON) BBk 75 % Bl Bk 32 % (8) RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIP AND TRANSACTIONS
1. 17 72 ¥ i BH 4% 0 B 0B 07 1 0L 1. Details of related parties with controlling relationship
(1) 771 250 1 BH (1) Related parties with controlling relationship
HBEpR HENE i i
4 £:3 % BEY i TEREEE BERERA
Relationship
with Place of Legal
Name the Company Nature registration  Scope of business representative
BHER (SE)EREE KRR EREE il SBBIBR B R RE R RELC
A (EEHASE) HE BRN-REXESH RNESH
Shenyang Machine Tool The largest Limited liability Shenyang City Production of metal-cutting machines, Chen Hui Ren
(Group) Company Limited shareholder digital controlled software and machine
(“Shenyang Group”) accessories; General business trading
and technology trading within PRC.
BRERRIHER FRAE BREME fisk2qil BERRERBETR Ssal BEE Eck
BRAR (BRER) BREREB SIERBERABNN
M g ymtl 2 TR BEIR.
BLIRE GRERORMAE
BREE HE-
Xi'an Ser Subsidiary Limited liability Xi’an City Design, develop and sales of Wang Shangjin
turbo-machinery
PREERE A AR FRAE BREME skl ERE TRMM EFTEMR SHT EXE
BRAR (RAER) BREE MR IRNRIMAE:
R ARE BARANEE HE-
Shaanxi Hengtong Subsidiary Limited liability Xi'an City Develop and sales of manufacturing moulds, Lu Bingheng
machinery, equipment, electronic products,
software and hardware.
AZRABRREHRES FARAE BRER [ ERENEFIRRERNAE. REE
BRAR (BER) EE HE RITRSE-
Siyuan Subsidiary Limited liability Xi’an City Develop, manufacture and sales of Zhang Hanrong
electronic products, electric machinery
and products of electronic power;
Provide technology services.
BERARAEHEHKE Fral BERER E®m ERPERBORE ER ZREMN: RE R
BRAF (BDHR) EFEM ERBMN ESEMN
HETE RBAHE.
Winko Subsidiary Limited liability Kunming City Develop, apply and integrate hardware Zhang Hanrong
and software; retail, wholesale,
purchase on behalf of others and
consign electronic products, machinery
and electronic machinery.
ERRKEREREAML FAT BEREME E®Rm LREE REER
NE(BHEH)
Kunji Transportation Subsidiary Limited liability Kunming City =~ General cargo Zhang Xiaoyi
Transportation
AR RERETR FRA BREME ik REKE RFRE PN
HEABRLDA
Xi'an Ruite Subsidiary Limited liability Xi’an City Manufacture and sales of fast prototyping Lu Tianjian

moulding equipments
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(2) B BAAR Y BT Y G & (i)  Registered capital of related parties with controlling
A J Hsg b relationship
g6 AR
Unit: RMB
O 75 HA 12 KER D HARE
At 1st January, Increase Decrease At 30th June,
TtEZR Name 2007 this period this period 2007
EHHRE Shenyang Group 712,840,000.00 - - 712,840,000.00
AXER Xi’an Ser 50,000,000.00 - - 50,000,000.00
prAfER Shaanxi Hengtong 27,960,000.00 - - 27,960,000.00
BeeE R Siyuan 35,000,000.00 - - 35,000,000.00
B Winko 20,230,000.00 - - 20,230,000.00
B#ER Kuniji Transportation 500,000.00 - - 500,000.00
AR FRREE Xi’an Ruite
TRRAEBRAA 60,000,000.00 - - 60,000,000.00
(3)  A7TE £ 1 BHAR B BH BBt 7 T (iii) ~ Shares and equity held by related parties with controlling
i 13 BORE 45 S B AL relationship
By AR T
Unit: RMB
ik B
&8 LBl (%) FHam s8R &# LB (%)
At 1st January, 2007 At 30th June, 2007
Proportion Increase Proportion Decrease
LEER Name Amount (%) this period Amount (%) this period
EHEERER Shenyang Group 71,052,146.00 29 - 71,052,146.00 25.08
AZER Xi'an Ser 22,500,000.00 45 - 22,500,000.00 45
REER Shaanxi Hengtong 18,270,000.00 65.34 18,270,000.00 - -
BHER Siyuan 27,310,000.00 78.03 - 27,310,000.00 78.03
EE): 3 Winko 19,570,000.00 96.74 - 19,570,000.00 96.74
REER Kunji Transportation 500,000.00 100 - 500,000.00 100
ARBRRREE Xi'an Ruite
IBHEERAA 10,000,000.00 16.67 - 10,000,000.00 16.67

it RAMEHN BRAAEERLAED

Note: The Company implemented share increase by transferring capital

BB AR AN 48 R 7K #1285,007,400 1% reserve during the period. The total share capital of the Company
£283,243,255/% * (L% 5 K £ increased from 245,007,400 shares to 283,243,255 shares. The
FZFRR I FH29% T & 225.08% ° shareholding proportion of Shenyang Group decreased from

29% to 25.08%.
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A A7 FE %l BE A% 0 BB O G 0L 2. Related parties with non-controlling relationship
LREB BELENRE

Name Relationship with the Company
BREAERKKER DA aEDE

TOS Kunming Joint venture
ARmFREALETRAEGR QA B b %

Xi’an Ruite Associated company
RREHRALWZERLA BERATBRE

Czech Tos Vansdorf Company Limited (“Czech Tos”)

THECYEERRIEMESHF L

Yunnan CY Group Company Ltd. Products Trading Center
(“CY Group Products Trading Center”)

EHEREEREABRAT

Yunnan Yunji Group Import and Export Company Limited
(“Yunji Group”)

Shareholder of TOS Kunming

FE—ARABRRZFRA

Subsidiary of the largest shareholder of
the Company

BE-RERZFRA

Subsidiary of the largest shareholder
of the Company

B B 32 B G UL 3. Connected transaction
(1) HBEEMEM B850 B (i) Connected transaction regarding purchase of goods and
Lo receipt of services
B AR T
Unit: RMB
FHH LEHY
HRE BEE
R B RBX S THEED ZHEED
ABA TAAE EEEM & LBl (%) &8 E B (%)
Pricing
principles

Contents of

for connected

At 30th June,

At 30th June,

Related party connected transactions 2007 Amount 2006 Amount
EHTA A HAE mIHER - - -
TOS Kunming Consultancy fee  Market price 10,000.00 - - -
BH#EELNR MEERE Mm% EE - -
Kunji Group Property management fee ~ Market price 887,594.67 - 494,975.55 -
Company BERBERE iz E % - -
Staff medical service fee ~ Market price 75,000.00 - 75,000.00 -

HERAAEERE Mm% EE - -

Administrative fee for retired staff ~ Market price 75,007.08 - 73,876.32 -
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(2) ST b 4R S5 BS I BR W

(ii)

Connected transaction regarding sale of goods and

52 provision of services
By AR&T
Unit: RMB
FHH TFEHH
R R
B B ABX5 ZHEEM ZHEEMH
BB A ZTHAE ERE &8 e Bl (%) &@ e Bl (%)
At 30th June, 2007 At 30th June, 2006
Proportion Proportion
Pricing in the same in the same
Contents principles kind of kind of
of connected for connected transactions transactions
Related party transaction transactions Amount (%) Amount (%)
EHEREEELEOBERAA HEEY miER  1,606,837.6 0.29 - -
Yunji Group Sales of goods  Market price
EHTA A HEEY mHER  2,070,724.44 0.38 749,439.63 0.21
TOS Kunming Sales of goods  Market price
[N RESS IS ERE 20,600 0.004 - -
TOS Kunming Sales of goods  Market price
4. B B 7 MEE W ME £°F 3K 4., Balances of connected transactions
By AR T
Unit: RMB
HE&®E AR5 MEeH Homes
At 30th June, At 1st January,
Item Related parties 2007 2007
HAth JE < 3R BHEH 1,349,716.22
Other receivables Kunji Group Company
JE 5 B R FEEIR/ Y7 3,821,396.37 4,960,475.33
Accounts receivable TOS Kunming
H h FE UK 299,393.52 140,205.88
Other receivables
J& < BR 3R 343,545.45 17,213,254.55
Accounts payable
TEBR X EHCYEERAIEREZ P L 4,300.00 81,700.00
Prepayments CY Group Products Trading Center
—FRIHNRBEM K A ARBUT 342,168.90 684,337.80
Long-term payables due Yunnan provincial government
within one year
REIER R 2,920,446.50 2,855,966.60

Long-term payables
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GAR-£ig:& % ¥ (9) CHANGE OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

B I52007F5 8158 BT EBE M ty (
Yo EMENEERIEEAS
BYF _BF R ENET RN
TAPERAE HAB T REDE
RELEHER BEERESIBITX
RABEL D EBRLEER S &
EIRHEEE FEURBRENOH
B FeLtiEREMNAESHAE
BEGHN LLREEENEE ¥
EEHERITFLRHEREEZES
BRABMBMBRISHORNEAEBLE
MBWHEERBES BRAEERN
BITHM (BREFN) TEEBRIR
ReSHorHBRRAINARBRIT
EMAESMLERBEBMELENE
ol RERER(IEHEERY B
ARMEHERE ERARBEE QAAE
AIBMRIEE T252%  FNEBT45A
FEEISA QAR AELEMABLIH
NEEBTE THFBMABEEENE
HARBENHEEBLESRBE  AF
BEBRIELRERFEAZESRK
AR HHRRAB T EME
MO ERBES R AEMNRT
N (BHRER]) cEHR Et TE B
MOt EREBEINORHRE E5
FrA AL A 2BERAERE A
RIEMNMBHERENEE BalF
IR REN5.2% » WlsZ BHETT T
BB

@  #AE2006F ¥ B T BN
31,061,067.087C * # 1% Kk # R
Bh& & 95,863,554.287T « i 1%
IEFE AT 18 i & & 5,756,394.65
L AR E WK D B FOE
19,441,118.157T ¢

@ #AR2006FFE1-6AEEEH
1,635,649.677C  #% FE (B T
7 811,635,649.677T * #FK FE
REEEM629,314.757T 1L
B 7% & F629,314.75 7T~ FEUE
T 57 & E150,950.24 7T ~
#7187 150,950.24 7T « 718 %
#;8855,384.687T * T #R K&
4 B2 K% 18,585,733.47 7T

On May 15, 2007, the Ministry of Finance of the PRC
announced “Opinions of Professionals Working Group on
Implementation of the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises” (“Opinions”). According to the Rule 2.2 of the
Opinions, The Group has accounted for the accrued early-
retirement benefits for 252 early-retirement employees, 45 laid-
off workers and 5 unemployments commencing from the date
of their early-retirement up until their respective official
retirement. Since the the retirement benefits will pay for about
5 years, the Company refers to high quality corporate bonds
market interest rate to determine the discount rate of the
salaries for early retirees. Presently, the discount rate is 5.2%
annually. As at 30 June 2007, the Group has properly
accounted for these early-retirement benefits and retrospective
adjustments were made for the recognition of such accruals
for prior years.

(i) Retrospective adjustment of Opening Accounts on 1
January 2006: increased accrued salary of
RMB31,061,067.08; increased unrecognized finance cost
of RMB5,863,554.28; increased deferred tax assets of
RMB5,756,394.65; decreased undistributed profit of
RMB19,441,118.15.

(i)  Retrospective adjustment on 30 June 2006: decreased
administrative expenses of RMB1,635,649.67; decreased
accrued salary of RMB1,635,649.67; decreased
unrecognized finance cost of RMB629,314.75; increased
financial expense of RMB629,314.75; decreased deferred
tax assets of RMB150,950.24; increased income tax of
RMB150,950.24; increased net profit of RMB855,384.68;
decreased accumulatively undistributed profit of
RMB18,585,733.47.
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@® #FM2006FFEERESB
F13,341,901.327T * 38 sk F& 1< B
T % 813,341,901.327% R Kk
R A B H1,282,537.9570
18 BF 75 2 F31,282,537.957T
BB OE & T3 W B E
316,404.507T * #HE AT 15 &
316,404.507T * & ;F 7 B
1,792,958.86 T« 25T #A R A& 2
Bt B 17,648,159.297T °

@ AL 20074 ¥ FE B T H M
27,719,165.767T 1% K #E 2
Bt& & F4,631,016.327T 18
iR 3E BT 13 74 & & 5,439,990.14
o BEFFRFE YK D B ADE
17,648,159.297T °

® FAR2007FFE1-6EEREH
2,092,672.22 7 B EMNE T
#8M2,092,672.227T * I F K HE
REVE & F571,106.917T ~ 718
B 78 & F571,106.91 7T AR IE
M FT 15 7 & E228,234.807T * 3
1# Fr 15 %4 228,234.807T - 3818 %
#13581,293,330.51 70 25t AR
K9 B # B 16,354,828.787T °

HRARIER RAHE R AR
B ATRERANE BN E
ARRBABNFE AEMEFEE"
NARERENFELRGBRER
BAEBTAEHBESNES Ehk
BEBBELERFRELCRBTE BER
BEMNERRBBETIRBEARS
BFCEEEBRAHERHBLERE
TEZUEREEHEEEK - RIE
20076 A0 MR E KIMET &%
REBELCHBEERNHBELERAD
1.2% @ HIWBETHREEE Qe
UMD

@ ##®2006F ¥ B A E
1,243,836.54 7T * FI IR FT 15
T & E186,575.487T  #J8 &F #)
Ko B A E1,057,261.067T °

@ #2006 FE1-68
£ (&1,125,044.017T "
£ F1,125,044.017T LR T
Fri5 % & E168,756.607T » 1%
Fr18 % 168,756.607T * ¥ J5% 7
7956,287.41 0 25t FAR K o
fid 7B 2,013,548.47 7T °

(iii) Retrospective adjustment on 31 December 2006,
decreased administrative expenses of RMB3,341,901.32;
decreased accrued salary of RMB3,341,901.32;
decreased unrecognized finance cost of
RMB1,232,537.95; increased financial expense of
RMB1,232,537.95; decreased deferred tax assets of
RMB316,404.50; increased income tax of
RMB316,404.50; increased net profit of
RMB1,792,958.86; decreased accumulatively
undistributed profit of RMB17,648,159.29.

(iv) Retrospective adjustment of opening balance on 1
January 2007: increased accrued salary of
RMB27,719,165.76; increased unrecognized finance cost
of RMB4,631,016.32; increased deferred tax assets of
RMB5,439,990.14; decreased accumulatively
undistributed profit of RMB17, 648,159.29 from.

(v)  Retrospective adjustment on 30 June 2007: decreased
administrative expenses of RMB2,092,672.22; decreased
accrued salary of RMB2,092,672.22; decreased
unrecognized finance cost of RMB571,106.91; increased
financial expense of RMB571,106.91; decreased
deferred tax of RMB228,234.80; increased income
tax of RMB228,234.80 increased net profit of
RMB1,293,330.51; decreased accumulatively
undistributed profit of RMB16,354,828.78.

In recently years, the sales revenue increased rapidly. In order
to ensure matching the revenue and the expenses, fairly reflect
the profits, liabilities and net assets of the Group, the Group
decided to change the existing accounting practice (which
recognised the after-sales service expenses by actually
occured cost as profit or loss for the current period) to
recognise provision for warranty with a experienced rate for
after-sales expenses. The actual after-sales expenses will be
recognised under the provision for warranty. The experienced
rate will be reviewed and confirmed whether it needs to be
changed at the date of balance sheet. According to
experienced statistic information before 30 June, 2007, the
experienced rate of after-sales expenses is about 1.2% of the
sales revenue. As at 30 June 2007, the Group has properly
accounted for the provision for warranty and retrospective
adjustments were made for the recognition of such provisions
for prior years.

(i) Retrospective adjustment of Opening Acounts on 1
January 2006: increased contingent liability of
RMB1,243,836.54; increased deferred tax assets of
RMB186,575.48, decreased undistributed profit of
RMB1,057,261.06.

(ii) Retrospective adjustment on 30 June 2006: increased
contingent liability of RMB1,125,044.01; increased
selling expense of RMB1,125,044.01; increased
deferred tax assets of RMB168,756.60; increased
income tax of RMB168,756.60; decreased net
profit of RMB956, 287.41; decreased accumulatively
undistributed profit of RMB2,013,548.47.
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FIL2006F FE LA AR
2,310,723.59 0 - ;L L ¥ &
2,310,723.597C IR AL AT 15
i & E346,608.54 T« I FT 15
i 346,608.5475C « # & F A
81,964,115.057C KA R K
2 B8 3,021,376.117C °

i 1% 2007F ) B 5 & &
3,554,560.13 T« L IEEFTIS
T & FE533,184.027T - 25 AR
F ¥ x5 B %8 3,021,376.11
5o

#3520064F [ 1-6 A FIE AL,
£152,799,752.127T - L & %
£ [ 2,799,752.127T A 1L IR I
i8R & E737,678.4370 1%
Fr18 %1 737,678.437T  #J5% 7
82,062,073.697T  R&H R £
2 B2 A 5,083,449.807T ©

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Retrospective adjustment on 31 December 2006:
increased contingent liability of RMB2,310,723.59;
increased selling expenses of RMB2,310,723.59;
increased deferred tax assets of RMB346,608.54;
increased income tax of RMB346,608.54; decreased net
profit of RMB1,964,115.05; decreased accumulatively
undistributed profit of RMB3,021,376.11.

Retrospective adjustment of Opening accounts on 1
January 2007: increased contingent liability of
RMB3,554,560.13; increased deferred tax assets of
RMB533,184.02; decreased accumulative undistributed
profit of RMB3,021,376.11.

Adjustment on 30 June 2007: increased contingent
liability of RMB2,799,752.12; increased selling
expenses of RMB2,799,752.12; increased deferred
tax assets of RMB737,678.43; increased income
tax of RMB737,678.43; decreased net profit of
RMB2,062,073.69; decreased accumulatively
undistributed profit of RMB5,083,449.

(1) € ak £l 25

REARBRABERFEZAFRERE R
HBEEEEMTREEEAFER REXTME

(10). CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method to
recognize monthly. The estimated useful lives, estimated residual

WEERN-BFHOT: value rates and annual depreciation rates of the fixed assets WERE
as follows:

B EEERER 5 {H (%) FEREE(%)

Estimated Annual

Estimated residual depreciation

BEREHRR Fixed asssets category useful lives value (%) rate (%)

EEREY Buildings 40 4 2.4

B2 1 Machinery equipments 12-50 4 1.92-8

BFHRE BEARKE Electric equipments, fixture, furniture 10-14 4 6-9.6

EHITHE Transportation equipment 10-14 4 6-9.6

EER-AANHEEMEEANRE EA-EFE
BEMEMABEEN ATEMRARBRA
AMEEEEBE EEXRANME ARE
I [ ORTE & B B E B E A ET
MERERNHT ERENHEEEEM
AEBEERERMENERDT:

EHERFR

In recent years, sales and production have increased largely, the usage
of fixed assets increase. In order to fairly reflect the value of the fixed
assets, production cast and profit of the Company, the management of
the Company decided to change the estimated useful lives, estimated
residual value rates and annual depreciation rates of the fixed assets.
The followings ARE these items after changed:

A REERER 54 E % (%) FHMEFE (%)

Estimated Annual

Estimated residual depreciation

BEEEERN Fixed asssets category useful lives value (%) rate (%)
EEREY Buildings 40 5 2.38
HES R Machinery equipments 5-20 5 4.75-19
EFREB BANKKE Electric equipments, fixture, furniture 5-14 5 6.79-19
EHTH Transportation equipment 5-14 5 6.79-19

ZERHEAE E 52007 F7TA1RHIT

The new accounting estimates are implemented from 1 January, 2007.
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(+-) %t 2% &5 5 1

EEW R 2001 F 12 EAEEHA
FRENLERZEEE ARBFI
DEEM L EAE AEHA20F
WA AR IE W 2512,310,986.007T -
20054 ¥ IE & W = R @ #
59,714,394.9570 AR EMAE ARK
FF 4t 4 85 S 1 1 38 (B B A0 ST A 280
B4R %815 10,984,000.007C
3 3% (8 B 0P 82005 4 IR 1 UK 25 R
T8 %89,714,394.957T % 4 %0 5
1,269,605.055+ A 20054 E & Hi 18
#2006 F ELETEHBEHBZEY
49+ 3 18 {E %1 5,048,680.5270 €5t R
2% % 5t E #95,935,319.48 T T 1
1 B B 1 VR 1R IR JE UK 25 OR T AR R R
Hoe Pl ST ERHER BERT:

®  FAR2006FVERHE - EX
+ 12 (E 7 5,935,319.487T -
BEIHES -BEILEMER
231,608.837T * # 1% i IC W =
4,391,260.64 T AL F IR D
fid 778 1,312,450.017C °

@ 2006FE1—-6AFAMERE
137,226.907T * #5 iE & I ==
137,226.907C * #8158 #
20,584.037T  FAEE I & —
P EF8%20,584.037T° 27
38 K o B A 1,429,092.87
5o

@ #HL2006F FEEBE B
423,819.097T * 1€ B & W =
423,819.09 L AR ER T & —
fERX ¥ ATEFi11,202.407T
RT3 %8 11,202.407T R
SEA412,616.697T « 2 51 1%
9 Bt 78 899,833.32 T °

(11) CORRECTION ERRORS

Deferred gain/income: During December 2001, the Company
implemented capital restructuring and sold several buildings
and land use rights to Yunnan Provincial Government then
leased back for 20 years. The recognized initial deferred gain
was RMB12, 310,986.00. The opening balance of deferred
gain on 1 January, 2005 was RMB 9,714,394.95. Due to
problems producing from deductions and exemptions of Land
Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) approved by Yunnan Government,
the estimated LAT for the year RMB10,984,000 was offset the
deferred income of RMB9,714,394.95 at the beginning of 2005,
the remaining balance of RMB1,269,605.05 was considered
as non-operating expenses through profit or loss for 2005.
According to settlement result with the government tax
department in 2006, the actual LAT payment of the Company
for the year would be RMB5, 048,680.52. The difference of
RMB5, 935,319.48 between actual payment and recognized
amount made by the government would be transferred to
deferred income amortizing within the rest leasing period. The
above accounting transactions have mistakes and have been
corrected as follows:

(i) Retrospective adjustment on 1 January 2006:
decreased taxes payable-taxes payable for LAT of
RMB5,935,319.48, increased taxes payable-income tax
payable of RMB231,608.83, increased deferred gain
RMB4,391,260.64 and increased accumulative
undistributed profit of RMB1,312,450.01.

(i)  Retrospective adjustment on 30 June, 2006: increase
administrative expenses RMB137,226.90, decrease
deferred gain RMB137,226.90, increase tax expenses
RMB20,584.03, increase taxes payable-taxes payable
for LAT RMB20,584.03, accumulative increases
undistributed profit RMB1,429,092.87.

(i) Retrospective adjustment on 31 December, 2006:
increase administrative expenses RMB423,819.09,
increase deferred gain RMB423,819.09, decrease taxes
payable-taxes payable for income tax RMB11,202.40,
decrease income tax RMB11,202.40, decrease net
profit RMB412,616.69, increase RMB899,833.32 of
accumulative undistributed profit.
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2.  LEREIBL:2006F6 H30H B F)
HERRE E A-901,477.1070 R Al R
BRI RERREBR BHSHE
RAOBBRREEIEK29,410.5270 &
HBRERE - HBERALE
872,066.58 7T Filt @&t Z 5 (B 1E 40
T

FRIR B W 2529,410.527T  FER H Aty
& W58 29,410.527T ~ #8R & 2 BE F B
29,410.52 - A RERERE — 8
) 22872,066.587T i Al b JiE Uk 7Kk
872,066.587T

(+2) g A 3
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2. Understatement of investment loss: at 30 June 2006, net profit
of Winko was (RMB901, 477.10). Investment loss was
measured previously by ratio of equity investment, that leads
to overstate minority interests-investment loss of
RMB29,410.52, long-term equity investment of Winko was in
red figure of RMB872,066.58. Regarding the above errors,
the correction are shown follows:

Decrease investment income RMB29,410.52, decrease other
receivables RMB29,410.52, decrease undistributed profit
RMB29,410.52, increase long-term equity investment-Winko
RMB872,066.58 , decrease other receivable RMB872,066.58.

(12) CONTINGENT EVENTS

(13)

The Company was notified that a “Notice on the issues concerning
the administration on corporate income taxes levied on nine listed
companies abroad including the Sinopec Shanghai Petrochemical
Company Limited” (the “Notification”) (file no. Bl %% 4[2007]6645%)
issued by the State Administration of Taxation on July 4, 2007,
which demanded the local taxation authorities to correct the
execution of the preferential tax policy immediately which is still
being applied to the nine listed companies whose shares were issued
in Hong Kong under the approval of the State Council in 1993. The
relevant companies will be required to pay the difference in income
tax resulting from the application of the preferential tax policy in
the previous years in accordance with the relevant rules of the Tax
Collection Management ({fE &%) ). The Company is one of the
above mentioned nine companies. According to the Notification,
the existing applicable income tax rate of the Company will probably
be adjusted and the Company will probably be asked to pay the
difference (the “Tax Difference”) in income tax resulting from the
application of the preferential tax policy in the previous years. At
the end of the reporting period, the preferencial tax rate applied to
the Company has been not adjusted, it is the same as last year.

ADJUSTMENT ON CONSOLIDATED SHAREHOLDERS’
EQUITY RECONCILIATION BETWEEN NEW AND OLD
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

After review the consolidated shareholders’ equity reconciliation
between New and Old accounting standards, the following errors
and omissions were found and the relevant accounts were adjusted
as:

(i) Omitted recognized deferred tax assets of RMB 1,968,567.38
arising from unrealized internal profit of RMB13,123,782.54
of Xi’an Ser at 1 January, 2006; undeducted minority
interests of RMB48,437.62 of Changsha Ser and Xi’an Ser.
Adjustment: increased consolidated deferred tax assets of
RMB1,968,567.38; increased consolidated minority interests
of RMB1,131,149.68; increased consolidated undistributed
profit of RMB837,417.70; increased long-term equity
investment of RMB837,417.70 of parent company, increased
undistributed profit of RMB837, and 417.70 of parent
company. Since overstated profit or loss of Xi’an Ser by
computing mistakes, the adjustment has been made:
decreased deferred tax liability of RMB219,381.74, increased
undistributed profit of RMB219,381.74.

lIicy
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The issue of entrusted investment RMB50,000,000 handled
by China Fortune was settled. The recognized provision for
diminution in value of investment loss of RMB38,097,597.20
shall be reversed this year. Since the Company applied the
rate of 25% to calculate the deferred tax assets, and the
Company is implementing the rate of 15% on income tax,
thus, deferred tax assets was overstated. Adjustment:
decreased deferred tax assets of RMB3,809,759.72, decreased
undistributed profit of RMB3,809,759.72.

Shaanxi Hengtong, a subsidiary of the Company has been
sold to Xi’an Ruite. The recognized deferred tax assets and
liability were applied to the rate of 25% and the Company is
implementing the rate of 15% on income tax, thus, deferred
tax asssets of RMB1,027,814.94 was overstated, deferred tax
liability of RMB60,430.53 was overstated as well. Adjustment:
decreased deferred tax assets of RMB1,027,814.94, decreased
deferred tax liability of RMB60,430.53, decreased undistributed
profit of RMB967,384.41.

The net assets of Winko in the year 2006 were
RMB6,323,474.69, which offset the other receivables (Winko)
of the Company of RMB6,323,474.69, and caused understated
deferred tax assets of RMB1,572,964.33. Adjustment:
increased deferred tax assets of RMB1,572,964.33, increased
undistributed profit of RMB1,572,964.33.

The value of non-monetary asssets investment to TOS
Kunming increased of RMB8,868,576.33, and the donation to
Winko in the year 2004, of which can be enjoyed by the
Company was RMB33,795.18. These two transactions were
recognized as income directly in the items related to the
shareholders’ equity account for, and should recognize
deferred tax liability of RMB2,225,592.88. Adjustment:
increased deferred tax liability of RMB2,225,592.88, decreased
undistributed profit of RMB2,225,592.88.
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SIE i SR FERE FE ST ELRE After correction errors and omissions, the consolidated shareholders’
Em A R JHEIRMAT: equity reconciliation between New and Old accounting standards is as
follows:

MESTERREREEAHX EHREM - ARETT

Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity Reconciliation Unit: RMB’000
Between New and Old Accounting Standards

HA =8B HE&W BaTF A

No. Note Details The Company The Group

R &5t 2 H2006F 12 A31 B M E MR E R 611,473.2 610,752.4
Consolidated shareholders’ equity under previous
accounting standard on 31st December, 2006
mAYEEERSESAEHNOTE 899.8 899.8
Add: effect of correction of accounting errors
on deferred gain
RE T2 AI2006F 12 A31 A WS F R MR 612,373.0 611,652.2
Adjusted shareholders’ equity under previous
accounting standard on 31st December, 2006
1 REBREREBERARE 3,187.8 -
Adjustment of gain/loss on long-term equity investment
2 BUAAARBEREAFAENRENEFHE - -
Real estate held for investment value in fair value model
3 RATEEZEERERRENANFERES - -
Additional prOV|S|on of depreC|at|on for preceding years
4 TFAEAABERBIEEO AR TFEA S H MW (23,088.1) (23,088.1)
Salary for early retirees qualified as accrued liabilities
5 R 1 32 A - -
Share-based payment
6 TAEAAERRERENERREES (3,554.6) (3,554.6)
After-sales obligations qualified as accrued liabilities
7 BES G - -
Consolidation of enterprises
Hep:fA -6 TEEaHBENREEE
RIEFHER RO BB RELER - -
Including: Book value of goodwill from consolidation of
enterprises under common control
Provision for diminution in value of goodwill under
new accounting standards
8 NAnBEASHAEEZHFTATHERNSREE
ARAIHEE S RmEE - -
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or
loss and available-for-sale financial assets

9 NAnBEAELEEEHTAEHEENCRMER - -
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss
10 TR IADFEINNER - -
Equity increased by splitting financial instruments
11 PEes@IA - -
Derivative financial instruments
12 BRI AMEBEERRBERZEHEHNMAEM (2,316.2) (2,316.2)
Income tax directly record in items related to the owner’s equity
13 RS 28,131.9 34,437.2
Income tax
Hep :BRARIRERSREE 36,026.8 27,623.1
Including. Deferred taxes assets of parent company
S RARIREMBHAE (7,894.9) (150.6)
Deferred taxes liabilities of parent company
NENRIEFRS B E - 6,964.7
Deferred taxes assets of subsidiaries
ARNRIEFRSHAE - -
Deferred taxes liabilities of subsidiaries
14 DR R - (4,003.8)
Minority interest
15 Hh (0.6) (0.6)
Others
2007F1 A1 R R (st £ R)) 614,733.2 613,126.1

Consolidated shareholders’ equity under
new accounting standards on 1st January, 2007
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1 5 JANA Shenyang Holdings Corp.
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(14).OTHERS

The Company received a “Notice of judicial freezing and
judicial transfer of shares by China Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation Shanghai Branch (the “Shanghai
Branch”)” advised that 15,000,000 restricted circulating A
shares and their yield (including bonus shares, capitalization
shares, and cash dividend distributed by the Shanghai Branch)
held by Shenyang Machine Tool (Group) Company Limited
(“Shenyang Group”) have been subject to judicial freezing
from June 19, 2007 to June 18, 2008 in accordance with the
Notice of Assistance in Execution issued by Liaoyang
Municipal Intermediate People’s Court of Liaoling Province in
relation to the execution of the case of Chang Bai Calculator
Group Company against Shenyang Group applied by China
Cinda Asset Management Corporation, Shenyang Office.

The controlling shareholder-State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of Shenyang Group intended
to transfer its 49% out of 100% shareholding of Shenyang
Group (the “Transaction”) and confirmed JANA Shenyang
Holdings Corp. as the transferee of 30% shareholding of
Shenyang Group, and the transferee of the rest 19%
shareholding of Shenyang Group is not confirmed. The
Transaction needs to be approved by the government.
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(15) SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

1.  Reconciliation of difference in net profit

Item

BAT

The Company

By ARKT
Unit: RMB
aHH

The Group

IERN

2006 F - F [£ )% 7 )8
(RestZa)

EPRABBEEZEH
Hep: 8IREH
EBMRYPKRE G HE
HEAEREM
FRARAKRERR
EEE:3:0)iRE R
FRAARMREZRE
BHABRNMER

PR T 155 A B 35
i HER BN E
£ 1% BT 8 2T IR
B R

8 4 T Wt B 8
EXHYE
BB A B R LR
EERAHBFBNYE

+ 20064 F F F E F 7 )H

(Fr& s 2R

REZERITH S
EABEER

Heb BT ARRERE

EZHEMRE

FARHEEH

C EtEEHAE
+ 20064F F ¥ F [Z R #5 FH

1.

Net profit for the six months ended
30th June, 2006 under previous
accounting standards

Aggregate effect on retroactive adjustments

Including: provisions
Increment of accounting policies

adjustments for Ser long-term investment

Income tax on adjusting gain/loss of
long-term investment of subsidiaries

Income tax on adjusting amortization
on long-term investment difference
of subsidiaries

Effect on change of accounting policy
on salary for early retirees

Effect on change of accounting policy
on after-sales

Effect on adjusting of deferred income

Adjusting of investment loss of Winko
Effect on realized internal profit
Net profit for the six months
ended 30th June, 2006 under
new accounting standards
Pro-forma data assuming full implement
of new accounting standards
Including: Amortization of equity
investment difference of
the subsidiaries after tax
Amortization of goodwill of subsidiaries

3. Total effect on other items
4. Simulated profit of the first half

year of 2006

21,000,546.18
207,020.27

(23,225.05)
264,908.92

(162,338.28)

141,345.07
855,384.68
(956,287.41)

116,642.86
(29,410.52)

21,207,566.45

424,035.20

424,035.20

21,631,601.65

21,000,546.18
530,261.90

(23,225.05)
264,908.92

88,261.46

141,345.07
855,384.68
(956,287.41)
116,642.86
(29,410.52)
72,641.89
21,530,808.08
770,170.68

424,035.20
346,135.48

22,300,978.76
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Notes

Consolidated shareholders’ equity on 1st January, 2006

Consolidated sharcholders’ equity reconciliation under new

accounting standard

HE&ER

B ARKETT

BaT

Details The Company

Unit: RMB’000
=33
The Group

10

11

12

13

14

15

RE s AI2005F 12 A31 B M R ER T w5
Consolidated shareholders’ equity under previous
accounting standard on 31st December, 2005
MAERERESFTEZHNTER
Add: effect of correction of accounting errors on deferred gain
JRE T % AI2005F 12 A31HME ER MR R
Adjusted shareholders’ equity under previous accounting
standard on 31st December, 2005
REREREERAER
Adjustment of gain/loss on long-term equity investment
BUALAABEERAAENREEFME
Real estate held for investment value in fair value model
REAEERZEERAEHAROUNFERES
Additional provision of depreciation for preceding years
FaETEERBEEO AR TFrEA S HN
Salary for early retirees qualified as accrued liabilities
W& 1) 2 A
Share-based payment
HaEtaERAKENERREES
After-sales obligations qualified as accrued liabilities
BEA G
Consolidation of enterprises
Hf :A-—#FHTrXapmankmER
Including: Book value of goodwill from consolidation of
enterprises under common control
RIBEFHERFHEN B ERELER
Provision for diminution in value of goodwill under
new accounting standards
NAnBEAEAEZHTAEHEREYN
CREEURATHEESREE
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss and
available-for-sale financial assets
NArBEAEAEEHTAENEENCRER
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss
SRV A DRI A S
Equity increased by splitting financial instruments
TEemIA
Derivative financial instruments
BEEFAMAEERABARSEENMER
Income tax directly record in items related to the owner’s equity
RS
Income tax
Ho:BRAIRLEMSHEE
Including: Deferred taxes assets of parent company
BRAIRLEMEHAR
Deferred taxes liabilities of parent company
FRABRLEMBHEE
Deferred taxes assets of subsidiaries
FRAELEMREHAE
Deferred taxes liabilities of subsidiaries
LHBRER
Minority interest
Others
2006F1A1E IR (gt ]
Consolidated shareholders’ equity under new accounting
standards on 1st January, 2006

533,793.4

1,312.5

535,105.9

2,043.8

(25,197.5)

(1,243.8)

(2,225.6)
28,040.2
33,593.5

(5,553.3)

0.4

536,523.4

531,994.2

1,312.5

533,306.7

(25,197.5)

(1,243.8)

(2,225.6)
32,649.7
28,081.3

4,568.4
(2,524.6)
(0.1)

534,764.8
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B. &AW o wl i B 4 ) 0 0 R B. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH HONG KONG ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

(—) HaHER (1) CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
BE_ZEE+FNA=FHIEANA - REFEZ FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30TH JUNE, 2007 - Unaudited
BE_ZTLF BE_ETXE
AB=+AHL AXA=+HL
ANEAR AREA
(E®)
Kt &t AR®EFT ARETFT
Six months Six months
ended ended
30th June 30th June
2007 2006
(Restated)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BHREBZEE Continuing operations
- Turnover 550,510 352,175
$HE KR Cost of sales (376,336) (265,521)
EH Gross profit 174,174 86,654
H Uz Other revenue 6 18,603 2,113
HEER Distribution expenses (25,930) (17,960)
THER Administrative expenses (45,211) (39,346)
HEh&HA Other operating expenses 7 (1,244) (96)
BEEN Profit from operations 120,392 31,365
M ER Financial costs 7 (2,313) (2,859)
EEAEREERER Share of results less
losses of associate (166) -
FEAL R B B AR SR Share of results of jointly
controlled entity 984 (353)
B IR AR F Profit before taxation 7 118,897 28,153
FRi& % Income tax 8 (18,365) (2,482)
BHREBZES Profit from continuing
BB operations 105,532 25,671
RIEBEBZER Discontinued operation
I E 2 XBER Loss from discontinued
(0BRFT1SHL) operation (net of income tax) 5 (2,357) (1,187)
ELAFREBFBAZHEAF  Profit of the period 103,175 24,484
A SER: Attributable to:
—EBRAKE - Equity holders of the parent 95,004 19,857
—LEBRERES - Minority interests 8,171 4,627
103,175 24,484
SEREN Earnings per share 10 0.351 0.081
BHREBZEBZEEREN Continuing operations EPS 0.359 0.084
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(Z) -HFEEfAR

RZFEZFLFNA=Z+H - REFEZ

(2) CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

At 30 June 2007 - Unaudited

RISSLtEF RISESXRE
~NB=+AH +=ZBR=+—8H
(EHR)
B &t ARBTF T ARMBTF T
At 30 At 31
June 2007 December 2006
(Restated)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE Non-current assets
Y% B R F Property, plant and equipment
EEIR and Construction in
progress 11 420,253 396,815
FER L HE KA Lease prepayments 27,795 28,142
mRAE Intangible assets 7,002 12,100
[EES Goodwill 9,114 11,490
HRAZEHIEEKRE Interests in a jointly
controlled entity 17,457 16,473
BEERELE Interests in an associate 9,834 10,000
BEERIBEEE Deferred tax assets 34,013 33,638
525,468 508,658
REEE Current assets
A= Inventories 12 258,312 260,785
EBURESERRERE Trade and bills receivable 13 308,224 181,387
B EMFEW%E Deposits, other receivables
K IE RIE And prepayments 14 98,371 73,126
FE U BA B 5 3RE Amounts due from
related parties 344 -
FHEMRE Available-for-sale investments 15 7,653 7,653
WTHEFER:S Cash at bank and in hand 16 252,349 166,794
925,253 689,745
mEAE Current liabilities
—FREEREZIRITER Bank loans-due within one year 17 20,000 40,000
JET & % ERERE Trade and bills payable 18 128,051 96,480
?Ellﬂl/ 15 Advances from customers 356,847 220,369
H A RIE R ERT X Other payables and
accrued expenses 59,770 60,722
B FE WA Deferred income 8,107 8,107
JFE 1< B8 Hﬁﬁ IE Amounts due to related parties 106 1,432
R EREH EEE 5 RIE Amounts due to a jointly
controlled entity - 12,113
FET Hﬁﬁ%i‘i & IR Amounts due to an associate - 10,000
FERTFRS Income tax payable 9,742 9,426
—FRE 35% 2 B E A A E Obligations under finance leases-
due within one year 233 233
B Warranty provision 6,354 3,555
589,210 462,437
RDEERE Net current assets 336,043 227,308
HEERRDAR Total assets less current liabilities 861,511 735,966
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R-BSLEE BTN
~NB=+H +=RAR=+—H
(E#H)
K &t AR®TFT ARBF T
At 30 At 31
June 2007 December 2006
(Restated)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
RBAR Non current liabilities
—F2RERZRITER Bank loans - due after one year 17 50,000 20,000
EMRBER Other long-term loan 7,200 7,200
—FREBEZBMEMORE Obligations under finance leases —
due after one year 2,707 2,985
RATBRKREEZSHRIE Early-retirement benefits obligation 21,567 23,088
iR FE Uy 2 Deferred gain 2,917 3,018
REMIBEEE Deferred tax liabilities 397 241
84,788 56,532
BERE NET ASSETS 776,723 679,434
B F R i CAPITAL AND RESERVES
& A Share capital 19 283,243 245,007
k] Reserves 19 420,004 363,236
BAFIBRERER Total equity attributable to
equity holders of the parent 703,247 608,243
PEBRRER Minority interests 19 73,476 71,191
g24st TOTAL EQUITY 776,723 679,434
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BE—ZZE+FNA=FHILNEA - REEE

(3) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the six months ended 30 June 2007 — Unaudited

BEE_ZZTLEHF BE_ZSZTRE
AB=+HL AA=+HLE
AR{EA ANEAR
(E#H)
ARMTFT ARMTFT
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2007 2006
(Restated)
RMB’000 RMB’000
BR—B—HZBRRESEHE: Total equity at 1 January:
BRAIRRER (AT Attributable to equity holders of
R+—_A=+—HE®R) the parent (as previously
reported at 31 December) 605,622 523,141
LEAREER (AFE Minority interests (as previously
R+T-_BA=+—H%& presented separately from
BREZREBEDBZ2®R) liabilities and equity
at 31 December) 67,058 59,098
672,680 582,239
R EEFIESI R 2 ATEFAE Prior period adjustments
arising from correction of
accounting errors 6,754 5,082
R—A—BEBFEMEFAZEZ At 1 January, after prior
IRR B EE period adjustments 679,434 587,321
HERIZEERZBHRA: Net income for the period
recognized directly in equity:
BHEUEREZEHAR Changes in fair value of
available-for-sale investments - 2,339
NP EEEREEZ 2 FW A Net income for the period
(ZZETRF BEER) recognized directly in equity
(2006: as restated) - 2,339
HEgH: Net profit for the period:
B A RRRERZ T Attributable to equity holders of
(ZZEEXRE UFEER) the parent (2006: as previously
reported) 95,004 19,698
LHRRES 2 E T Minority interests (2006: as
(ZZZRFUERE previously presented separately
BREERRBEDHZR) in the income statement) 8,171 4,304
S EHBFESIBZAHTARE  Prior period adjustments
arising from correction of
accounting errors - 482
HEHEFN (ZZTTF BEEHR)  Net profit for the period
(2006: as restated) 103,175 24,484
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(Z) R IR
BE-FTLENAZ+HALANAA - FEFH

(3) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN

EQUITY (Continued)
For the six months ended 30 June 2007 — Unaudited

BE_ZETLF BE_ZZTRE
AB=+HL AB=+HL
~NEAR ~EA
(E®)
Kt &t AR®EFT ARETFT
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2007 2006
(Restated)
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

THERIWMARMAZEE Total recognized income

(ZE2EEXF BEER) and expense for the period
(2006: as restated) 103,175 26,823
pallor s Attributable to:

ISVNSI S Equity holders of the parent 19 95,004 22,196

DEH R R EE Minority interests 19 8,171 4,627

103,175 26,823
BE it HEHELR: Disposal/acquisition of interests
in subsidiaries:

DERRER Minority interests (5,886) (42)
BWARB=Z1THZERRESEHE Total equity at 30 June 776,723 614,102
THECRRKMARMAXZEE Restatements of total recognized

ZPAEWNSEA: income and expense for

the period are attributable to:
HARRRK Equity holders of the parent 159
DB R M 2 Minority interests 323
482
FHE R Arising from restatements of:

EEREREER ZFRA

HA R 0% A

Net income recognized
directly in equity
Net profit for the period

482

482
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(W) ~fiiW &5 S B W R (4)

BE—ZEE+FNA=FHILNEAA - REEE

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT
For the six months ended 30 June 2007 — Unaudited

BE_ZTEZSLtHE BE_ZTNE
~EAR ~NEAR
B &t ARETFIT ARBFor
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2007 2006
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BEEFELEOHR S Cash generated from operations 151,061 19,465
B RER Tax paid (5,517) (3,088)
BEIDMAENASEH Net cash generated from
operating activities 145,544 16,377
BRETHFRANRQBHE Net cash used in investing
activities (42,469) (5,630)
REETHFMANRSBEHE Net cash used in financing
activities (14,636) (22,870)
BILEEZ%% (FRA) Net cash (used in)/generated
EENAESERE from discontinued operation (1,995) 931
HeRHASEEMENM Net increase/(decrease) in cash
(BYP) B8 and cash equivalents 86,444 (11,192)
HEeRBIEERD Cash and cash equivalents
W—BA—H#e& at 1 January 166,410 169,767
SEEFEEHOHTE Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes (889) (298)
BEeRBEEEED Cash and cash equivalents
RAXA=T+TH#&HR at 30 June 16 251,965 158,277
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NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL
REPORT

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1.

Basis of preparation

This interim financial report has been prepared in accordance with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
including compliance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”)
34 “Interim financial reporting”, issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). It was authorized for
issuance on 20 August 2007.

The interim financial report has been prepared in accordance with
the same accounting policies adopted by Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) in the preparation of the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2006. Please refer to Note 2 for the
discussion of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) adopted by the Group in 2007.

The preparation of an interim financial report in conformity with
HKAS 34 requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses on a year
to date basis. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

In preparing this interim financial report, the significant judgements
made by management in applying the Group’s accounting policies
and the key sources of estimation uncertainty were the same as
those that applied to the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2006.

This interim financial report contains condensed consolidated
financial statements and selected explanatory notes. The notes
include an explanation of events and transactions that are significant
to an understanding of the changes in financial position and
performance of the Group since the 2006 annual financial
statements. The condensed consolidated financial statements and
notes thereon do not include all of the information required for full
set of financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The financial information relating to the financial year ended 31
December 2006 that is included in the interim financial report as
being previously reported information does not constitute the
Company’s statutory financial statements for that financial year but
is derived from those financial statements. Statutory financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 are available
from the Company’s registered office. The auditors have expressed
an unqualified opinion on those financial statements in their report
dated 18 April 2007.
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New and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs,
which term collectively includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
HKASs and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA, that are effective
or available for early adoption for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2007. The Board of Directors has determined the
accounting policies to be adopted in the preparation of the Group’s
annual financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2007,
on the basis of HKFRSs currently in issue.

The HKFRSs that will be effective or are available for voluntary
early adoption in the annual financial statements for the year ending
31 December 2007 may be affected by the issue of additional
interpretations or other changes announced by the HKICPA
subsequent to the date of issuance of this interim report. Therefore
the policies that will be applied in the Group’s financial statements
for that period cannot be determined with certainty at the date of
issuance of this interim financial report.

The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in
substantial changes in the Group’s accounting policies applied in
these financial statements for the periods presented.

Change in accounting policies and accounting estimates
(a) Summary of the effect of change in accounting policies and

accounting estimates

(i) Effect on opening balance of total equity at 1 January
2007 (as adjusted)

The following table sets out the adjustments that have
been made to the opening balances at 1 January 2007.
These are the aggregate effect of retrospective

2. adjustments to the net assets as at 31 December 2006.
(RetiEiR) / g .

BERA BRES RE#E
Kt &t ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT

(Accumulated

losses)/
retained Minority Total
profits interests equity
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AIHR T % - Prior period adjustments:
EIER IR Deferred taxation 3(b)(i) 29,264 4,133 33,397
B Warranty provision 3(b)(ii) (3,555) - (8,555)
RAEKREES Early-retirement benefits

A IE obligation 3(b)(iii) (23,088) - (23,088)
2,621 4,133 6,754
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Effect on opening balance of total equity at 1 January
2006 (as adjusted)

The following table sets out the adjustments that have
been made to the opening balances at 1 January 2006.
These are the aggregate effect of retrospective
adjustments to the net assets as at 31 December 2005.

(REtEBIR) / g .
BEEN BRED =3 %]
i i AR®TFT AER®FoT ARBTFT
(Accumulated
losses)/
retained Minority Total
profits interests equity
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AT ER & Prior period adjustments:
EER IR Deferred taxation 3(b)(i) 28,678 2,845 31,523
B Warranty provision 3(b)(ii) (1,244) - (1,244)
RABEAREZS Early-retirement
e benefits obligation (b)(iii) (25,197) - (25,197)
2,237 2,845 5,082

LR ZFENRENAZ
+ B kS E T 2 BB i
B (B

(iii) (iii)

TRINRTEHAT 2R &R
—EERERNA=ZTHILEAME

Effect on profit after taxation for the six months ended 30
June 2006 (as adjusted)

In respect of the six-month period ended 30 June 2006,
the following table discloses the adjustments that have
been made to the profits as previously reported for that

AZ s F 2 A period.
BILER_SEZERERA=+HILKRER
BAT g B®
ERER BRER k-3 %]
K & ARMFT AR FT AREBT T
Six months ended 30 June 2006
Equity
holders of Minority
the parent interests Total
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
iR FIE 7 T8 Deferred taxation 3(b)(i) 278 323 601
B Warranty provision 3(b)(ii) (1,125) - (1,125)
RARKEEZS Early-retirement benefits
EIE obligation (b)(iii) 1,006 - 1,006
M EEE Total effect for the period 159 323 482
EREF & Effect on earnings per share 0.001 0.001 0.002
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(b)

Summary of the change in accounting policies and

accounting estimates

(i)

Deferred taxation

In prior years, the Group was influenced by the
macro-controlled of the country, had losses for
years. The board of directors and management of
the Group did not recognize deferred tax assets
and liabilities complied with the accounting
principle of prudence. In the recent years, with
the strong market demand, the profitability of the
Group has been improved rapidly. In the year 2006
and the first half year 2007, the net profit of the
Group increased dramatically. The board of
directors and management has the new criterion
on the recoverable-ability of deferred tax assets
and liabilities. They are considering that the Group
and Xi’an Ser will have sufficient profit before tax
in the future to support the needs of recovery
unrecognized deferred tax assets and liabilities.
However, the three subsidiaries, Shaanxi
Hengtong, Siyuan, and Winko lack of profitability,
the Group will not recognize deferred tax assets
arising from deductible and taxable temporary
differences for the prior periods. On the other
hand, the new accounting standards has been
implemented since 1 January, 2007 in the PRC,
the regulations regarding income tax under the
PRC new accounting standards and Hong Kong
accounting standards are equivalent. The financial
statements prepared under the PRC accounting
standards have been adjusted the deferred tax
assets and liabilities arising from deductible and
taxable temporary differences. In order to decrease
the differences, and improve the comparability of
the Group’s financial statements prepared under
different accounting standards, the Group correctly
account for the deferred tax assets and liabilities
arising from deductible and taxable temporary
differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. As at 30 June 2007, the Group has
properly accounted for the aforesaid deferred
taxation and retrospective adjustments were made
for the recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities for prior years. The adjustments relating
to profit after taxation for the six months ended
30 June 2006 are set out in note 3(a)(iii) and the
adjustment to opening balances as at 1 January
2006 are set out in note 3(a)(ii) and note 19.
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Provision for warranty

The Group warrants the quality of certain products
sold to its customers and is responsible for the
free-maintenance during the warranty period. In
recently years, the sales revenue increased rapidly.
In order to ensure matching the revenue and the
expenses, fairly reflect the profits, liabilities and
net assets of the Group, the Group decided to
change the existing accounting practice (which
recognised the after-sales service expenses by
actually occured cost as profit or loss for the
current period) to recognise provision for warranty
with a experienced rate for after-sales expenses.
The actual after-sales expenses will be recognised
under the provision for warranty. The experienced
rate will be reviewed and confirmed whether it
needs to be changed at the date of balance sheet.
According to experienced statistic information
before 30 June, 2007, the experienced rate of
after-sales expenses is about 1.2% of the sales
revenue. As at 30 June 2007, the Group has
properly accounted for the provision for warranty
and retrospective adjustments were made for the
recognition of such provisions for prior years. The
adjustments relating to profit after taxation for the
six months ended 30 June 2006 are set out in
note 3(a)(iii) and the adjustment to opening
balances as at 1 January 2006 are set out in note
3(a)(ii) and note 19.
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(iii)

Early-retirement benefits

The Group has a number of employees who were
made to retire from employment of the Group prior
to their official retirement dates. However, the Group
is obligated to continue to make monthly payments
to these employees commencing from the date of
their early-retirement up until their respective official
retirement dates. The payments are calculated
based on a certain percentage of their last drawn
salaries. On May 15, 2007, the Ministry of Finance
of the PRC announced “Opionons of Professionals
Working Group on Implementation of the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises” (“Opinions”).
According to the Rule 2.2 of the Opinions, the Group
has accounted for the accrued early-retirement
benefits for 252 early-retirement employees, 45 laid-
off workers and 5 unemployments commencing from
the date of their early-retirement up until their
repective official retirement. Since the the retirement
benefis will pay for about 5 years, the Company
refers to high quality corporate bonds market
interest rate to determine the discount rate of the
salaries for early retirees. Presently, the discount
rate is 5.2% annually. As at 30 June 2007, the Group
has properly accounted for these early-retirement
benefits and retrospective adjustments were made
for the recognition of such accruals for prior years.
The adjustments relating to profit after taxation for
the six months ended 30 June 2006 are set out in
note 3(a)(iii) and the adjustment to opening balances
as at 1 January 2006 are set out in note 3(a)(ii) and
note 19.
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(vi) HEKRMEH:

Segment reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s product
segments. Product segment information is chosen as the primary
reporting format because this is more relevant to the Group’s internal
financial reporting. As the Group mainly operates in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), no geographical segment information is
presented.

The product segment of the Group comprises:

(i) Boring machines;

(i)  Sensor and turbo tables (formerly computerised embroidery
machines);

(iii)  Intelligent electrical appliances;
(iv)  Turbo machines;
(v)  Laser prototyping machines (discontinued); and

(vi)  Transport of machine tools.
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Discontinued operation

In March 2007, the Group disposed of a subsidiary, Shanxi Hengtong
Intelligent Machine Company Limited (“Hengtong”), which
represented its entire laser prototyping machines segment (see note
4), to an associate company of the Group. The segment was not a
discontinued operation or classified as held for sale as at 31
December 2006, and the comparative income statement and
condensed consolidated cash flow statement have been represented
to show the discontinued operation separately from continuing
operations. The effect of the disposal was a decrease in the net
assets of the Group of RMB12,845,000, excluding cash
consideration received of RMB14,000,000. The net cash inflow on
disposal after deducting cash disposed of was RMB12,955,000.

HE_ZZ+LFNAZTHLEAEA BB Losses attributable to the discontinued operation for the six months
REEIEEE R RENT ended 30 June were as follows:
BE_ZTTLtHE BE_ZZTRE
AA=+AHL AA=+AHL
R{EAR ~EA
RIEEZ (E®)
AR®TFT ARETFT
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2007 2006
Unaudited (Restated)
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRIEEBZEBZER Results of discontinued operation
A Revenue 45 3,315
EH Expenses (998) (4,497)
mEEE Results from operating activities (953) (1,182)
WA Income tax (15) (5)
RENERLEBEZEBHNER Loss after tax but before loss
on sale of discontinued operation (968) (1,187)
HERIEREZEXKER Loss on sale of discontinued operation (1,389) -
&R Loss for the period (2,357) (1,187)
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6. 3 i e 2% 6. Other revenue
BE_TTLHF BE_SEXRE
AB=+HL ANA=+AHL
A{EA ANEAR
RIS EZ RIS EZ
AR T ARMTFT
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2007 2006
Unaudited Unaudited
RMB’000 RMB’000
BHREBZES Continuing operations
|ITHF B WA Interest income from bank deposits 647 593
BiFwe e (i) Government grants (i) 15,722 444
iR AE A 55 B8 8 Release of deferred gain 101 101
HEFHEEHEERE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments - 234
H g s Other operating revenue 2,133 741
18,603 2,113
HIEEBEBZXE Discontinued operation
RATEY LB WA Interest income from bank deposits 2 22
HA Others - 28
2 50
B a% - Notes:
(i) BT 48 B 2 15 7 B 4t 5 BT 4R BN 2 =AY (i) Government grants represent incentives given to the Company by the
52 @) AL local government.
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7. Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

(1) HoAh 2 (i)  Other operating expenses
BHE_ZZLEF BE_ZZERE
ABE=E+AHL ~NA=+AHLE
~fEA N{ER
RISEZ RIEHEZ
AR TF T ARBTF T
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2007 2006
Unaudited Unaudited
RMB’000 RMB’000
BFHEEBZES Continuing operations
BEME - BERZEEE Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 1,201 40
Hih &R FHE Other net expenses 43 56
1,244 96
RIEBEZXES Discontinued operation
HESREIAS Compensation and penalty - 4
(i) MEHH (i1)  Finance costs
BE_ZZLEF BE_ZZRE
ABE+AHL ~NA=+AHLE
AfEA N{ER
RISEZ RIEEZ
ARBTF T ARBTF T
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2007 2006
Unaudited Unaudited
RMB’000 RMB’000
BFHEEBZES Continuing operations
IRITE T B Interest on bank loans 921 2,449
MEHEF B Obligations under finance leases 64 64
E A Others 1,328 346
2,313 2,859
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(i) HAhIHH

(iit)  Other items

BE_TTLHF BE_ZSEAE
ANB=+HL AB=+AHL
~NEAR A{EAR
RIS EZ (E#H)
AR T ARMTFT
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2007 2006
Unaudited (Restated)
RMB’000 RMB’000
BHREBZES Continuing operations
TEREME IR Salary and staff related costs 73,172 57,594
ME -BMERZBITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14,685 12,570
RIKE R Early-retirement benefits obligation 1,522 1,006
EmRANEREE Warranty expenses 3,687 1,634
mEAEHNE Amortisation of intangible assets 989 2,194
T8 5 FE & BTE 8 4E Amortisation of lease prepayments 302 302
Impairment losses
GFEREEE - Inventory - 4,944
RER %S — Trade and other receivables - 5,766
TEN £ Ho 7 & B i Amortisation of prepaid lease payment 46 46
BIEEEZES Discontinued operation
TEREME IR Salary and staff related costs 275 550
ME -BMERZBEITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 757 276
B 8. Income tax
BE_TTLEF BE_ZSEAE
ANB=+HL AB=+AHL
XEAR A{EAR
RIS EZ (E#H)
AR T ARMTFT
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2007 2006
Unaudited (Restated)
RMB’000 RMB’000
BHREBZES Continuing operations
HifE 1A Current tax — PRC 13,585 3,083
EERL IR Deferred taxation (220) (601)
13,365 2,482
BIEEBEZES Discontinued operation
M IE Current tax - PRC 15 5
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10.
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REBEE-_ZT+ENA=ZTHLEABA &
AR R BB AR A L IER %K
EERTRWA AL ZBRRI5%HEME
M(ZEZNFERB:15%) °

RZFBZELF=A+ A FEARLNE
FTEZEARRRAEEARGAREA
(REARKMBEEEMRSEE) ([FH
E)BZEENFE-A-BBET RN
HMBOENE N A AR RENEB LR B R
ROREAEMBSHEBE -FTTNFE—A—
B EBRFHNBEREK BHR25% - AR
A B AR AN EEN R o ERRFRES
& B E S R H26% M RER K- hR
FBOENE AR B ATERE B ARE
A EAEANESRE THREBERS
MR REERNERFBRERAEP RN B
AT 3 ) R - IR SE T IR A E R FE IR
BENTECERREASER L —TTL
FRAZTBEIEREANTHPEHRE -

JBe

ARFBRBE_ZZLFRNA=ZTHIEARE
ARTERNHERRS (ZETXFRY:
')

(3 2

HE-_ZT+EXNA=THIANEANER
EXRBANEZBRBEADR L BRBRIERZE AR
1% M A R 195,004,000t R EBE-TT+
FRAZTBEEANEANARREHITER
A% B pnAE S 19 8RB 273,948,351 (% 51 & -

HE-_ZTRENA=THIEANEANER
EXRBANEBRBEADR L BRRIERLE AR
1EE R A R#19,857,000C KB E —TE X
FRAZTBEEANEANARREHITLR
% B9 hn4E S 19 8k B 245,007,4000% 51 & -

10.

No provision has been made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the
Group did not have assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax during the period. Profits of the Company and its subsidiaries
are subject to PRC income taxes.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, a
subsidiary in the PRC is entitled to exemption from state income
tax for the first two years commencing from the year in which a
taxable income is made after the offset of deductible losses incurred
in prior years, and thereafter will be entitled to a 50% reduction in
state income tax rate for the following three years. No provision for
PRC income tax has been made for this subsidiary as it incurred a
tax loss for the period.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the Group’s
other PRC subsidiaries’ profits are subject to PRC income tax at a
rate of 15% (corresponding period in 2006: 15%).

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth National
People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
People’s Republic of China (“new tax law”) which will take effect on
1 January 2008. As a result of the new tax law, the statutory income
tax rate currently adopted by the Company and its subsidiaries will
change to 25% effective from 1 January 2008 over a five-year
transitional period. The existing preferential tax rate currently enjoyed
by the Company will also be gradually transited to the new standard
rate of 25% over a five-year transitional period. As the detailed
instruction for the transition to the new tax rate is yet to be issued,
the Group estimated that the applicable income tax rate under the
preferential tax policy will be expired at the shorter of the existing
preferential tax period and the five-year transitional period. The
change in the carrying amount of the deferred tax assets and
liabilities, as a result of the change in tax rate, is reflected in the
financial statements of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2007.

Dividends

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during the
six months ended 30 June 2007 (corresponding period in 2006:
Nil).

Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the six months ended
30 June 2007 is based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB95,004,000 and the weighted
average number of 273,948,351 ordinary shares of the Company
outstanding during the six months ended 30 June 2007.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the six months ended
30 June 2006 was based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB19,857,000 and the weighted
average number of 245,007,400 ordinary shares of the Company
outstanding during the six months ended 30 June 2006.
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11. % W5 Kt i 11. Property, plant and equipment and construction in progress
RZTZ+FNA=ZTHLENBARN A% During the six months ended 30 June 2007, the addition of property,
mME - BMERIEBEEEAEAARE plant and equipment of the Group amounted to RMB44,980,000
44,980,000C (Z T NFRAMH: AR (corresponding period in 2006: RMB 20,227,000). ltems of property,
20,227,0007T) - HEZZFTZT+FA=+H plant and equipment with net book value totaling RMB6,100,000
WEAREAR BEENYE WEREEERR were disposed of during the six months ended 30 June 2007
FEAF B ARYS,100,0007T (ZTTRNEF (corresponding period in 2006: RMB1,385,000), resulting in a loss
F 8 : AR%1,385,00000) ELEEEEEBA on disposal of RMB1,201,000 (corresponding period in 2006:
R#1,201,000t (T NFRE: ARE RMB40,000).
40,0007T) ©

12. 1K 12. Inventories

R-ZZZTLHF RISEXREF
ANB=+H +=-—R=+—8H
AR®EFT ARBTFT
At 30 June At 31 December
2007 2006
Unaudited Audited
RMB’000 RMB’000
R Raw materials 53,982 49,194
NEFRE® Goods in transit 603 -
R R Work in progress 138,930 155,648
BIFK Gh Finished goods 64,797 55,943
258,312 260,785

13, HEWCE 5 MRk B R85 13. Trade and bills receivable

AEBEREFENBL G THREEH - KB H
RUWE SRR RZE (EMBRZRAERS
B) EEAI R —FAWE BN E SRR RE
B (EMBRRERBERR) MRE DT
T

The Group agrees credit terms with its trade customers on an
individual basis. Most of the trade and bills receivable (net of
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts) are expected to be
recovered within one year.

An ageing analysis of trade and bills receivable (net of impairment
losses for bad and doubtful debts) is as follows:

R-ESLEF RISEREF

NA=+H +=ZA=+—H

AE®TFT ARBT T

At 30 June At 31 December

2007 2006

Unaudited Audited

RMB’000 RMB’000

—F R Aged within 1 year 296,166 167,398
—EMF Aged between 1 to 2 years 8,519 11,474
ME=F Aged between 2 to 3 years 2,121 670
=FLAE Aged over 3 years 1,418 1,845
308,224 181,387
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14. 354~ 30 fib B B3k 9 B AT 3k 14. Deposits, other receivables and prepayments
R-ZZTEFE R-BTREF
ANB=+H +=ZRA=+—8H
RIEEZ EEZ
AR®EFT ARETFT
At 30 June At 31 December
2007 2006
Unaudited Audited
RMB’000 RMB’000
TE A5 4 B R B K Advances to suppliers 68,763 43,468
BiZ BEIRRRBERELZS Prepayments for construction
projects and equipment 12,843 14,102
BT #®X Staff advances 6,068 5,938
bk Deposits 3,544 3,066
FERAERIE Lease prepayments 603 603
RHGHER Long-term deferred expenses 181 198
ARERK Tax recoverable 44 905
Hith Others 6,325 4,846
98,371 73,126
15. B nay 15. Available-for-sale investments

R-ZZEMFE AR HEPEZESERE
ARRI([HEEER]) BI(ZAREREE
EEAHNAEﬁéi/\EﬁZsoooooooi
([E2]) ZATEBFETHEREE
B ERHR1IF A 2ETNF_A=-+=
ARE-_ZTTRAF _A -+ =HEIfH-

E-ZTEMFEANA+LA ARAFTIESTE
BHUARZERBRERERE Ml zE
SHEETZEARBREZE-R_ZTNENA
S=E( RIN/N 7§HE¢EE;§%EEEM$%¥
BEORBE RHEELFEEZESELE
HTEEREETEAR ([PEER])E
BHREES-

RZZBERF-A TEIEGHESHBE
BERERR ([EEHKE]) -PEEFHAR
RWBENR REHRESUPEESEH
B REANEA-EARNEHEENEERT
ERTHEEANZN BEEHRREERN

RZZBZERNFNA TBRABFHEBEZEEZE
AtameBRREEMESAM ([EHRX
E])RMBEIENE BB ETT
BB - E\,ﬁﬁ;%;ﬁ{% B TENEETH-
BRI BHEI{EREETP-

During the year ended 31 December 2004, the Company entered
into an agreement with China Fortune Securities Company Limited
(“China Fortune”) for the trusteeship of the management of
investment in state bonds (the “Trusteeship Agreement”), pursuant
to which the Company entrusted China Fortune to conduct
investment on state bonds with RMB50,000,000 (the “Funds”) with
a term of the entrustment of one year from 23 February 2004 to 23
February 2005.

On 7 June 2004, the Company discovered that China Fortune had
failed to comply with the Trusteeship Agreement concerning the
investment in state bonds, and diverted the Funds to invest in
several A-share stocks. Subsequent to 7 June 2004, the Company
found that China Fortune incurred operating failure and was taken
over in custody by China Huarong Asset Management Corporation
(“China Huarong”) as appointed by the China Securities Regulatory
Commission.

In January 2006, the China Securities Regulatory Commission
approved the application from a shareholder of China Fortune,
Capital Airport Group Company (“Capital Airport”), for the handling
of the restructuring process of China Fortune with an authorised
period of six months. However, Capital Airport could not obtain
approval from the existing creditors for the restructuring proposal
of settlement of liabilities by shares before the due date. As a
result, the restructuring process was terminated.

In August 2006, the China Securities Regulatory Commission
appointed Beijing Gao Peng Tianda Law Firm (“Gao Peng”) to
establish an administrative liquidation working group to execute
the liquidation of China Fortune (the “Liquidation”).
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R-ZEZ+FEXA=ZF+H BEIENEE
I RREEERMETERR S EFZF
BEZEREZABATHAERBEHRE A W
ReenEEEEAFE-BLL ZFHER
B - TTHENA=ZTHZEREEEARYE
7,653,0007T %1 BF

B2 @EHRNLMER AR EDA KRE A
R #32,030,000TE RN Ll B S 2 4
HIER-_ZZLFNAT=ZAKI-ER
THRBRETARECHREERRARE
BT IAFE-

As at 30 June 2007, the Liquidation was still in progress and
therefore, these available-for-sale investments could not be freely
traded in an active market. The directors considered that the range
of reasonable fair value estimates of these investments was so
significant that their fair values could not be determined reliably
and accordingly, these investments were stated at carrying values
of RMB7,653,000 as at 30 June 2007.

However, notwithstanding the above, in accordance with the
resolution of the administrative liquidation working group of China
Fortune issued on 12 August 2007, the Company received
RMB32,030,000 in cash on 13 August 2007 in connection with the
settlement of the aforesaid entrusted investment of RMB50,000,000.
The receipt of this settlement has not been adjusted in this interim
financial report.

16. SRITHZELARBE 16. Cash at bank and in hand
R-ISZLtEF RISEXRE
~NB=+AH +=B=+—H
ARETFT ARETF T
At 30 June At 31 December
2007 2006
Unaudited Audited
RMB’000 RMB’000
RekReEEY Cash and cash equivalents

—RBe REHER - Cash in hand and demand deposits 251,965 166,410

fHEERERENRE Restricted bank deposits for
2 BRHRITRE S letters of credit and bills payable 384 384
252,349 166,794

17. SRATEERX 17. Bank loans
R-ZZTLEHF RISESXRE
~NB=+AH +=-B=+—H
RIEEZ R
AR T T ARBF T
At 30 June At 31 December
2007 2006
Unaudited Audited
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FAEER Bank loans - due within 1 year 20,000 40,000
—FLEEE Bank loans - due after 1 year 50,000 20,000
70,000 60,000

R-ZBELFENA=Z+0 ARG LMRT
B AEEELERRELEEEZEYA
BB REE-_ZTTLFNAZ+HIEAN
BA HTERXRNFMNEN F581%E
6.57% (ZZEZENFRH:5.85%Z%6.30%) °

At 30 June 2007, the bank loans were secured by land use rights
and buildings of the Group. The annual rate of interest charged on
the bank loans ranged from 5.81% to 6.57% for the six months
ended 30 June 2007 (corresponding period in 2006: 5.85% to
6.30%).
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18.  MEAT B B Wi sk B R 5 18. Trade and bills payable
R-EStLEF R-BTREF
~A=+H +=-A=+—8H
RICEZ KEZ
AR®EFT ARETFT
At 30 June At 31 December
2007 2006
Unaudited Audited
RMB’000 RMB’000
BREZER Trade payables 127,857 96,480
BT E & Bills payable 194 _
128,051 96,480
AEBRENESERALEBEMNIRE DT An ageing analysis of trade and bills payable of the Group is as
N follows:
R-IEZELSF BTN
~NB=+AH +=-BA=+—H
RIEEZ KEZ
AR®EFT ARETFT
At 30 June At 31 December
2007 2006
Unaudited Audited
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FEUR Aged within 1 year 117,554 81,881
—EWFE Aged between 1 to 2 years 5,214 7,987
ME=F Aged between 2 to 3 years 2,283 4,764
=FHRE Aged over 3 years 3,000 1,848
128,051 96,480
FERNESERNEZEEEHER —FRNE All of the trade and bills payable are expected to be settled within
o one year.
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(@)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Share capital

Except for the currency in which dividends are paid and the
restrictions as to whether the shareholders can be PRC investors
or foreign investors, A-shares and H-shares rank pari passu in all
material respects with each other.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the profit of Kunming Machine Tool Plant
for the period from 1 July 1993 to 18 October 1993 less an amount
of RMB7,000,000 which the Company paid in cash to Yunnan
Provincial People’s Government pursuant to a demerger agreement
dated 20 November 1993 between Kunji Group Company and the
Company.

Statutory surplus reserve

The statutory surplus reserve represents appropriations from profit
after taxation in accordance with the PRC Company Law. Statutory
surplus reserve is part of the shareholders’ equity and when its
balance reaches an amount equal to 50% of the relevant company’s
registered capital, further appropriation need not be made. According
to the PRC Company Law, the statutory surplus reserve may be
used to make up past losses or to increase capital by means of
conversion. However, when funds from the statutory surplus reserve
are converted to capital, the funds remaining in such reserve shall
not be less than 25% of the registered capital.

Statutory public welfare fund

According to Article 167 of the PRC Company Law, the statutory
public welfare fund is no longer required and therefore, the Group
discontinued the recognition of its statutory public welfare from 1
January 2006 onwards. Such statutory public welfare fund was
transferred to the statutory surplus reserve during the 2006.
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Changes in share capital

On 22 December 2006, the “Share Increase via Capital Reserve”
proposal (the “Share Increase Proposal”) (whereby 1.5606 new
shares would be allocated for every 10 existing shares) and the
“Share Reform” proposal (the “Share Reform Proposal”) (whereby
holders of non-circulating shares would pay 2.7 shares for every 10
existing shares to holders of circulating A shares as consideration
for non-circulating shares becoming listed and tradable) were
considered and approved at an Extraordinary General Meeting and
a shareholders’ meeting in relation to the A-share market,
respectively.

On 30 January 2007, the aforesaid proposals were approved by the
relevant government authorities.

On 26 February 2007, the Company implemented the Share Increase
Proposal and 1.5606 new shares were allocated for every 10 existing
shares to all shareholders. In total, the share capital of the Company
increased by 38,235,855 shares, of which 28,091,955 shares were
A-shares and 10,143,900 shares were H-Shares. The par value of
the issued ordinary shares was transferred from the share premium
account. After the implementation of the Share Increase Proposal,
the total issued share capital of the Company is 283,243,255 shares.

On 7 March 2007, the Share Reform Proposal was implemented in
the A-share market where the holders of non-circulating shares of
the Company paid a total of 18,728,355 shares to the holders of
circulating A-shares (excluding holders of H shares) as consideration
for the circulation of their non-circulating shares. Accordingly, each
holder of circulating A-shares received 2.7 shares for every 10
existing shares from the holders of non-circulating shares.
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20. R 20. Commitments
(a) EAGKIE (a)  Capital commitments
RZZEZTEFANA=THRAF B Capital commitments outstanding at 30 June 2007 not
BREBRBOERNFKENOT: provided for in the interim financial report are as follows:
R-ZZZTLHF RISESXRE
ANB=+H +=-—R=+—8H
AR®EFT ARBTFT
At 30 June At 31 December
2007 2006
Unaudited Audited
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEETH Contracted for 9,810 59,416
(b) A& RS (b)  Operating lease commitments
RZZEZTLFRNA=+TH TAHHE At 30 June 2007, the total future minimum lease payments under
EEHNE T RENKEHEE non-cancellable operating lease payables are as follows:
FIBERBEOT
R-ZZZTLHF RISEXRE
ANB=+H +=-—RAR=+—8H
AR®EFT ARBTFT
At 30 June At 31 December
2007 2006
Unaudited Audited
RMB’000 RMB’000
— Within 1 year 1,258 1,992
—FEZERFRA After 1 year but within 5 years 5,030 7,487
AFENRE Over 5 years 11,318 18,126
17,606 27,605
REBEZEERHNAEREERTH Operating lease commitments represent rental payable by the Group
NEEY IRMEEIBEE-TZHY for certain of its office properties, factories and staff quarters.
MEHFR BT F- Significant leases are negotiated for an average term of 20 years.
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23.
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21.

22.

23.

Contingent liability

As announced by the Company on 5 July 2007, the State
Administration of Taxation (the “SAT”) issued a notice (the “Notice”)
in June 2007 in connection with the change in the preferential income
tax policy applicable for the nine state-owned enterprises (including
the Company) that were listed in Hong Kong in 1993. According to
the Notice, the SAT ordered the relevant local tax authorities to
immediately rectify any of the expired preferential policy for the
aforesaid nine companies and treat any of the income tax differences
for previous years arising thereof in accordance with the relevant
rules under the Law on the Administration of Tax Collection.

At this stage, the relevant implementation rules have not yet been
announced and the Company is still in the process of clarifying
with the tax authority regarding the matter. Accordingly, the directors
of the Company consider that the amount of the potential exposure
cannot be estimated reliably, and therefore, no provision has been
recognized as at the balance sheet date. Accordingly, the Company
has continued to apply the preferential income tax rate for the six
months ended 30 June 2007.

Comparative figures

Certain items in these comparative figures have been reclassified
to conform with the current period’s presentation to facilitate
comparison.

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the annual
accounting period ending 31 December 2007

Up to the date of issue of this interim financial report, the HKICPA
has issued the following amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the accounting period
ending 31 December 2007:
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Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or

after
HK(IFRIC) 11, HKFRS 2 - Group and 1 March 2007
treasury share transactions
HK(IFRIC) 12, Service concession 1 January 2008
agreements
HKFRS 8, Operating segments 1 January 2009
HKAS 23 (Revised), Borrowing costs 1 January 2009

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and new interpretations
in the period of initial application and has so far concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group’s results of operations and financial position.

VIII. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

1. Financial statements signed and chopped by legal
representative and financial officer;

2. Original copy of the Announcements and all documents
disclosed under newspaper identified by the China Securities
Regulatory Commission within the reporting period;

3. 2007 Interim Report;

4. Written recognition of the 2007 Interim Report from the board
of directors and senior management officers;

5. Written approval of the board of directors’ 2007 Interim Report
from supervisory Committee.

Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Company Limited
(Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited)
Gao Minghui
Chairman
20th August, 2007

Note: Written recognition of the 2007 Interim Report from the board of directors
and senior management officers
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L3 DECLARATION
RAAREEE EF aMEBABREARQF The board of directors, directors and senior management officers of the
2007 F ¥ FEREMBERN T HFEEMERDE Company confirmed that the information in the 2007 Interim Report does
REHRNIEERER THEATHEE T not contain any false information, misleading statements or material
AR T M AR EE R RS R omissions. They also jointly and severally accept full responsibility for

the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the contents of the report.

BREAFET: Signature of Declaratory Persons:
% Directors:
= B 8 RE & R L8R 718
Gao Minghui Zhang Hanrong Song xingju Sun Kai
* B F g =2 ETEES
Wang Sheng Wang Xing Pi Jianguo Shen Guorong
B 12 1§ 287 18 BRE TR
Wayne Yu Liu Minghui Chen Ying Li Dongru
BREEAS: Senior management officers:
REER JE B B ® B W%
Zhang Xiaoyi Zhuo Guoxing Ye Nong Yu Yan
ZAEBHERGARLA Board of Directors
BEFg Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Company Limited
2007 8 A20H 20th August, 2007
M- EFSHEFDHEHAR007TFFFEEHRE)HNE Note: Written approval of the board of directors’ 2007 Interim Report from the
HEEZER Supervisory Committee
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Zhang Weiming

OPINIONS OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Regarding the 2007 Interim Report provided by the board of directors,
we have the following opinions:

1.

The preparation of the 2007 Interim Report and the auditing
procedures are in strict compliance with laws and regulations, the
Articles of Association and rules of the Company’s internal
management system.

The content and format of the 2007 Interim Report were in strict
compliance with the regulations of the China Securities Regulatory
Commission and Shanghai Stock Exchange. The messages included
in the 2007 Interim Report can truly reflect the Company’s operating
management and financial status and other matters of the period.

Before providing the above opinions, we did not discover any person
related in the preparation of the 2007 Interim Report or any auditing
personnel has violated the rule of confidentiality.

Supervisors:

TR
Li Zhenxiong

HIE
Zhao Qiongfen

Supervisory Committee
Jiaoda Kunji High-Tech Company Limited
20th August, 2007
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